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ه اا  ؤ  ، ما  سضا ه بهتاي يا  ما ونا  ت ائ  نا ناها  كىااه ؤة تاق قدلتام  بننا  يا   شرسلت الرد ل لراقزالم ايةلُرت قمطرد  ةز

 ، فيل ك تل من ك لاثن  ةو ب ث بق شر ً هن .ؤفظل الخ م ت هل لاثن  قل يم اضحق تقى ن ي كت ن  الجوةر ق ت 

 

بول يم ؤخ ث اهولنت ت من الخ م ت الاصا ث  ا ق تدوتات اا هتاق بصاوة بق اوؼل ا ت ك لاثنا   ملتزمو  هذهً فةنن  

 تذهً من خلاٌ فر م م اب تموي مل. يق اهوصوٌ بله ؤة اف ك لاثن  الاص ث  ا ق اا هتق بىف ءة تمض ة تن  بغ

 

ه   سض ه هول يم ج تم الخ م ت تفم ائ ق خ يثاق تؤ  ن اتذ هل ضا ث ر ن ب عاق ك ال موؼاواة تمر داق ه ضا ك ةم 

كىه اقخ ذ كارااهمم بفاف فتق تق حاز بةصاوخ اد ؤخا ث دصا هتن اهوىنومللوم قتاق تفام وااصا ت مضوفتظاق تؤبدا ث 

 ملّ لق .

 

ام بااوقن  تػ وخن  تاغ  ن  اه اث ق ي  اهل ل اه ئتب هوؼو ر خ م قن  من كت وقن  الحىت ق بنن  ي  شرهون  سضول

 هوػنن  اهغ ل  .
ً
 ص خن الجلاهق اها ش تق االً ك  الله اهث سي بن الحضح  ؤوامي الله ذخرا
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مه خىة  :

ن اانوة ت تالخ م ت الإص ث  ا ق ك هتق الجووة هل لاثن ، تقوفحر مة وكق موي ملق م ااث ة ي  مة ٌ الإص ث  اشرهق  ؤ  نيو  

، مم الإهتزاد ب ة وكق كو ق من  تمض ك ة ك لاثن  كىه قدلتم الإزوة ا اا ل  تااخق اه  ٌ من خلاٌ هضن جلق اهن ش ي  ػرق تويق

 اا  وت تاهترهحز ااضو ر كىه قدضح  اهل لتق الإنو جتق.

 

 

زإٍدىة  :

قوػت  مي ن ن  هفارهق ااثا ة ، ت  لؼ ق اهذي نخ مياهت تمضو ر تقوصتم مدفـق منوة قن  هندضن مي ن ن  ي  الحف ؾ كىه ن و ج ب

ضاا ه ج ةاا ين هوااوفر اهو حااز ياا  خ مااق اهل االاء تالاموثاا ٌ ماان خاالاٌ اهتزامناا  ست  ، ياا  مةاا ٌ قااوفحر الخاا م ت اا هتااق ياا  اا لىااق داونتااق

همم بغع اهنـر كن ؤة افام الاص ث  ا ق، تةذا ياةلن  هنيو  ي  ػلتلق شرو ت اهوص ػق خوت ج ب، تقل تق  اهذي لا يتزكسق هل لاثن 

 اا هتق تشرو ت الخ م ت الاص ث  ا ق ي  داو .

 

 

قُ ىة  :

له دتك ت سض ه ج ة ين ب ي  ج تم ، كت ن  دص صتق ه  اا  وت اهتي نرقىس كليم  يومت  اض ك ة ك لاثن  ي  قدلتم الإزوة ا اا ل 

تذهً كن ػر م قل يم ؤفظل الخ م ت تدوتات الإص ث  ا ق ااو خق، تبفيل يضام ي   ، تطم جلق ك لاثن  من ؤتهو  ت م  وثن 

 قدلتم ػ وخ ت اهل لاء الإص ث  ا ق.

 

 وة ا ق كىه اهؼر لق اه: من ؤةم كت ن  ا  ند فف كىه اهوكوو اال مق تالاهتزاد بول يم دك  ٌ  ج ير ن ب هثلق

 صحتدق.اه

 .اهترهحز كىه اهل لاء:  قل يم اانوة ت تالخ م ت اهتي قلبي اخوت ج ت ك لاثن  بةووة ك هتق 

 كرض الخ م ت بؼر لق ص وكق تؤخلاكتق، صر دق، اك يق تاةو  د، تاختراد اهن ش تاهو  وٌ الحر هلأفي ا اهجزاةق : . 

  ختث ن كم تسشجم اهل ل الج  ع  تقن تق  ص هون :  نل ا مض ة ق موؿفتن  ي  قدلتم ا  اهل ل برتح اهفر م اهواخ ،

  ٌ  من اهىف ءة تالخبرة تاهرط . اهل اات اهشخصتق هظ    مضووى ك 
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 مجلع الإلازة 

 . اط ةعُل عِس ى اط ةعُل للُدك  /الظُد  زئِع مجلع الإلازة 

س العقةزي   هةئب زئِع مجلع الإلازة  .شسلت صدف الددس للخطوٍ

 خ  و .و ي  ص مر يوصف  / اهضت ت  ثلا        
 

 الأعضةء

 

 

 

 

 .ةض للخجةزة قالإطد  ةز  شسلت لقم السٍ

 .بي و غصوب ج تل اهلضى / اهضت  ت  ثلا 

 . شسلت الد ل للخدمةث الطدُت 

 .اخ   محمد مد وو دخ   /اهضت  ت  ثلا 

 .الظُد/ شسٍف جوفُق خ د السقاشدة 

 محمد زشُد ذًةب خظً. /الظُد 

 عطةالله السحُ ةث اخ د ص ح /الظُد. 

 ايدًس العةم
 

 .ص حر قوفتم خ   اهرتاش ة /اهضت 

 مدققو الحظةبةث
 

 .KPMGشرهق اهلواصمي تشرو ه  /اهض وة

 ايظدشةز القةهووي
 

 .اهفرهق ااود ة الاص ف ا ق هل د م ة /اهض وة
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ةث  قةئ ت المحخوٍ

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

فُت –مقس الشسلت الهةئً في ع ةن  ع - الصوٍ   شةزع بةزَ

  

 .ول ق اث ط مةلط الإوااة 

 .قلر ر مةلط الإوااة 

 .بكرااات مةلط الإوااة 

 قلر ر الحوه ق . 

 .قلر ر م كم الحض ب ت ااضولل 

 .اه ت ن ت اا هتق اهضنو ق 
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 مل ت زئِع مجلع الإلازة

 
 

 خضساث الظةلة ايظةَ ين النسام 

  قاسمةج,,,,,الظ م علُنم قزخ ت الله
 

اهل وي هلفرهق تيضل ن  ؤ   يضرسي تؤكظ ء مةلط الإوااة ؤ  نرخن بىم تسفىر هىم قل  وىم وكوقن  لحظوا اجو  ق اهاتعق اهل مق

 ب خي د اا وقح   2019نل د بهتىم اهولر ر اهضنوي اهرابم كفر تاهذي يوظ ن ؤك  ٌ اهفرهق تبت ن هم  اا هتق هل د 
ً
 169, تذهً ك لا

 تتل يلاقي. 1997هضنق  22من ك نو  اهفرو ت اكم  171 ت

 

 مض ة تن  اهىراد ،،،

 

قد ي ت صل ق جراء اهوؼواات تااضوة ات الاكوص ويق تاا هتق اهل اتق تاهـرتف اهضت صتق  واجييالاكوص و داوسي  لا يساٌ

ا لىق ب   ي  ذهً اه ف غ اهرث س ي هلفرهق تاهذي , تاهتي بسلىط ؤجرة  كىه ملـم اهلؼ ك ت الإكوص ويق ي  ا الإكلت تق اهصل ق

 يلو   كىه الإص ث  اات اا هتق , م   و   هي دجر دهبر كىه نو ثج ؤك  ٌ اهفرهق .

% , 31.6بةنخف ض سضبوي   2018( ملت ا وين ا هلل د 2.3( ملت ا وين ا مل انق مم )1.6ختث قراجم حجم اهو اتٌ ي  بواصق ك    اله )

مل انق مم  2019( نلؼق بنم يق اهل د 1815.2ركم اهلت س ي اهل د لأصل ا دصام اارجح ب لأصام الحرة هتصل اله )تبنخفع اه

% , ةذا تانخفظت اهلت ق اهضوكتق هلأصام اا اجق ي  بواصق ك    4.9اي بةنخف ض سضبوي  2018( نلؼق بنم يق اهل د 1908.8)

% مل انق مم اهلت ق اهضوكتق هلأصام اا اجق ي  نم يق اهل د اا ض ي 7.5ي ب نخف ض سضبوي ملت ا وين ا ؤ 14.9بله  2019بنم يق اهل د 

2018.  

 

تكىه اهرغم من اصو راا اواء اهضوق اا ل  بوقحرة غحر مرطتق تمل ن قي من شح اهضتوهق اهلازمق هودر ىي فل  بصو رت اهفرهق ي  

 صو راا ق تبية و الحلوٌ ااوي ملق اوجاق اهـرتف الإكوص ويق ااوغحرة .اهل ل كىه بقخ ذ الإجراءات اهي فتق هل د فـق كىه الإ 

 

 بله م  نص وا بهتي من قل د  مضو ر هاذا اهوػن ي  ؿل كت وة ص خن الجلاهق 
ً
تي  الخو د سضإٌ الله اهلى  اهل ير ؤ  يوفلن  ج تل 

 االً ك   الله اهث سي بن الحضح  االـم خفـي الله تاك ه.

 
 

 

 زئِع مجلع الإلازة                                         

 اط ةعُل عِس ى للُدك                                                                                                                
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رررس مجرلررع الإ   2020قالخطت ايظخقدلُت لعةم  2019عً أع رررةى الشسلررت لعررررةم  لازة الظىررررروي جقسٍ

 
 

 ايظةَ ين النسام، خضساث الظةلة

 

 قدتي ػت ق تبل  ،

 

 د هىم قلر ره اهضنوي اهو ل  كن تا  يل،  هلاتعق اهل مق اهل وي كفر اهرابمجو  ق اهضنوي ي  الإ  يضر مةلط الاوااة ا  يرخن بىم

 ،  2019ل د لك  ٌ اهفرهق هؤ
ً
 قاهفرو ت ااص اة تاال يحر المح صبت( فلرة )ب( من تللت  ت افص ح 4وة )لاخي د اا  تذهً بص ن وا

 . 2004تمل يحر اهو كتم هضنق 

 

:
ً
 : قحجم الإطد  ةز السأط ةلي قعدل ايوظفين، ت السئِظُت قأمةلنهة الجغسافُتقصف أوشطت الشسل أقلا

 أوشطت الشسلت السئظُت : - أ

 تبرؤصااا  ٌ ملااا ااه كفااارة ملاياااح  2006ل ماااق يااا  شاااار ؤذاا مااان كااا د اهضااا ة ق اا   اصااا ثهااالأتااق اا هتاااق تالإ  اهااا لاوقإصضااات شااارهق 

، تضااا ه اهفااارهق هلوصاااوٌ الاااه مي ناااق مرموكاااق يااا  صاااوق ك ااا   ااااا ل  ت دصاااواق الإكلت تاااق مااان خااالاٌ سفااا ػ هم  ختاااث وينااا ا ؤاوساااي ، 

 م  تخضاا ب اهغحاارلحضاا   اهوصاا ػق اا هتااق ت اا  يىاا :فختص اا نوخااق هااا  ماان ك اال ةتعااق دتااق اا هتااق اقو ثاال ؤسفااؼق اهفاارهق تاهتاار ت 

 الحصااوٌ كىااه ، بوااة الإصاا ث  ات  اهو و اال كىااه اهااا م ت 
ً
 اال ماان ك   قاارختص تصااتؽ ملاارف هاا ى اه واصاا ت دجنبتااق ه اا  قاام ماااخرا

يولااا اض مااام  تب ااا  لا هودلتااام غ ي همااا  تقل  ااات بخوت جااا ت مضااا ث ر م  تذهاااًتضااا ه هلووصااام ،ختاااث ؤ  اهفااارهق  ةتعاااق دتااق اا هتاااق

 . ك نو  دتااق اا هتق

 

 ايواقع الجغسافُت يهةجب الشسلت قعدل موظفيهة  : - ب

اهوصؽ اهوة اي  –ت لم فرق اهفرهق ي  مد فـق اهساك ء  ، ش اق ب ايط -قلم مي قن اهفرهق اهرث ضتق ي  كّ    منؼلق اهصو فتق

 ةكفااار  يااا  اهفااارق اهرث سااا يت  لاااد كااا و اااااوؿفح  ، اونتاااق اها شااا تقخااا الم اا لىاااق د يااا  تلا يوجااا  هاااا  ؤي فااارتق شااا اق بااا ب اهاااواو ،  –

 .ت موؿفح  ي  فرق اهساك ء  ح موؿف

 

 حجم الإطد  ةز السأط ةلي : - ث

 .( وين ا 4,893,228) م لد 2019نم يق ك د ختى لفرهق هرؤص  ل  اه ص ث  احجم الإ بلد 
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ً
 : هةللشسمةث الخةبعت قطدُعت ع لهة قمجةلاث وشةطةتقصف  :ثةهُة

 الشسلت الخةبعت قملنُتهة : - أ

( بوااااااااا ا   30101: تهااااااااا  شااااااااارهق ذات مضااااااااااتهتق مدااااااااا توة ، م اااااااااجلق قدااااااااات اهاااااااااركم ) صاااااااااواا اهفااااااااارق هلوةااااااااا اهشااااااااارهق 

وينااااا ا ؤاوسااااااي ، م لوهااااااق ب هي مااااال ماااااان ك اااااال شااااارهق اهاااااا لاو هاااااالأتااق اا هتااااااق  1000، بااااارؤش ماااااا ٌ ملاااااا ااه  03/10/2012

 ص ث  ا .تالإ 

 موقع الشسلت قعدل موظفيهة : - ب

مرهس اهفرهق اهرث سا ي ب وكام شارهق اها لاو هالأتااق اا هتاق تالإصا ث  ا ، تلا يوجا  ماوؿفح  ها ى اهفارهق ت اوم بوااهما  

من ك ل شرهق اه لاو هالأتااق اا هتاق تالإصا ث  ا ، تلا يوجا  فارتق ؤخارى هلفارهق واخال اا لىاق الااونتاق اها شا تق ؤت 

 خ اجا  .

 ةط الشسلت : طدُعت ع ل قمجةلاث وشقصف لأوشطت ق  - ث

( وتناام ، ت و ثاال 4.690( اد ق ناق ماان ؤااضا ي ناا كوا ب ضا خق )24( خاوض اكاام )676ق ولاً اهفاارهق كؼلاق ؤاض اكاام )

سف غ اهفرهق اهرث س ي ب ساكق ؤشج ا مث رة ، تتضو م الإنو لم ، تق لً دمواٌ اانلوهي تغحار اانلوهاي اهلازماي هاا  ، 

 بإ  اهفرهق هم ق  اش ؤي سف غ خلا
ً
 .  2019ٌ اهل د كل  

:
ً
 :قموظفو ملازة العلُة ذقق الظلطت الخىفُرًت ةأعضةء مجلع ملاز   ثةل ة

فُت عً مل منه ة : - أ  أعضةء مجلع الإلازة قهدرة حعسٍ

 اط ةعُل عِس ى اط ةعُل للُدك /ايهىدض زئِع مجلع الإلازة

خ قمهةن ايُ ل  ./ اهل ش 1950مواهت  ك د  : جةزٍ

 .1978اهولاي ت ااود ة دمر ىتق ك د  –ي هوا وش ةن صق م نتق ج ملق فلوا  ا اه تهتق/ مت مي ب : الشهةلاث العل ُت

 الخبراث الع لُت :

 .1982 – 1979 ، اهضلوويق –اهفرهق اهضلوويق هلأبد ث تاهون تق الخبر  م ير مفرتق -

 .2010-1982اهضلوويق,  –مض ف ا فني "ماصضق محمد اه دري" شرهق مل تلات بسف ثتق اهر  ض -

 . 2014-1998، الإم اات اهلربتق ااود ة –وبي  ي  كظو ج لتق ااان صح  -

 .2014 -1998 ،شرهق اه لاو هلخ م ت اهؼ تق،  اث ط مةلط بوااة -

 .2014-2002 ، م ير ك د شرهق اه لاو هلخ م ت اهؼ تق -

 .2014-2006،  اث ط ةتعق اا ير ن شرهق اه لاو الخظراء هلاص ث  اات اهلل ا ق -

 .1998 -1997 ، شرهق اه لاو هلخ م ت اهؼ تق ،  ثن اث ط مةلط بوااةن -

 و ا خي.ته 04/2016شرهق الإن  ء اهلربتق هلوة اة تالاص ث  اات اهل اتق  كظو مةلط بوااة -

 و ا خي.ته 2014شرهق وااهم هلإص ث  ا منذ ك د  كظو مةلط بوااة -
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س العقةزي قٍ  لهةالظةلة /شسلت صدف الددس لل مجلع الإلازةهةئب زئِع   ظُد / طةمس ًوطف مةًد خ ةل .ال خطوٍ

 

خ قمهةن ايُ ل  ./ ك    1968: مواهت  ك د  جةزٍ

 

 . 1991بي هوا وش كلود م هتق تمصرفتق ج ملق اهحرمون ك د الشهةلاث العل ُت : 

 .1995م جضوحر مد ص ق اك  ٌ ج ملق نتو وان ك د                                          

  الخبراث الع لُت :

 و ا خي.هت  1991 , ي  اهؼ بم اارهس ق ن ثن اا ير اهل د تشر ً -

 .2011 - 1999 , هن ا م ير  شرهق خ  و اهلل ا ق  -

 تهو ا خي.  2004,ن وي اهؼحرا  اهفراع  االيي الااوسي  كظو مةلط الامن ء تاث ط اهاتعق الاواا ق -

 هو ا خي. 2005, يق كظو ج لتق اج ٌ الاك  ٌ الااونتق اهىن -

 .هو ا خي - 2012 , الإن  ء اهلربتق هلوة اة تالإص ث  اات اهل اتقكظو مةلط بوااة شرهق  -

 .تهو ا خي 2014 , ه تهتق ااش اهىن يق ااا كظو ةتعق م ير ن -

 .تهو ا خي 2015 ,شرهق اهوخلتص تاهنلل الااونتق  كظو مةلط بوااة -

 

ف جوفُق /الظُدمجلع الإلازة :  عضو   السقاشدٍ خ د شسٍ

خ قمهةن ايُ ل   ./ اهساك ء 1958مواهت  ك د  : جةزٍ

 .ج ملق اهحرمون/ ااب  داو   –بي هوا وش اكوص و  الشهةلاث العل ُت :

 الخبراث الع لُت :

 .2010 -1988 ، اهضلوويق اهر  ض –اه نً اهضلووي هلإص ث  ا  ،  وكق الخ م ت ااصرفتق هلأفراو تم ير اارهس اهرث س ياث ط مة -

 . 2011-2010 ، لجنق اهصحق تاه  عق تلجنق اهؼ كق كظوت  مةلط اهنواب داوسي اهض وش كفر ي  كظو ص بم -

 . 4/2014  - 2002 شرهق اه لاو هلخ م ت اهؼ تق د.ق.د كظو مةلط بوااة -

 . تهو ا خي  2012, منذ ك د اث ط لج   اهو كتم ت اهترشتذ ت ااي فإتت كظو مةلط اوااة اه نً اهوة اي الااوسي  -

 . 06/2016 - 2012 , شرهق المج وكق اهلربتق الااونتق هلوإمح  ن ثن اث ط مةلط الاوااة -

 .11/2015 - 2012 ، ل اتقالان  ء اهلربتق هلوة اة تالاص ث  اات اه شرهق اث ط مةلط بوااة -

 .مصر –كظو مةلط بوااة شرهق الجس رة هويو ن تبوااة مد فف دتااق اا هتق -

 .مصر –الجس رة هو اتٌ دتااق اا هتق  شرهق اث ط مةلط بوااة -

 تهو ا خي.  06/2016منذ ق ا    , مةلط بوااة اهفرهق اهوػنتق هصن كق اهيلوا ن د.ق.د اث ط  -

 تهو ا خي . 04/2017منذ ك د  فرهق اهلربتق هصن كق دانتوداه كظو مةلط بوااة -

 . م ن الا هلحزا ت الجراخق اهوة تلتق ت الجل يق  مرهسي   اث ط ةتعق اا ير ن -

 اه تهتق .اث ط ةتعق اا ير ن ي  اا ااش اهىن يق  -

 ج ملق ماقي.ي   كظو مةلط الامن ء -
 

 

http://sdc.com.jo/arabic/index.php?option=com_public&Itemid=28&member_info=131225
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ةض ل مجلع الإلازةعضو    ظُد / اًةل غصوب ح ُل العظلي.ال لخجةزة قمطد  ةز قٍ  لهةالظةلة /شسلت لقم السٍ

خ قمهةن ايُ ل  / اهل ش. 1966مواهت  ك د  : جةزٍ

 1986الااو  ك د  -بي هوا وش بوااة ؤك  ٌ/ بكوص و تبخص ء/ الج ملق الااونتق/ ك     الشهةلاث العل ُت :

 1989مصر ك د  –/ الج ملق الامر ىتق ب هل ةرة  ةم جضوحر بواا                                           

 الخبراث الع لُت : 

 .1992 – 1989الام اات اهلربتق ااود ة,  -ط بؽ اثو    تتضو م بنً اافرق، وبي -

 .1999 – 1992م ير واثرة الاثو    بنً اااصضق اهلربتق ااصرفتق )داو ( ك   ,  -

 .2007 – 1999رفتق اهوة ا ق اه نً اهلربي اهوػني، اهر  ض اهضلوويق ن ثن م ير ك د  اث ط مة وكق الخ م ت ااص -

 .2011 – 2007ن ثن اهرث ط اهونفتذي اث ط مة وكق الخ م ت اه نىتق هلفرو ت اهىبرى اه نً الاةى  الااوسي,  -

 و ا خي.هت  2011,م ير ك د, اه نً اهلربي الإصلامي اه تل   -

 و ا خي.هت  CAFRAJ  ,2012داو كظو غرفق اهوة اة تاهصن كق اهفرسضتق ي   -

 و ا خي.هت  INJAZ  2012,كظو مةلط ؤمن ء انة ز هلل ل اهف  بي اهوؼوع  -

 و ا خي.هت  2013,  صتراقتةت ت داوسيكظو ك مل ه ى منو ى الإ  -

 و ا خق.هت  2015,  كظو ج لتق اج ٌ الاك  ٌ الااونتح  -

 و ا خي . هت  2015كظو مةلط اوااة صن تق قوفحر اهبري  الااوسي, منذ  -

 تهو ا خي. 2018كظو مةلط ؤمن ء صن تق دم   اضول ل ديو د , -

 

 ظُد / اخ د محمد مد ول الأخ د .ال الظةلة /شسلت الد ل للخدمةث الطدُت قٍ  لهة مجلع الإلازةعضو 

 

خ قمهةن ايُ ل  اهساك ء ./  1984مواهت  ك د :  جةزٍ

 

 د 2006ملق اهحرمون ك د بي هوا وش مد ص ق ج :  الشهةلاث العل ُت 

 IIA)كظو ملا  اا كلح  اه اخلتح  )                                         

  الخبراث الع لُت :

 د. 2009 -2007–م كم واخى  ه ى صلؼق منؼلق اهلل ق الإكوص ويق الخ صق  -

 د. 2015-2012 ,اهضلوويق –م كم واخى  ه ى مة وكق شرو ت ف ٌ اهلربتق اهل بظق اهر  ض  -

 د 2015-2014 ,اهضلوويق  –اا ير اا ل  هفرهق اهرملق هلخ م ت اهؼ تق المح توة اهر  ض  -

 د. 1/2018 -8/2016 ,م كم واخى  ي  شرهق اه لاو هلخ م ت اهؼ تق د.ق.د  -

 د. 9/2018 -9/2016 ,د.ق.د  اا ير اهل د ب هوو هق ي  شرهق اه لاو هلخ م ت اهؼ تق  -

  و ا خي .ته 2017-9د.ق.د . اه لاو هلخ م ت اهؼ تق  اا ير اهل د ي  شرهق -



      
 

 

س الظىوي    2019 عشس السابعالخقسٍ

12 

 

 ظُد / أخ د ص ح عطة الله السحُ ةث .ال مجلع الإلازةعضو 

 
خ قمهةن ايُ ل  ./ ك    1951مواهت  ك د :  جةزٍ

 . 1978 اهولاي ت ااود ة دمر ىتق -قىض ش  -كوص و ج ملق ةتوصت  بش و بي هوا  الشهةلاث العل ُت :

 ع لُت :الخبراث ال

 .1983 -1980 اهضلوويق -الخبر -, صتتي بنً  م ير اهل لت ت -

 .1985 -1983اهضلوويق  -اهر  ض -م ير اهل لت ت الاهىترتنتق, اه نً اهضلووي دمر يي )صتتي بنً(  -

 .1991 -1985اهضلوويق  -اهر  ض -اه ضاتلات اه نىتق, اه نً اهضلووي دمر يي )صتتي بنً( م ير ي  -

 .1993 -1991اهضلوويق  -ل , شرهق صف اي  اهر  ضاا يراا  -

 .1997 -1993اهضلوويق  -اث ط مة وكق دص ث  ا, اه نً اهضلووي اهوة اي اهر  ض  -

 .2001 -1997اه نً اهضلووي دمر يي اهر  ض اهضلوويق  -م ير اه ضاتلات, اانؼلي اهوصؼى  -

 .2008 – 2003 س ي اهر  ض اهضلوويقاه نً اهضلووي اهفرس -م ير اه ضاتلات, اانؼلي اهوصؼى  -

 . 2009داو   -اث ط مةلط اوااة اهلو  هلاص ث  ا ك    -

 ق ا خي. ت 2008 اهضلوويق -شر ً تاا ير اهونفت ي, ه اا الج اتٌ هل فر تاهووزيم  اهر  ض -

، تاهر  ض.وتاات ك ي ة مم صتتي بنً ي  اهل لت ت تالإثو    تالخس نق تالاوااة ي  ؤج ن ، هن   صنغ فواه  -  ، اصؼن وٌ

 ظُد /محمد زشُد ذًةب خظً .ال مجلع الإلازةعضو 

 

خ قمهةن ايُ ل  اهيو ت  ./  1982: مواهت  ك د  جةزٍ

 

                           2004ج ملق اهحرمون ك د  بوااة م هتق–بكوص و بي هوا وش :   الشهةلاث العل ُت

  الخبراث الع لُت :

 د. 2012 -2008–اهضلوويق -هل اتق لأن  ن اه هو يل المح توه )ان بيو( اهر  ض م ير خض ب ت ب هفرهق ا -

 د. 2014-2012 ,اهضلوويق –اا ير اا ل  ب هفرهق اهل اتق لأن  ن اه هو يل المح توة  )ان بيو(  اهر  ض  -

 د 2017-2014 ,اهضلوويق  –ااراكن اا ل  هل ة وكق شرو ت ف ٌ اهلربتق اهل بظق اهر  ض  -

 تهو ا خي . -2017 ,اهضلوويق  – ير الإوااة اا هتق هل ة وكق شرو ت ف ٌ اهلربتق اهل بظق اهر  ض م -

 . 7/2019ااااا 11/2017 ,تاث ط لجنق اهو كتم  شرهق اه لاو هلخ م ت اهؼ تق د.ق.د كظو مةلط بوااة  -
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فُت عً مل منهم  العلُة ذقي الظلطت الإلازة - ب  :الخىفُرًت ق هدرة حعسٍ

 ظُد / ط ير جوفُق خ د السقاشدة .الدًس العةم اي

خ قمهةن ايُ ل  ./ ك    1955مواهت  ك د :  جةزٍ

 .1978بي هوا وش آواب ج ملق بغ او ك د  : الشهةلاث العل ُت

 الخبراث الع لُت :

 .صنق ي  مة ٌ اه نون تالاص ث  اات 25خبرة  -

 .ودن ثن اث ط مةلط بوااة اهفرهق اهلربتق هصن كق دانت -

 اث ط مةلط بوااة شرهق الإن  ء اهلربتق هلوة اة تالإص ث  اات اهل اتق. -

 .كظو مةلط اوااة مرهس اي اق الاتااق اا هتق -

 ظُد / طةزلم محمد لاقل المحدظب .المدًس لائسة الوطةطت 

خ قمهةن ايُ ل :  . / ك    1974مواهت  ك د  جةزٍ

 .ق الاصراءج مل –مد ص ق  شو بي هوا  الشهةلاث العل ُت :

   الخبراث الع لُت :

 .ل ة شرو ت خ م ت م هتقم ير واثرة اهوص ػق ه -

 .اهلربتق هلوة اة تالإص ث  اات اهل اتقمةلط بوااة شرهق الإن  ء  اث ط -

 .اهوة ل ت الإص ث  ا ق ااوخصصق مةلط بوااة شرهق  كظو -

 ظُد / أخ د عدد السخُم مصطفى لغ ش  .الايدًس ايةلي بةلإهةبت 

خ قمهةن ايُ ل ج  . / ك    1979مواهت  ك د  :ةزٍ

 ج ملق اهس وونق . - مد ص ق بي هوايط  الشهةلاث العل ُت :

 .اث ط كضم مد ص ق ي  ك ة شرو ت خ م ت م هتق  الخبراث الع لُت :

 
ً
 بُةن بؤط ةء لدةز مةلهي الأطهم ايصدزة مً قدل الشسلت قعدل الأطهم اي لولت لهل منهم :: زابعة

 : مل انق مم اهضنق اا طتق من اؤش اا ٌ% 5 كنالاصام تاهتي قس   سض ق مض ة تمم  ا م هيي ه  -

 مطم حظلظل
عدل الأطهم 

31/12/2018 
 اليظدت

عدل الأطهم 

31/12/2019 
 اليظدت

%27.83 2,783,132 27.58% 2,757,932 شسٍف جوفُق خ د السقاشدٍ 1  

%22.31 2,231,017 شسل, الد ل للخدمةث الطدُ, 2  2,231,017 22.31%  

ةض للخجةزة ق مطد  ةز 3 %12.04 1,204,338 شسلت لقم السٍ  1,204,338 12.04%  

ص بً خ د بً ابساَُم ايشعل 4 %7.00 700,000 عددالعصٍ  700,000 7.00%  
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ً
الم قخصتهة مً الظولم المحلي قلرلو خصتهة مً الأطو  ةض ً قطةع وشةطه : الوضع الخىةفس ي للشسلت خةمظة

  : الخةزحُت ان قحد

 تصا ػق مرخصاق ك ملاق شارهق( 58) من مة وق كو  اة  بخ ى شرو ت اهوص ػق اهل ملقةب ه حرتل ل اهفرهق ي  ؿل تطم قن فس ي 

ه اا  ةااو  2019ماان قدلتاام مرق ااق جتاا ة ماان ختااث حجاام اهواا اتٌ ياا  بواصااق ك اا   خاالاٌ كاا د اهفاارهق ق ىناات ت ، ياا  بواصااق ك اا   

 ٌ  .اون ه   موضح ب لج ت

 . اهفرهق لا ق ولً ؤي خصق ي  دصواق الخ اجتق تيلو   سف ػا  كىه اهو اتٌ ي  بواصق ك   ختث ؤ   -

 جداقى الظولم  جداقى الشسلت الظىت
خصت 

 الشسلت )%(

الترجِب مً خُث 

 حجم الخداقى 

2015 220,562,908 6,837,413,575 3.2%  8 

2016 117,506,361 4,680,768,698 2.5%  12 

2017 92,818,609 5,906,953,172 %1.6 16 

2018 59,735,035 4,699,152,689 %1.3 17 

2019 56,539,489 3,262,617,067 1.7%  23 

 طولم بوزصت ع ةن ايةلي 

 
ً
 ) أق ع  ء زئِظينق/على موزلًً مددلًً لزحت الإعخ ةل  :طةلطة

ً
 قخةزحُة

ً
%  10ٌشهل  ( في خةى لون ذلومدلُة

ةث ق/أق ايدُعةثاح ةلي ايش فؤلثر مً   أق الإًسالاث على الخوالي : ترً

 يفيلو   يوج  بكو  و كىه مواوين مد وين ؤت لا   
ً
 تخ اجت 

ً
اافتري ت  تالإيراوات   ل  بج % فإهثر من 10ك لاء اث ضح  مدلت 

 .الخ صق ب هفرهق 

 
ً
 الح ةًت الحنومُت قالإمخُةشاث التي جخ خع بهة الشسلت :  :طةبعة

يق خيومتق قو وم  م  اهفرهق ؤت اموت زات قو وم  م  اهفرهق ؤت ؤي من منوة هم  ب وجن اهلوانح  تالإنـ ق تصف لأي خ   - ؤ

ي من اهفرهق ؤت ؤ موت زات قو وم  م ايوج  ؤي خ  يق خيومتق ؤت لا ؤت غحرة  مم الإش اة اله اهفترة اهتي يضري كليم  ذهً : 

 . دنـ ق تغحرة منوة هم  ب وجن اهلوانح  ؤت 

لا يوج  ؤي براءات بختراق ؤت خلوق تصف لأي براءات بختراق ؤت خلوق بموت ز قم الحصوٌ كليم  من ك ل اهفرهق :  - ب

 بموت ز قم الحصوٌ كليم  من ك ل اهفرهق.
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ً
 قصف للقسازاث الصةلزة عً الحنومت أق ايىظ ةث الدقلُت قمدى جطدُق معةًير الجولة الدقلُت بةلشسلت : :ثةمىة

ؤت منوة هم  ؤت ك اهم  غحرة  ها  ؤجر م وي كىه ك ل اهفرهق   ؤتص واة كن الحيومق ؤت اانـ  ت اه تهتق كرااات تصف لأي  - ؤ

ت اهفرهق ؤ غحرة  ها  ؤجر م وي كىه ك ل لا يوج  ؤي كرااات ص واة كن الحيومق ؤت اانـ  ت اه تهتق ؤت  اهون فضتق : 

 .اهون فضتق ك اهم  منوة هم  ؤت

 . هفرهقب مل يحر الجووة اه تهتق يوم قؼ تملا ؼ تم اهفرهق ال يحر الجووة اه تهتق : الإفص ح كن ق  - ب

 

 
ً
ب الخؤَُل ق  ين قعدل ايوظفين قاسامجُقطُةطت الخعللشسلت الهُهل الخىظُمي  : جةطعة  لل وظفي الشسلت :الخدزٍ

 الهُهل الخىظُمي : - أ
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 :ت العل ُ موظفي الشسلت قفئةث مئَ تهمعدل  - ب

  تي  م  يى  بت   ب اةلاهمم اهلل تق :( 12) م  مة وكي 31/12/2019 من مخولف اهوخصص ت تهغ يق اهفرهقموؿفي  بلد ك و      

 

 
 

 

ببسامج الخؤَُل ق  - ث  :يوظفي الشسلت الخدزٍ

 ا .ك  ه ه  مم ملرفق ش ملق ي  ج تلإ قلود اهفرهق بو ا ن موؿفيم  ي  ج تم ؤكض د اهفرهق هتويوّ   -1

هلاا د، خاالاٌ ا قلااود اهفاارهق بةلحاا ق موؿفيماا  اهااذين تضااو ع  ػ تلااق ك لااام اهوة ياا  تاهوؼااو ر باا تاات ق ا بتااق -2

 تيلو   ذهً كىه م ى بصوف وة اهفرهق من ةذه اه تاات تطرتاهم  هل ل ااوؿف.

 
ً
 : قصف لل خةطس التي جخعسض لهة الشسلت :عةشسا

، تاهتاي ق اوج كان ن المخا ػر يضامى المخا ػر اانوـ اقهناوق ماشرهون  هغحرةا  مان شارو ت اهوصا ػق تالخا م ت اا هتاق دخارى قولرض 

كىه  تب هو ل ،  بفيل ك د بدتث قاجر كىه ؤصواق اؤش اا ٌ اه اخلتق ت/ؤت الخ اجتق ضت صتق تالاجو  كتقكوص ويق تاهاهـرتف الا

ل دتااق اا هتااق  ؤصاال ا دتااق اا هتااق
ّ
 فعااق اهل االاء اهتااي قول ماال ماام اهفاارهق ياا  مةاا ٌ اهو و اال كىااه اهااا م  تاهتااي تفااي

ً
تخصوصاا 

 اهظ  ن ت اهرث ضتق ها .

 

 قالأخداث الهةمت التي مسث خ ى الظىت ايةلُت : 2019عةم التي خققتهة الشسلت اث مهجةش  :عشسخةلي 

 2019ويناااا ا خاااالاٌ كاااا د   56,539,489 بلااااد حجاااام قاااا اتٌ اهفاااارهق  :مدع ررررت بةلازقررررةم الإهجررررةشاث الترررري خققتهررررة الشررررسلت - أ

 % من حجم اهضوق .1.70كىه شرو ت اهوص ػق اان فضق بدصق  23بترق ن اكم 

 هرئ  ت التي مسث على الشسلت خ ى الظىت ايةلُت :الأخداث الهةم - ب
ً
قم   ق اهفرهق ي  اهض   اه ثوب ب هووصم بمو اوا

 . 2018ب د فـق اهساك ء بنم يق ك د بصولؼ ب ااس   من اهل لاء بل  كت د اهفرهق بةفوو ح فركا   2019خلاٌ ك د 

 ثةوي عشس: الع لُةث ذاث طدُعت غير ايخنسزة :

   .(2019  ؤي ك لت ت ذات ػ تلق غحر موىراة ها  ؤي ؤجر م ل  خلاٌ اهضنق اا هتق )لا قوج         

رل العلمي   ح ةلي عدل موظفي الشسلت ا فسع الصزقةء الفسع السئِس ي  ايئَ

 7 1 6 شا وة اه ي هوا وش

 2 0 2 )وبلود(شا وة ولتق مةو م

 3 1 2 تم  وت   ج نو ق ك مق

 12 2 10 المج وق
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الظلظلت الصمىُت لازاةح أق الخظةئس المحققت قالأزاةح ايوشعت قصةفي خقولم ايظةَ ين قأطعةز الأقزالم  :ثةلث عشس

 ايةلُت ايصدزة مً قدل الشسلت :

 : صةفي مزاةح)الخظةئس( بعد المخصصةث قالضسائب - أ

 :مزاةح ايوشعت  - ب

 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 الدُرةن / الظىت

 لايوج  لايوج  لايوج  لايوج  لايوج  الااب ح اهنل يق ااوزكق 

 صةفي خقولم ايظةَ ين :  - ث

 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 الدُرةن / الظىت

 8,354,610 8,669,292 8,644,327 9,822,930 9,553,362 خلوق ااض ة ح  ص ي 

 اطعةز مقزالم ايةلُت ايصدزة مً قدل الشسلت : - ج

 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 الدُرةن / الظىت

 0.835 0.867 0.864 0.982 0.955 اهلت ق اه فتريق هضام اهفرهق

 0.79 1.050 1.050 0.67 0.520 صلر بغلاق صام اهفرهق
 

 .2018مقةزن مع هخةئج عةم  2019عةم ع ةى قهخةئج أ يايةل لل سلص جدلُل   زابع عشس:

 اليظب
 الظىواث

2018 2019 

)ااوجووات ااو اتهق/ااؼلوب ت ااو اتهق( )مرة(  2.591 2.067 سض ق اهو اتٌ

 2.311 1.858 اص ة اهنل يق تاهذمم اا ينق/ااؼلوب ت ااو اتهق( )مرة()الا سض ق اهضتوهق اهضريلق

 2,274,631 2,168,932 ااؼلوب ت ااو اتهق()وين ا( -اؤش اا ٌ اهل مل)ااوجووات ااو اتهق

 0.125 0.17 )داص ة اهنل يق/ااؼلوب ت ااو اتهق( )مرة(سض ق اهنل يق

%18.99   ااوجووات(سض ق اا يونتق )ااؼلوب ت/اج  ل  15.33%  

%23.45 اا يونتق / خلوق االىتق  18.11%  

(%0.76) اهل ث  كىه الإص ث  ا )ص ي  اهربذ بل  اهظر  ق / بج  ل  دصوٌ (  0.122%  

(%0.94) اهل ث  كىه خلوق ااض ة ح  ) ص ي  اهربذ بل  اهظر  ق / خلوق ااض ة ح  (  0.145%  

(0.008) ( اهضنقخصق اهضام من ابذ )خض اة  0.001 
 

 

 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 الدُرةن / الظىت

 12,094 (81,808) (620,945) 101,100 572,374 ص ي  الااب ح)الخض ثر(
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 : تللشسلالهةمت  تايظخقدلُالخطوزاث  خةمع عشس:

ع الجدًدة :  - أ  مان اهل الاء يا  و فاق مةا لات الخا م ت اا هتاق اهتاي ب هضا ّ   الإصاو راا الخوطعةث قايشةزَ
ً
لاصاولؼ ب مس ا ا

اهووصااام ياااا  ، ب لإطاااا فق الاااه  اهاااا م  ، اهو و ااال كىاااه، بوااة الاصاااا ث  ااهوصااا ػق اا هتاااق -قراختصااااا  تهااا :قااام الحصاااوٌ كىاااه 

 .تالإنؼلاق ندو دصواق الإكلت تقفوذ فرتق ج ي ة  ف ل مة ٌ خ مق اهوص ػق اا هتق ه

 

ص ضاااا ه لاصااااوى  ٌ الحصااااوٌ كىااااه باااا ا  قااااراختص الخاااا م ت اا هتااااق ياااا  طااااوء اهوؼااااواات  الخطررررت ايظررررخقدلُت للشررررسلت : - ب

 . تالإخوت ج ت هل رخلق اال لق بدتث قص ذ اهفرهق من فضق هي فق شرو ت الخ م ت اا هتق

 

اه داااث كاااان فااارة اصااا ث  ا ق قدلااام ك ثاااا  م وااا ز هلفااارهق مااان خاااالاٌ  جوقعرررةث مجلرررع الإلازة لىخرررةئج أع ررررةى الشرررسلت : - ث

 تذهً ب تاه ص ض ةم بس  وة ايراوات اهفرهق . ي  مض ة  ت اصتراقتةتق ؤت قإص ط شرو ت ق بلقاه خوٌ 

 :أحعةب مدققي الحظةبةث طةلض عشس:

) دد ( ، تااق اا هتاق تالإصا ث  ا  تذهً كن شرهق اه لاو هلأ   ( وين ا12,180م لد ) 2019بلغت اتل ب مىون ق كتم الحض ب ت هل د 

تلا يوجاااا  ايااااق اتلاااا ب م فوكااااق ؤت مضااااودلق هل اااا كلح  كاااان ناااا ا كاااان شاااارهق صااااواا اهفاااارق هلوةاااا اه ) اهو بلاااق (  ( وي500ه ااا  تبلغاااات )

 خ م ت ؤخرى.
 

بُررةن بعرردل الأقزالم ايةلُررت ايصرردزة مررً قدررل الشررسلت قاي لولررت مررً قدررل أعضررةء مجلررع الإلازة قأ ررخة  طررةبع عشررس: 

 شسمةث ايظُطس عليهة مً قدل أي منهم مقةزه, مع الظىت الظةبقت :الإلازة العلُة ذقي الظلطت الخىفُرًت قأقةزبهم ، قال

 : الأقزالم ايةلُت ايصدزة مً قدل الشسلت قاي لولت مً قدل أعضةء مجلع الإلازة  - أ

 

 مطررررم

 

 الجيظُت

 

 الصفت

 عدل الأطهم

2018 2019 

 2,783,132 2,757,932 ػ ت   الااونتق .شسٍف جوفُق خ د السقاشدٍ /الظُد

 103,804 103,804 ػ ت   الااونتق  اط ةعُل عِس ى اط ةعُل للُدك الظُد/

ةض للخجةزة قمطد  ةزشسلت لق    م السٍ

 قٍ  لهة الظُد/اًةل غصوب ح ُل العظلي

 الااونتق

 الااونتق

 بكو  اي 

 ػ ت  

1,204,338 

 لا يوج 

1,204,338 

 لا يوج 

س العقةزي    شسلت صدف الددس للخطوٍ

 قٍ  لهة الظُد/طةمس ًوطف مةًد خ ةل

 الااونتق 

 الااونتق

 بكو  اي 

 ػ ت  

79,594 

 لا يوج 

79,594 

  يوج لا

 الد ل للخدمةث الطدُت  شسلت

 قٍ  لهة الظُد/أخ د محمد مد ول الأخ د

 الااونتق

   الااونتق

 بكو  اي 

 ػ ت  

2,231,017 

 لا يوج 

2,231,017 

 لا يوج 

 50,000 50,000 ػ ت   الااونتق الظُد اخ د ص ح عطة الله السحُ ةث

 25,000 25,000 ػ ت   الااونتق الظُد/محمد زشُد ذًةب خظً 
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 : أعضةء مجلع الإلازة أقةزب الأقزالم ايةلُت ايصدزة مً قدل الشسلت قاي لولت مً قدل - ب

 

 أعضةء مجلع الإلازة ق اقساةئهم

 

 صلت القسابت

 

 الجيظُت

 عدل الأطهم

2018 2019 

 ٍف جوفُق خ د السقاشدٍالظُد/ شس 

 لا يوج  لا يوج  ؤاونتق اهستجق صا و ك   اهلس س خلف اهرتاش ه

 لا يوج  لا يوج  ؤاونتق ابن ا    شر ف قوفتم اهرتاش ه

 الظُد/ اط ةعُل عِس ى اط ةعُل للُدك

 2,202 2,202 ؤمر ىتق اهستجق وهت ن صوزا  ؤبح  بحري  متل ض 

 الظُد/ اًةل غصوب ح ُل العظلي

 لا يوج  لا يوج  ؤاونتق اهستجق صلاد محمد ك  اها وي اهنة اتي 

 لا يوج  لا يوج  ااونتق ابني فرح بي و غصوب اهلضى 

 لا يوج  لا يوج  ااونتق ابني نوا بي و غصوب اهلضى 

 لا يوج  لا يوج  ااونتق ابني ةن  بي و غصوب اهلضى 

 الظُد/ طةمس ًوطف مةًد خ ةل

 لا يوج  لا يوج  ااونتق اهستجق ت  ان  اخ   مد وو ك

 لا يوج  لا يوج  ااونتق ابن فتصل ص مر يوصف خ  و

 لا يوج  لا يوج  ااونتق ابني غ وه ص مر يوصف خ  و

 لا يوج  لا يوج  ااونتق ابني مضً ص مر يوصف خ  و

 الظُد/ اخ د ص ح عطةلله السحُ ةث

 يوج  لا لا يوج  ؤاونتق اهستجق ةن  محمد اه حت  ت

 لا يوج     الظُد/ محمد زشُد ذًةب خظً

 لا يوج  لا يوج  ؤاونتق اهستجق مي تفتم فر   اه ضوا 

 لا يوج  لا يوج  ؤاونتق ابن اشت  محمد اشت  خضن

 لا يوج  لا يوج  ؤاونتق ابن ك   اهرخ ن محمد اشت  خضن 

 الظُد/ اخ د محمد مد ول الأخ د

 لا يوج  لا يوج  ؤاونتق اهستجق ص ن ي ص لح مد وو ك ب 

 لا يوج  لا يوج  ااونتق ابني ز ني ؤخ   محمد دخ   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



      
 

 

س الظىوي    2019 عشس السابعالخقسٍ

20 

 
 

 : أ خة  الإلازة العلُة ذقي الظلطت الخىفُرًتالأقزالم ايةلُت ايصدزة مً قدل الشسلت قاي لولت مً قدل  - ث

 عدل الأطهم الوظُفت الجيظُت مطم

2018 

 عدل الأطهم

2019 

 لايوج  25,000 اا ير اهل د ؤاونتق وفُق خ د السقاشدٍط ير ج /الظُد

 لايوج  لايوج  م ير واثرة اهوص ػق ؤاونتق طةزلم محمد لاقل المحدظب /الظُد

 لايوج  لايوج  م ير م ل  ب لإن بق ؤاونتق اخ د عدد السخُم مصطفى لغ ش /الظُد

 
 

 :الإلازة العلُة ذقي الظلطت الخىفُرًت  أقةزب الأقزالم ايةلُت ايصدزة مً قدل الشسلت قاي لولت مً قدل - ث

 

 الإلازة العلُة ق اقساةئهم
 

 صلت القسابت
 

 الجيظُت
 عدل الأطهم

2018 2019 

  الظُد ط ير جوفُق خ د السقاشدٍ

 لا يوج  لا يوج  ؤاونتق اهستجق مي ك س ى ك  ااا ي اهرتاش ه

  الظُد طةزلم "محمد لاقل" الحةج ع س المحدظب

 لا يوج  لا يوج  ؤاونتق اهستجق مرتا  نوا اه ين شح وه ص اه

 لا يوج  لا يوج  ؤاونتق ابنق ق هي ػ اق محمد واتو المح ضن

 لا يوج  لا يوج  ؤاونتق ابن واتو ػ اق محمد واتو المح ضن

 لا يوج  لا يوج  ؤاونتق ابنق فرح ػ اق محمد واتو المح ضن

 لا يوج  لا يوج  اونتقؤ ابن محمد ػ اق محمد واتو المح ضن

  الظُد اخ د عدد السخُم مصطفى لغ ش

 لا يوج  لا يوج  ؤاونتق اهستجق صن ء خضح  محمد ز  ا 

 لا يوج  لا يوج  ؤاونتق ابن ك رت اخ   ك   اهرختم وغ  

 لا يوج  لا يوج  ؤاونتق ابن منذا اخ   ك   اهرختم وغ  

 لا يوج  لا يوج  ونتقؤا  ابن ك   اهرختم اخ   ك   اهرختم وغ  

 لا يوج  لا يوج  ؤاونتق ابن خ   ك   اهرختم وغ  ؤ محمد
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 :أعضةء مجلع الإلازة قأقةزبهم  مً قدلالشسمةث ايظُطس عليهة  - ج

 

 أعضةء مجلع الإلازة ق اقساةئهم

الصفت 

 )الع قت( 

 صلت القسابتق 

 

الشسمةث ايظُطس عليهة 

 مً قدل,

سلت عدل الأطهم اي لولت للش

 ايظُطس عليهة

2018 2019 

ف جوفُق خ د السقاشدٍ  شرهق وتد اهر  ض  كظو مةلط  الظُد/ شسٍ

 شرهق ص ف اه در 

1,204,338 

79,594 

1,204,338 

79,594 

 لا يوج  لا يوج  لا يوج  اهستجق صا و ك   اهلس س خلف اهرتاش ه

 لا يوج  لا يوج  لا يوج  ابن ا    شر ف قوفتم اهرتاش ه

     

 79,594 79,594 شرهق ص ف اه در جلط الم اث ط الظُد/ اط ةعُل عِس ى اط ةعُل للُدك

 لا يوج  لا يوج  لا يوج  اهستجق وهت ن متل ض  صوزا  ؤبح  بحري 

     

ةض للخجةزة قمطد  ةز  لا يوج  لا يوج  لا يوج  كظو شسلت لقم السٍ

 لا يوج  لا يوج  لا يوج  م ثل قٍ  لهة الظُد/ اًةل غصوب ح ُل العظلي

 لا يوج  لا يوج  لا يوج  اهستجق صلاد محمد ك  اها وي اهنة اتي 

 لا يوج  لا يوج  ااونتق ابني فرح بي و غصوب اهلضى 

 لا يوج  لا يوج  ااونتق ابني نوا بي و غصوب اهلضى 

 لا يوج  لا يوج  ااونتق ابني ةن  بي و غصوب اهلضى 

     

 لا يوج  لا يوج  لا يوج  ن ثن اهرث ط  س للخطوٍس العقةزي  شسلت صدف الدد

 لا يوج  لا يوج  لا يوج  م ثل قٍ  لهة الظُد/ طةمس ًوطف مةًد خ ةل

 لا يوج  لا يوج  لا يوج  الصقحت زهة اخ د مد ول عُد 

 لا يوج  لا يوج  لا يوج  ابً فُصل طةمس ًوطف خ ةل

 لا يوج  لا يوج  لا يوج  ابى, غةلٍ طةمس ًوطف خ ةل

 لا يوج  لا يوج  لا يوج  ابى, مظو طةمس ًوطف خ ةل

     

 لا يوج  لا يوج  لا يوج  كظو مةلط شسلت الد ل للخدمةث الطدُت

 لا يوج  لا يوج  لا يوج  م ثل قٍ  لهة الظُد/ اخ د محمد مد ول الأخ د

 لا يوج  لا يوج  لا يوج  اهستجق ص ن ي ص لح مد وو ك ب 

 لا يوج  لا يوج  لا يوج  ابني ز ني ؤخ   محمد دخ   

     

 لا يوج  لا يوج  لا يوج  كظو مةلط الظُد/ اخ د ص ح عطةلله السحُ ةث

 لا يوج  لا يوج  لا يوج  اهستجق ةن  محمد اه حت  ت

     

 لا يوج  لا يوج  لا يوج  كظو مةلط الظُد/ محمد زشُد ذًةب خظً

 لا يوج  لا يوج  لا يوج  اهستجق ه ضوا مي تفتم فر   ا

 لا يوج  لا يوج  لا يوج  ابن اشت  محمد اشت  خضن

 لا يوج  لا يوج  لا يوج  ابن ك   اهرخ ن محمد اشت  خضن 
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 قأقةزبهم : الإلازة العلُة ذقي الظلطت الخىفُرًتالشسمةث ايظُطس عليهة مً قدل  - ل

 

 الإلازة العلُة ق اقساةئهم

 

 الوظُفت

 لت القسابتصق 

 

الشسمةث ايظُطس عليهة 

 ممً قدله

عدل الأطهم اي لولت للشسلت 

 ايظُطس عليهة

2018 2019 

 لا يوج  لا يوج  لا يوج  اا ير اهل د الظُد ط ير جوفُق خ د السقاشدٍ

 لا يوج  لا يوج  لا يوج  اهستجق مي ك س ى ك  ااا ي اهرتاش ه

 لا يوج  لا يوج  لا يوج  م ير واثرة اهوص ػق حدظبالظُد طةزلم "محمد لاقل" ع س الم

 لا يوج  لا يوج  لا يوج  اهستجق ص اه مرتا  نوا اه ين شح وه

 لا يوج  لا يوج  لا يوج  ابنق ق هي ػ اق محمد واتو المح ضن

 لا يوج  لا يوج  لا يوج  ابن واتو ػ اق محمد واتو المح ضن

 لا يوج  لا يوج   يوج لا ابنق فرح ػ اق محمد واتو المح ضن

 لا يوج  لا يوج  لا يوج  ابن محمد ػ اق محمد واتو المح ضن

 لا يوج  لا يوج  لا يوج  م ير م ل  ب لإن بق السخُم مصطفى لغ شعدد اخ د/الظُد

 لا يوج  لا يوج  لا يوج  اهستجق صن ء خضح  محمد ز  ا 

 لا يوج  لا يوج  لا يوج  ابن ك رت اخ   ك   اهرختم وغ  

 لا يوج  لا يوج  لا يوج  ابن منذا اخ   ك   اهرختم وغ  

 لا يوج  لا يوج  لا يوج  ابن ك   اهرختم اخ   ك   اهرختم وغ  

 لا يوج  لا يوج  لا يوج  ابن خ   ك   اهرختم وغ  ؤ محمد
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 : ثةمً عشس:ايصاًة قايهةفآث قالسقاجب

 : 2019ايصاًة قايهةفؤث التي ًخ خع بهة زئِع قأعضةء مجلع الإلازة للعةم  - أ

 

 : 2019للعةم  ظلطت الخىفُرًتأ خة  الإلازة العلُة ذقق الايصاًة قايهةفؤث التي ًخ خع بهة  - ب

 الظفسجىق ث  ايصاًة قايهةفآث السقاجب الوظُفت مطم

 لا يوج  لا يوج  126,000 اا ير اهل د  الظُد ط ير جوفُق السقاشدة 

 لا يوج  لا يوج  35,000 م ير واثرة اهوص ػق  الظُد طةزلم محمد لاقل المحدظب 

 لا يوج  لا يوج  12,250 ل  ب لإن بق م ير م  الظُد اخ د عددالسخُم لغ ش 

 - - 173,250 ايرررجررر وع

 

  

 

 مطررررم

 

 الوظُفت

 

قايصاًة الأحوز 

 قايهةفؤث

 

الخىق ث الداخلُت 

 قالخةزحُت )الظفس(

 4,800 لا يوج  اث ط مةلط الاوااة  اط ةعُل عِس ى اط ةعُل للُدك الظُد/

س العقةزي    شسلت صدف الددس للخطوٍ

 قٍ  لهة الظُد/طةمس ًوطف مةًد خ ةل

اث ط  مةلط   ن ثن

 الاوااة

 4,800 لا يوج 

ةض للخجةزة ق    مطد  ةزشسلت لقم السٍ

 قٍ  لهة الظُد/اًةل غصوب ح ُل العظلي

 4,800 لا يوج  كظو مةلط الاوااة

 الد ل للخدمةث الطدُت  شسلت

 قٍ  لهة الظُد/أخ د محمد مد ول الأخ د

 4,800 لا يوج  كظو مةلط الإوااة

 4,800 لا يوج  كظو مةلط الإوااة الظُد اخ د ص ح عطة الله السحُ ةث

مةلط الاوااة كظو .فُق خ د السقاشدٍشسٍف جو  /الظُد  4,800 لا يوج  

 4,800 لا يوج  كظو مةلط الإوااة الظُد/محمد زشُد ذًةب خظً 

 33,600 المج وع
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 التي لفعتهة الشسلت : الخبرعةث قايىذ جةطع عشس:

 ته  كىه اهندو اهو ل  : ( وين ا    2,000   ) مة وكي م  2019بلغت كت ق اهوبرك ت اا فوكق خلاٌ ك د 

 

 وين ا . 1,000منو ى اهىوي اهثل ي  ب  لد  -1

 وين ا. 1,000ويوا  ابن ء اهىرن ب لد  ج لتق -2

 

عاي قل عقو ال : عشسقن  قالإزجدةطةث التي عقخدتهة الشسلت : شةزَ

 لا يوج  ؤي كلوو ؤت مف ايم ؤت باق  ػ ت قم ببراما  مم ؤي منم  . : الشسمةث الخةبعت أق الشقُقت أق الحلُفت  - أ

 

لا يوجا  ؤي كلااوو  م أق أي موظرف فرري الشرسلت أق أقساررةئهم :زئرِع مجلررع الإلازة أق أعضرةء مجلررع الإلازة أق ايردًس العررة - ب

 . ت باق  ػ ت قم ببراما  مم ؤي منممؤت مف ايم ؤ

 :للشسلت في خ ةًت الدِئت أق خدمت المجخ ع المحلي  تمظةَ  اخدى قعشسقن:

 هؼ تلق تذ ؤت خ مق المجو م المحى ، ق مض ة  ت هلفرهق ي  خ  يق اه  عقلا قوج  ؤيّ 
ً
 .ك ل اهفرهقهً بص ن وا
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س  قعشسقن : اثىةن  :اقسازاث مجلع الإلازة قالإقساز بصحت قلقت قالخ ةى ايعلومةث قالدُةهةث الوازلة بةلخقسٍ

 .2020 اهو هتققتاا هٌ اهضنق لاؤموا جوةر ق ك  قاجر كىه اصو راا ق اهفرهق خؤي و ل د تجو يلر المجلط ب -أ 

 .اك بق فلّ ٌ هلفرهق تكن قوفحر نـ د 2019اتهتوي كن بك او اه ت ن ت اا هتق كن ك د  ضة بيلرّ مةلط الإواا  -ب 

 

 الظُد طةمس ًوطف خ ةل

س العقةزي   م  ل شسلت صدف الددس للخطوٍ

 هةئب زئِع مجلع الإلازة

 الظُد اط ةعُل عِس ى للُدك

 زئِع مجلع الإلازة

 

 

 

 

 الظُد اًةل غصوب ح ُل العظلي

ةض للخجةزة قمطد  ةزم  ل شسلت ل  قم السٍ

 

 

 

 الظُد شسٍف جوفُق السقاشدٍ

 مجلع الإلازة عضو 

 

 

 الظُد/ أخ د محمد مد ول الأخ د

 م  ل شسلت الد ل للخدمةث الطدُت

 

 

 

 الظُد اخ د ص ح عطةلله السحُ ةث

 عضو مجلع الإلازة

 

 

 

 خظً  ذًةب زشُد محمد /الظُد

 عضو مجلع الإلازة

 
 

بصاحق توكاق تبهو ا ٌ االلوما ت تاه ت نا ت اهاوااوة با هولر ر  ث ط مةلط الإوااة تاا ير اهلا د تااا ير ااا ل  ب هفارهقا يلرّ  -لم 

 :2019 اهضنوي هل د

 اخ د عدد السخُم لغ ش /الظُد

 مدًس مةلي بةلإهةبت

 

 السقاشدٍ خ د ط ير جوفُق /الظُد

 ايدًس العةم

 

 

 الظُد اط ةعُل عِس ى للُدك

  جلع الإلازةزئِع م

 

 

لاا د مةلااط الاوااة الااه و فااق اهلاا ملح  ياا  اهفاارهق ب هفااىر الجس اال تكـااتم الاموناا   كىااه جاااووةم اهؼت ااق اا  اهااق اهتااي بااذهوة  ياا  وي

 فظل تااض ة ق ي  انة ح الخؼؽ تاهوصواات اهتي تطلتم  اهفرهق هوؼو ر اهل ل.ل ل تقؼو ره ندو د صبتل وي ومق اه

 يوص ي مةل
ً
ط الاوااة ةتئوىم اهل مق ااوكرة ب اص وكق كىه ااحزانتق اهل ومتق تاه ت ن ت اا هتاق هلضانق اا هتاق اانتمتاق بوا ا   تخو م 

31/12/2019. 
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س الحول ت  جقسٍ

 
 

 :  قدمتاي

ك مت اهفرهق  ، من منؼلم خرة شرهق اه لاو هلأتااق اا هتق تالإص ث  ا ب لإهتزاد بإفظل م  اص ت الحوه ق ي  ص ثر ك لت هم 

بود ي  مضاتهت ت ول ػرف من ؤصح ب ااص لح تخلوكي تكسزت من م  وت اهفف فتق تااض ءهق تااضاتهتق تااض تاة، 

 فإتج ت ب عق خوه تق مثىه لأك  ٌ تؤسفؼق اهفرهق .
 

ق اهلواك  تالإجراءات ذهً ؤ  الحوه ق قوةض  ي   مة وك ، يل  قلر ر الحوه ق من ؤةم من بر اهفف فتق تاهوواصل مم الج اوا 

 فظاهتي يوم ب وجبم  بوااة اهفرهق تاهرك بق كليم ، 
ً
  ض ة حااكن ؤنم  قنـم اهللاك ت بح  مةلط الاوااة تالإوااة اهونفتذيق ت  لا

 ب اضاتهتق المجو لتق هلفرهق. تيل ل ةذا اهولر ر كىه بت   م  قل د هلج اوا ت  تذ 
ً
لنى ؤيظ 

ُ
تؤصح ب ااص لح الاخر ن، ت

 هل ض ة ح  ملرفق م  قلود بي اهفرهق ي  ةذا الإػ ا.

 

خوه ق  تب   يو  ش ى مم تللت   قي  مة ٌ الحوه ك ل اهفرهق   اهتي قد و بػ اؤهتق قؼ تم كواك  الحوه ق ي ن تٌ ةذا اهولر ر 

و  ةتعق دتااق اا هتق اكم /ب( من ك ن118/ ( ت)12اهص واة ب لإص ن و لأخي د اا وقح  ) 2017اهفرو ت ااض ة ق اا اجق هضنق 

  22/05/2017( ق ا   146/2017اكم )تاالره ب وجن كراا مةلط مفوض ي ةتعق الاتااق اا هتق  2017هضنق  (18)

 بله مةلط 
ً
تغحرة  من اه فريل ت ذات اهصلق ب لاط فق بله م  يو  ش ى ملا  من ؤفظل م  اص ت الحوه ق اهل اتق، ت وؼرق ؤيظ 

. مق اهفرو ت ااض ة ق اهل كظو  ت مة هط الإوااة اهتي يفغلا  ؤكظ ء مةلط الإوااة ي  هلج   اانبثلق كني ت بوااة اهفرهق تا

 تالإجو  ك ت الخ صق ب هلج   اانبثلق كن مةلط الإوااة .  ث اهولر ر كن الإوااة اهونفتذيقه   يود
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 جطدُق قواعد الحول ت : - أ

ختث ؤ    ض ة ق اهل مق،اكنم  هلفرو ت اغنى لا واطتم اه  ازة اهتي اوه ق من احلق اهفرو ت ختى غ ت ابدوه  الإةو  د زاو هل  

نـومق موي ملق من اهضت ص ت  بخولفق لمتة  ه  ق ير ك لت هم  ا اه لاو من اهفرو ت اهراث ة ي  قؼ تم ةذه اهلواك  ، شرهق

  يو  ش ى مم اهوؼوا اهضريم اهذي تفا ه ب  ز اهفرهق هل لا  بوقحرة ؤصرق ةنضحر ب اهفف فتق تق قدلتماهتي قرمي بله  تالاهت ت

 الاصواق اا هتق .

ي  اهفرهق ت امن بإة تق  2017يلتزد مةلط الإوااة بوؼ تم تللت  ت الحوه ق اهص واة كن ةتعق دتااق اا هتق هل د بدتث 

تذهً ط ن بجراءات  ، اهق تمنذ خم مض ءهق بوااة اهفرهققؼ تم كواك  تطوابؽ الح ه تق اااصضتق هودلتم اهفف فتق تاهل 

, مم مراك ة مص لح ك ل خ صق ب هلج   اانبثلق كن مةلط الإوااة ، 
ً
تب هو ل  قدلتم الح  يق هل ض ة ح  تخ لق اهوج ثم ج تل 

ؤة تق الاهتزاد بإخي د  ه   ؤ  ةذه اهلواك  قاه  كىه،  اهل ل تاهل  ٌ, تالح  من اصوغلاٌ اهضلؼق ي  غحر ااصلحق اهل مق

اهل نو , تاهل ل كىه ط    مراجلق دواء اا ل  تتجوو ةت ول بواا ق ق ىن من مد ص ق الإوااة ؤم د ااض ة ح , مم قيو ن لجنق 

هودلتم اك بق مضوللق كىه ق كتم من غحر ؤكظ ء مةلط الإوااة اهونفتذيق قيو  ها  ما د تاخوص ص ت تصلاخت ت ك ي ة 

 ه   قوظ ن اهوف صتل الخ صق بوؼ تم الحوه ق م  يى  : ، اهونفتذ

 

 :احخ ةعةث مجلع ملازة -

ب كوة خؼتق من اث ط مةلط الاوااة ت ص ات اهلرااات ب لاهثريق هلاكظ ء  2019اجو  ك ت ي  ك د  صوقكل  مةلط الاوااة 

 اجو  ك قي ت كراااقي ي  سجل خ ة.الح طر ن ت و   ةن هً امح  صر هل ةلط ملح  من ك ل مةلط الاوااة هو ت ن مد طر 

 

 :احخ ةع الهُئت العةمت للشسلت -

 تلل  اهاتعق اهل مق هلفرهق اجو  ك  ك وي  مرة تاخ ة ي  ول ك د خلاٌ الاشار الاابلق اهو هتق لانتم ء اهضنق اا هتق ت يرؤش الاجو  ق

آاائمم بدر ق ت الحصوٌ كىه الاج ب ت كىه  اث ط مةلط الاوااة بفيل يض ذ هل ض ة ح  ب اف اهق اهف كلق ت اهول حر كن

 .تض ئلاهمم ت يوفر االلوم ت اهي فتق ب   ي ىنمم من اقخ ذ كراااهمم 
 

 : خقولم ايظةَ ين -

قوخذ اهفرهق الاجراءات اان ص ق هظ    خصوٌ ااض ة ح  كىه خلوكام ب   يدلم اهل اهق ت ااض تاة وت  ق تحز ت منم  الحلوق 

  ن صلاخت ت اهاتعق اهل مق.اهل مق ت الحلوق ط
 

 :مفصةح ق الشفةفُت -

قظم اهفرهق اجراءات ك ل خؼتق تفم صت صق الافص ح االو  ة من ك ل مةلط الاوااة هونـتم شات  الافص ح كن االلوم ت 

ح  ت ااض ث ر ن ت مو بلق قؼ تلا  تفل  اوؼل  ت الجا ت اهرك بتق ت اه فريل ت اهن فذة ت قوفر االلوم ت الافص ختق هل ض ة 

بصواة وكتلق تتاضحق ت غحر مظللق ت ي  الاتك ت المح وة ب   ي  ذهً الافص خ ت ااولللق ب هول ا ر اه تا ق ت االلوم ت 

 . الجوةر ق تملىت ت الاشخ ة ااؼللح  ت تل ملات الاػراف ذتي اهللاكق
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ين قجددًد صفت مل عضو :ة م أط ةء أعضةء مجلع الإلازة قم  لي أعضةء مجلع الإلاز   -جب/   عخدةزٍ

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 لرًً ٌشغلونهة :ت قأط ةء الأ خة  اايىةصب الخىفُرًت في الشسل -ل 

 

 الوظُفت مطم

 اا ير اهل د ط ير جوفُق خ د السقاشدٍ /الظُد

 م ير واثرة اهوص ػق طةزلم محمد لاقل المحدظب /الظُد

 م ير م ل  ب لإن بق اخ د عدد السخُم مصطفى لغ ش /الظُد

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 مطررررم
 

 ايىصب
 

 الصفت

اث ط مةلط   اط ةعُل عِس ى اط ةعُل للُدك الظُد/

 الاوااة

 كظو غحر قنفتذي

غحر مضوللكظو   

س العقةزي  قٍ  لهة   شسلت صدف الددس للخطوٍ

 الظُد/طةمس ًوطف مةًد خ ةل

 

ن ثن اث ط 

 مةلط الاوااة

 كظو غحر قنفتذي

وللغحر مضكظو   

ةض للخجةزة قمطد  ةز   شسلت لقم السٍ

 قٍ  لهة الظُد/اًةل غصوب ح ُل العظلي

كظو مةلط 

 الاوااة

 كظو غحر قنفتذي

غحر مضوللكظو   

كظو مةلط  .السقاشدٍ خ دشسٍف جوفُق  /الظُد

 الاوااة

 كظو غحر قنفتذي

غحر مضوللكظو   

 الد ل للخدمةث الطدُت  شسلت

 د ول الأخ دقٍ  لهة الظُد/أخ د محمد م

كظو مةلط 

 الإوااة

 كظو غحر قنفتذي

غحر مضوللكظو   

كظو مةلط  الظُد اخ د ص ح عطة الله السحُ ةث

 الإوااة

 كظو غحر قنفتذي

مضوللكظو   

كظو مةلط  الظُد/محمد زشُد ذًةب خظً 

 الإوااة

 كظو غحر قنفتذي

مضوللكظو   
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ةث مجةلع الإ   -ٌ  لازة في الشسمةث ايظةَ ت العةمت :ي ٌشغلهة عضو مجلع الإ لازة التعضوٍ

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 :  جدةط الحول ت في الشسلتق. اطم ضةبط از 

 اهضت  / محمد كص د كث    واا مد وو .

 

 

 اللجةن ايىب قت عً مجلع الإلازة :ش. أط ةء 

 لج   تقلود ب ا ما  ت مضاتهت هم  خضن اهنـ د اه اخى  هلفرهق ته  كىه اهندو اهو ل  : مة وكق من اهشيل المجلط         

 . لجنق اهو كتم -1

 لجنق الحوه ق . -2

 .هترشتد ت ت ااي فأتلجنق ا -3

 لجنق بوااة المخ ػر . -4

 لجنق الإص ث  ا . -5

 ةثالعضوٍ مطررررم

ف جوفُق خ د السقاشدٍ  كظو مةلط بوااة اه نً اهوة اي داوسي. -1 الظُد/ شسٍ

 مةلط بوااة اهوػنتق هصن كق اهيلوا ن. اث ط -2

 .كظو مةلط بوااة اهلربتق هصن كق الاانتود  -3

الإن  ء اهلربتق هلوة اة   ةكظو مةلط بواا  -1 الظُد/ اط ةعُل عِس ى اط ةعُل للُدك 

 تالإص ث  اات اهل اتق.

 كظو مةلط بوااة وااهم هلاص ث  ا.  -2

ةض للخجةزة قمطد  ةز   شسلت لقم السٍ

 قٍ  لهة الظُد/اًةل غصوب ح ُل العظلي

ت.يوج  كظو   لا  

 

 شسلت صدف الددس للخطوٍس العقةزي  

 قٍ  لهة الظُد/طةمس ًوطف مةًد خ ةل 

الإن  ء اهلربتق هلوة اة تالإص ث  اات   كظو مةلط بوااة

 .اهل اتق

 شسلت الد ل للخدمةث الطدُت 

 قٍ  لهة الظُد/أخ د محمد مد ول الأخ د

ت.يوج  كظو   لا  

ت.يوج  كظو   لا الظُد اخ د ص ح عطة الله السحُ ةث  

 لا يوج  كظو  ت. الظُد/محمد زشُد ذًةب خظً 
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 :ايةلُت قالمحةطبُت اطم زئِع قأعضةء لجىت الخدقُق قهدرة عً مئَ تهم قخبراتهم ايخعلقت بةلأموز  - ح

 الخبراث ايئَ ث  العضو 

 اًةل غصوب العظلي 

 جىتللازئِع 

بي هوا وش بوااة ؤك  ٌ/ بكوص و  -

 -اونتق/ ك   تبخص ء/ الج ملق الا 

 .1986الااو  ك د 

 ىتق م جضوحر بوااة/ الج ملق الامر  -

 1989مصر ك د  -ب هل ةرة 

 .1992 – 1989الام اات اهلربتق ااود ة,  -ط بؽ اثو    تتضو م, بنً اافرق، وبي -

 .1999 – 1992م ير واثرة الاثو   , بنً اااصضق اهلربتق ااصرفتق )داو ( ك   ,  -

اث ط مة وكق الخ م ت ااصرفتق اهوة ا ق اه نً اهلربي اهوػني،  ن ثن م ير ك د, -

 .2007 – 1999اهر  ض اهضلوويق 

ن ثن اهرث ط اهونفتذي, اث ط مة وكق الخ م ت اه نىتق هلفرو ت اهىبرى اه نً  -

 .2011 – 2007الاةى  الااوسي, 

 و ا خي.هت  2011م ير ك د, اه نً اهلربي الإصلامي اه تل  منذ  -

 خ ةل مةًد طفًو   طةمس

  عضو اللجىت

بي هوا وش كلود م هتق تمصرفتق  -

الااو   -/ااب  ج ملق اهحرمون /

 . 1991ك د

ج ملق /م جضوحر مد ص ق اك  ٌ   -

 .1995ك د امحريي  -نتو وان 

 تهو ا خي. 1991ن ثن اا ير اهل د تشر ً ي  اهؼ بم اارهس ق ,  -

 .2011 - 1999م ير  شرهق خ  و اهلل ا ق  هن ا ,  -

كظو مةلط الامن ء تاث ط اهاتعق الاواا ق ن وي اهؼحرا  اهفراع  االيي الااوسي  -

 تهو ا خي.  2004,

 هو ا خي. 2005كظو ج لتق اج ٌ الاك  ٌ الااونتق اهىن يق , -

اخ د محمد مد ول الأخ د 

 عضو اللجىت 

ج ملاااااااااااااااااااق /بيااااااااااااااااااا هوا وش مد صااااااااااااااااااا ق  -

 د  2006ك د  الااو  -/ باب  اهحرمون

لح  اهااااااااا اخلتح  كظااااااااو ملااااااااا  اااااااااا ك -

((IIA. 

 . 2009 -2007–م كم واخى  ه ى صلؼق منؼلق اهلل ق الإكوص ويق الخ صق  -

اهضلوويق –م كم واخى  ه ى مة وكق شرو ت ف ٌ اهلربتق اهل بظق اهر  ض  -

 د. 2012-2015

-2014اهضلوويق  –اا ير اا ل  هفرهق اهرملق هلخ م ت اهؼ تق المح توة اهر  ض  -

 د 2015

-1هغ يق  2016-8ي  شرهق اه لاو هلخ م ت اهؼ تق د.ق.د من شار م كم واخى   -

 د. 2018

هغ يق  2016-9اا ير اهل د ب هوو هق ي  شرهق اه لاو هلخ م ت اهؼ تق  د.ق.د من شار  -

 د. 9-2018

 تهو ا خي . 2018-9اا ير اهل د ي  شرهق اه لاو هلخ م ت اهؼ تق د.ق.د من شار  -

 اخ د ص ح السحُ ةث

 جىتعضو الل

بياا هوايط اكوصاا و ج ملااق ةتوصاات   -

اهولايااااااااااااااااااااا ت ااودااااااااااااااااااااا ة  -قىضااااااااااااااااااااا ش  -

 . 1978دمر ىتق 

 

 .1983 -1980اهضلوويق  -الخبر -م ير اهل لت ت, صتتي بنً  -

 -اهر  ض -م ير اهل لت ت الاهىترتنتق, اه نً اهضلووي دمر يي )صتتي بنً(  -

 .1985 -1983اهضلوويق 

 -اهر  ض -اهضلووي دمر يي )صتتي بنً( م ير ي  اه ضاتلات اه نىتق, اه نً -

 .1991 -1985اهضلوويق 

 .1993 -1991اهضلوويق  -اا يراا ل , شرهق صف اي  اهر  ض -

 -1993اهضلوويق  -اث ط مة وكق دص ث  ا, اه نً اهضلووي اهوة اي اهر  ض  -

1997. 

وويق اه نً اهضلووي دمر يي اهر  ض اهضل -م ير اه ضاتلات, اانؼلي اهوصؼى  -

1997- 2001. 

اه نً اهضلووي اهفرسس ي اهر  ض اهضلوويق  -م ير اه ضاتلات, اانؼلي اهوصؼى  -

2003 – 2008. 

 2008اهضلوويق  -شر ً تاا ير اهونفت ي, ه اا الج اتٌ هل فر تاهووزيم  اهر  ض -

 ختى ق ا خي.

ج ن ، هن   وتاات ك ي ة مم صتتي بنً ي  اهل لت ت تالإثو    تالخس نق تالاوااة ي  ؤ  -

، تاهر  ض.  صنغ فواه، اصؼن وٌ
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 :،قلجىت مطد  ةز ،قلجىت الحول ت،قلجىت الازة المخةطساطم زئِع قأعضةء مل مً لجىت الترشُدةث قايهةفةث -ط

 

 اط ةء معضةء اللجىت

 لجىت الترشُدةث قايهةفؤث

 بص  كتل ك س ى وهت ن.

 شر ف قوفتم اهرتاش ه.

  بي و غصوب اهلضى  .

 ط اهلجنقاث 

 كظو 

 كظو

 الحول تلجىت 

 اشت  ذي ب خضن. محمد

 وهت ن.اص  كتل بص  كتل ك س ى 

 خ  و.  و ي  ص مر يوصف

 اث ط اهلجنق

 كظو 

 كظو

 لجىت الازة المخةطس

 شر ف قوفتم اهرتاش ه.

 .اخ   محمد مد وو دخ   

  ص حر قوفتم اهرتاش ة .

 اث ط اهلجنق

 كظو 

 كظو

 لجىت الإطد  ةز

 فتم اهرتاش ه.شر ف قو 

 بص  كتل ك س ى وهت ن.

 محمد اشت  ذي ب خضن .

 اث ط اهلجنق

 كظو 

 كظو

 

ًمل مً اللجةن مع بُةن  عدل احخ ةعةث  -ي    : الأعضةء الحةضسٍ

 

 اعضةء اللجىت
 الحول ت احخ ةعةث لجىت 

 ال ةوي مقى 

   محمد زشُد ذًةب خظً 

    اط ةعُل عِس ى للُدك

   خ ةل مةًد طةمس  ًوطف

   محمد عصةم لاز مد ول )ضةبط ازجدةط الحول ت(
 

 اعضةء اللجىت
 الترشُدةث قايهةفؤث احخ ةعةث لجىت 

 ال ةوي مقى 

    للُدكاط ةعُل  اط ةعُل عِس ى

ف جوفُق خ د السقاشدة    شسٍ

   اًةل غصوب العظلي 
 

 اعضةء اللجىت
 الازة المخةطساحخ ةعةث لجىت 

 ال ةوي مقى 

ف جوفُق خ د السقاشدة    شسٍ

    داخ د محمد مد ول مخ 

   ط ير جوفُق خ د السقاشدة 

 . 2019ل د ؤي بجو  ك ت خلاٌ اه لجنق الإص ث  اهم تلل   -
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ً, قعدل احخ ةعةث اللجىت مع  2019 العةمعدل احخ ةعةث لجىت الخدقُق خ ى   -ك           قأط ةء الأعضةء الحةضسٍ

 :دقق الحظةبةث الخةزجي خ ى الظىتم 

 

 اعضةء اللجىت
  احخ ةعةث لجىت الخدقُق

 السابع ال ةلث ال ةوي مقى 

     اًةل غصوب العظلي 

قم بط فوي اله اهلجنق  طةمس ًوطف مةًد خ ةل

 2019-02-28بو ا   

   

     اخ د محمد مد ول مخ د 

قم بهغ ءه من اهلجنق مم بك وة  X X اخ د ص ح عطة الله السحُ ةث

 2019-04-27اه فىتل بو ا   

     مدقق الحظةبةث الخةزجي 
 

 

ً 2019 العةمعدل احخ ةعةث مجلع الإلازة خ ى  -ى  :مع بُةن الأعضةء الحةضسٍ

 أعضةء مجلع الإلازة
 احخ ةعةث مجلع الإلازة

 الظةلض الخةمع  السابع ال ةلث ال ةوي الأقى 

ف ج        وفُق خ د السقاشدةشسٍ

 X X     اط ةعُل عِس ى اط ةعُل للُدك

 الظُد طةمس ًوطف خ ةل 

 م  ل شسلت صدف الددس للخطوٍس العقةزي 

      

 الظُد اًةل غصوب ح ُل العظلي

ةض للخجةزة قالإطد  ةز  م  ل شسلت لقم السٍ

      

 X X     الظُد اخ د ص ح عطةالله السحُ ةث

 اخ د محمد مد ول مخ د الظُد 

 م  ل شسلت الد ل للخدمةث الطدُت

      

       محمد زشُد ذًةب خظً  الظُد 

 

                                                            

 
 زئِع مجلع الإلازة

 اط ةعُل عِس ى للُدك
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King Abdullah II Bin Al- Hussein 
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His Royal Highness Crown Prince 

Hussein Bin Abdullah 

 



 والأستثمار م.ع.مشركة البلاد للأوراق المالية      
Al Bilad Securities & Investment Co      

 

 The Fourteenth annual report 2019 

3 

We at Al-Bilad Securities & Investment Company place high importance on realizing our vision 

and mission, based on clear core values, with the intention of providing a better service for our 

clients, which we consider as our partners. 

 

Hence, we are committed to provide the most modern technologies in investment services and 

financial tools in response to our clients and shareholders requirements, for the purpose of 

achieving their investment goals efficiently, and through a well-trained and integrated team. 

 

We also strive to provide all services in accordance with a modern vision, and provide investors with 

an advanced and comfortable work environment to help them make their decisions transparently 

and in an outstanding manner, using the most advanced methods in information technology based 

on extensive studies and research. 

 

We at Bilad capital, acquire inspiration, strong will and a continued desire to work diligently to 

develop our services, which are inspired by our wise leadership of His Majesty King Abdullah II, may 

the Lord protect Him for our beloved nation. 
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Our Mission 

To be a leading investment company and provide a full range of high-quality investment products 

and services to our clients, as well as help our customers to achieve financial prosperity and peace of 

mind by earning people's trust in the friendliest ways, while adhering to a strong set of corporate 

principles and a continued focus on process improvement. 

Our Vision 

To maintain a steady and continued growth as we diversify our products portfolio, strengthen our 

position in the sector that we serve, consolidate our position as the leading financial services 

provider in the kingdom of Jordan. 

We strive to provides excellence in customer’s service and compliance through the steady 

commitment to our clients, and meet their needs regardless of their investment objectives, this 

would qualify us to be in the forefront of financial brokerage firms and investment services 

companies in Jordan. 

 

Core value 

Our core values are principles that guide us daily in helping our customers achieve financial 

prosperity. at all times strive to place the trust of our clients among the top priorities of our 

Company, through providing the best services and investment tools available, and contributing to 

achieve the customers' investment ambitions. 

Trustworthy: the most important values that we keep the promises made and a commitment to 

providing a business the right way. 

 Worthy of trust: We keep our promises and commitment to doing business the right way. 

 Customer-focused: We offer products and services that meet the needs of our customers. 

 Integrity: We offer services honest and ethical manner, open, courteous, caring and 

concerned, and respect for people and the free exchange of ideas. 

 Work as one team: We appreciate the contribution of our employees made in achieving our 

missions; we support and encourage teamwork and personal development to ensure a high 

level of competence and experience, and satisfaction. 
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Board of Directors 

 

 Eng. Ismail Issa Ismail Dkeidek. 

 

Chairman Of The Board Of Directors 

 

 Mr.Samer Yousef Kayed Hammad. 

Representative of Sadaf Al-Bahar Real 

Estate Development Co. 

 

Vice Chairman Of The Board Of Directors  

 

 Mr. Iyad Ghasoub Jamil Asali. Representative 

of Dom Al-Riyad for Trade & Investment Co. 

 Mr. Ahmed Mohamed Mahmoud Al Ahmad 

Representative of Al Bilad Medical Services 

Co. 

 Mr.ahmad Salah Atallah Suheimat. 

 Mr. Mohammad Rasheed Diab Hassan. 

 Mr. Sharif Tawfiq Hamad Al-Rawashdeh. 

 

 

Members 

 

 

General Manager 

 

Mr.Sameer Tawfiq Hamad Al-Rawashdeh. 

 

Auditors 

 

Messrs. KPMG Kawasmy &partners Co. 

   

Legal Advisor 

 

Messrs. United Consulting Law Co. 
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Chairman's Latter  

 

Respected Shareholder 

 

On behalf of myself and the members of the Board of Directors to welcome you and thank you for 

answering your invitation to attend the company's regular general meeting and we are pleased to present to 

you the fourteenth annual report that includes the company's business and its financial statements for the 

year 2019, according to the provisions of Articles 169 and 171 of the Companies Law No. 22 of 1997 and its 

amendments. 

 

Our Respected Shareholder 

The Jordanian economy is still facing difficult challenges due to the global economic and financial 

developments and developments and the difficult regional political conditions, whose impact was reflected 

on most economic sectors in the Kingdom, including the main activity of the company, which depends on 

financial investments, which had the greatest impact on the results of the company's business. 

As the trading volume on the Amman Stock Exchange declined to (1.6) billion dinars, compared with (2.3) 

billion dinars for the year 2018, with a decrease of 31.6%, and the general index of weighted shares price of 

free shares decreased to (1815.2) points by the end of the year 2019 compared with (1908.8) Point by the 

end of 2018, i.e. a decrease of 4.9%, and the market value of shares listed on the Amman Stock Exchange by 

the end of 2019 decreased to 14.9 billion dinars, i.e. a decrease of 7.5% compared to the market value of 

shares listed at the end of last year 2018. 

 

Although the financial market continues to perform at an unsatisfactory pace and suffers from a lack of 

liquidity necessary to move it, the company has continued to work to take adequate measures to maintain 

continuity and find integrated solutions to address changing economic conditions. 

 

In conclusion, we ask God Almighty to guide us all to the continuous progress that we aspire to for this 

country under the leadership of His Majesty King Abdullah II Bin Al-Hussein, may God protect and preserve 

him. 

 

Chairman of Board of Directors 

            Ismail Issa Dkedik 
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Board of Directors Annual Report On the company Activities for the fiscal year 2019 and the 

future plan for 2020. 

Respected Messes, Shareholders, 

Greetings, 

The Board of directors is pleased to welcome you to the twelfth annual meeting of the general assembly to 

present to you its annual report on the company's activities for 2019, in accordance with the provisions of 

article (4) paragraph (B) of the disclosure instruction of issuing companies, accounting standards, and 

auditing standards released in 2004. 

 

First: Description of the company's main activities and geographical locations, size of 

capital investment and number of employees: 

 

A. Company's main activities: 

Al-Bilad Securities and Investment Company was established as a public shareholding company in March of 

2006 with a capital of 10 million JD, as the company seeks to reach a prominent position in the Amman 

Financial Market and regional markets through its activities, and the company's activities and licenses 

granted to it by the Jordan Securities Commission The following: Financial brokerage for its account, 

account of others , margin financing and investment management, and a license has been recently acquired 

by a foreign broker by the Jordan Securities Commission, as the company seeks to expand and meet the 

needs of its investors in order to achieve its goals and What is not inconsistent with the Securities Act. 

 

B - Geographical locations of the company's offices and staff: 

The company's main offices are located in Amman - Sweifieh - Paris St. The company's branch is located in 

Zarqa - Al Wasat Al-Tejari - Bab Al-Wad St. It has no branches outside the Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan, 

The number of employees in the main branch is 10 employees and the number of employees in Zarqa 

branch is 2 employees. 

C- Capital investment: 

The capital investment of the company until the end of 2019 amounted to JD (4,893,228). 

Second: Description of the subsidiaries and the nature of their work and areas of activity: 
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A. Subsidiary and its ownership: Sowar Al Sharq Trading Company is a limited liability company 

registered under (30101) on 03/10/2012 with a capital of 1000 JD, wholly owned by Al Bilad Securities 

Investment Company. 

B- The company's location and number of employees: The Company’s main position is at Al-Bilad 

Securities and Investment Company. There are no employees in the company and are managed by Al-Bilad 

for Securities and Investment. There are no other branches of the company inside or outside the Hashemite 

Kingdom of Jordan. 

C- Description of the activities and nature of the work and areas of the company's activity: 

The company owns a plot of land (No. 676) basin No. (24) Um Tina of the land of Naour with an area of 

(4.690) acres. The main activity of the company is a fruit tree farm, marketing the production and 

possessing the transferred and non-transferable funds required for it. During the year 2019. 

Third: Members of the Board of Directors and Executive Management:  

A- Members of the Board of Directors consist of seven members. 

The Quorum should be four members, below is a glimpse of their experiences: 

 

Chairman Of Board of Directors Eng/ Ismail Issa Ismail Dkeidek. 
 

Chairman of the board of directors.  

Born in Jerusalem, 1950. 
 

 

Educational Degree: 

Bachelor’s Degree in Civil Engineering, Florida International University, Miami, United States of America, 1987. 

Practical Experience: 

- Project Director, Saudi Company for Research and Development, Al-Khobar- Saudi Arabia, {1979 – 1982}. 

- Technical Consultant, Mohammad Al-Bahri Establishment, Construction Company, Al-Riyadh, Saudi Arabia, {1982-

2010}. 

- Deputy Chairman, Al-Bilad Medical Services Co, Amman-Jordan {1997-1998}. 

- Member of Engineers Association, Dubai-UAE, {1998-2014}. 

- Chairman, Al-Bilad Medical Services Co, Amman-Jordan {1998-2014}. 

- General Manager, Al-Bilad Medical Services Co, Amman-Jordan {2002-2014}. 

- Chairman of the Board of Directors, Al-Bilad Al-Khadra’a Real Estate Investment Company, {2006-2014}. 

- Member of the Board of Directors, Arabia for International Trading and Investments Company (INMA) since 

04/2016 - Till Now}. 

- Member of the Board of Directors, Darkom Investment Company since 2014 - Till Now}. 
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Mr. Samer Yousef Kayed Hammad 
 

Vice Chairman of the board of directors , Representative of Sadaf Al-Bahar Real Estate Development Co. 

Born in Amman, 1968. 
 

Educational Degrees: 

Bachelor's Degree in Finance &Banking science, Yarmouk University, 1991. 

Master Degree in Business Accounting, New York University, New York- USA, 1995. 

Practical Experience: 

- Deputy Manager &Partner, Center Press Co, Jordan, {1991- Till Now}. 

- Manager and Owner, Hammad General Services, Ontario- Canada, {1999-2011}. 
- President and Chief Pilot (Volunteer), Royal Jordanian Gliding, {2004 - Till Now}. 

- Managerial Board Member, Jordanian Canadian Business Association, {2005- Till Now}. 

- Member of the Board of Directors, Al-Inma Investment &Financing Co, {2012- Till Now }. 

- CFO, Member of the Board of Directors, Canadian International School, Amman, {2014 - Till Now}. 

- Member of the Board of Directors, Jordan Clearing &Transport Co, {2015 - Till Now}. 
 

Mr. Sharif Tawfiq Hamad Al-Rawashdeh. 
 

Chairman of  the board of directors.  

Born in Zarqa, 1958. 
 

Educational Degree: 

Bachelor's degree in Economics, Yarmouk University, Irbid- Jordan, 1986. 
 

Practical Experience  

- General Manager, the Saudi Investment Bank, Riyadh-KSA {1988-2010}. 

- A Former Member, The Jordanian House of Representatives,  and Member of Health and Environment 

committee and Member of the Energy and Mining committee {2010-2011 } . 

- Board of Director Member, Al-Bilad Medical Services Co, Amman-Jordan {2002-2014}. 

- Vice Chairman, Arab Jordanian Insurance Group, Amman-Jordan {2012 - 2016}. 

- Chairman of the Board, Arabian Development and Investment Trading Co (INMA) {2012-11/2015}. 

- Chairman of the Board, Jazira Securities Brokerage, Egypt. 

- Chairman of the Board, Mandala Beauty Clinic, Amman-Jordan {2014 - Till Now}. 

- Member of the Board of Trustee's, Mutah University, Karak-Jordan. 

- Board Member, Jordanian Canadian International School, Amman-Jordan. 

- Board Member & head of audit committees, Jordan Commercial Bank, {2012 - Till Now}. 
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- Member of the Board of Directors, National Chlorine Industries Company, from 4/2012 until 10/2012. 

- Member of the Board of Directors, Arabian Aluminum Manufacturing Company since 04/2017 - Till Now}. 

Mr. Iyad Ghassoub Jamil Al-Asali 
 

Member of the Board of  Director s, Representative of Dom Al-Riyadh for Trade &Investment Co. 

Born in Jerusalem, 1966. 
 

Educational Degrees: 

- Bachelor's Degree in Business Administration/ Economy and statistics, Jordan University, 1986. 

- MBA, American University of Cairo, Egypt, 1989. 

Practical Experience: 

- Credit and Marketing Officer, Al-Mashreq Bank, Dubai-UAE, {1989-1992}. 

- Director of the Credit Department, ABC Bank, Amman-Jordan, {1992-1999}. 

- Chief of the Commercial Bank Services Group, Arab National Bank, Riyadh-Saudi Arabia, {1999-2007}. 

- Deputy CEO-of the Corporate Banking Services Group, Jordan Ahli Bank, Jordan,{2007-2011}. 

- General Member, International Islamic Arabic Bank, Jordan, {2011-Till Now}. 

- Member of the French Chamber of Commerce and Industry in Jordan, CAFRAJ, {2012- Till Now}. 

- Member of the Board of Trustees, INJAZ for the Volunteers work of youth, {2012-Till Now}.  

- An active member of the forum Jordanian strategies, {2013- Till Now}. 

- Member of the Jordanian Businessmen Association, {2015-Till Now}. 

- Member of the Board of Directors, Saving Fund of the Jordan Postal, {2015-Till Now}. 

- Member of the Board of Trustees of the Fund for the future of orphans, {2018 - Till Now}. 

-  Member of the Board of Directors of Al-Bilad Securities and Investment Company, {4/2010 - Till Now}. 
 

Mr. Ahmed Mohammad Mahmoud Al-Ahmad 
 

Member of the Board of Directors, Representative of Al-Bilad Medical Services Co. 

Born in 1984 / Zarqa. 
 

Educational Degrees: 

Bachelor of Accounting, Yarmouk University, 2006 

Member of the Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA) 
 

Practical experiences: 

- Internal auditor at Aqaba Special Economic Zone Authority - from 2007 to 2009. 

- Internal Auditor at Fall Arabia Holding Company Riyadh-Saudi Arabia from 2012-2015. 



 والأستثمار م.ع.مشركة البلاد للأوراق المالية      
Al Bilad Securities & Investment Co      

 

 The Fourteenth annual report 2019 

12 

- Financial Director of Ramle Medical Services Ltd. Riyadh - Saudi Arabia from 2014-2015 

- Internal auditor in Al-Bilad Medical Services Company from 8-2016 till 1-2018. 

- Acting General Manager of Al Bilad Medical Services Company from 9-2016 till 9-2018. 

- General Manager of Al-Bilad Medical Services Company from 9-2017 - Till Now}. 
 

Mr. Ahmad Salah Attalla Suheimat. 
 

Member of the Board of Directors. 

Born in Amman, 1951. 
 

Educational Degrees: 

Bachelor's Degree in Economy, University of Houston, Texas- USA, 1978. 

Practical Experience: 

- Operation Director, City bank manager, Al-Khobar–Saudi Arabia {1980- 1983}. 

- Electronic Operations Director,  Saudi American Bank (Citibank), Riyadh-Saudi Arabia, {1983-1985} 

- Director in the bank facilities, Saudi American Bank (Citibank), Riyadh-Saudi Arabia,{1985-1991}. 

- Financial Manager, Safari Company, Riyadh - Saudi Arabia,{1991-1993} 

- Chairman of the Investment Group, Saudi Commercial Bank, Riyadh - Saudi Arabia,{1993-1997} 

- Director of Facilities, Saudi American Bank-central region, Riyadh, Saudi Arabia {1997- 2001}. 

- Director of Facilities, Saudi France Bank-Central Region, Riyadh-Saudi Arabia,{2003-2008}. 

- Chairman of Board of Directors of A'awn for investment, Amman-Jordan, 2009. 

- Partner and executive director of the House tables for Publication and Distribution, Riyadh-Saudi Arabia, 

{2008 - Till Now}. 

- Several sessions with Citibank in operations, credit, treasury and administration in Athens, London, 

Singapore, Istanbul and Riyadh. 
 

Mr. Mohamed Rashid Dhiab Hassan. 
 

Member of the Board of Directors. 

 Born in 1982 / Kuwait. 
 

Educational Degrees: 

Bachelor of Economics - Financial Management Yarmouk University in 2004 

Practical experiences : 

-  Director of Accounts of the International Company for Ductile Tubes Ltd. (INDEPCO) Riyadh - Saudi Arabia 

from 2008 - 2012. 

-  Financial Director of the International Company for Ductile Enamel Ltd. (INDPCO) Riyadh-Saudi Arabia from 

2012-2014. 

-   Controller of the group companies Fall Arabia Holding Riyadh - Saudi Arabia from 2014-2017 
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-  Director of Financial Management of the Group Fal Arab Holding Company Riyadh - Saudi Arabia from 2017 

- Till Now}. 

-  Member of the Board of Directors of Al-Bilad Medical Services Company and Chairman of the Audit 

Committee from 11/2017  – 07/2019 }. 
 

B- Brief Introduction of the Executive and Upper Management Team : 

General Manager  : Mr. Sameer Tawfiq Hamad Al-Rawashdeh 
 

Born in 1955 / Amman . 
 

Educational Degrees: Bachelor’s 

Practical experiences : 

-25 years’ experience in banking and investments. 

-Deputy Chairman of the Board of Directors, the Arabian for aluminum Industries Co. 

- Chairman of the Board of Directors, Arabia for International Trading and Investments Co. (INMA) 

-Member of the Board of Directors, the Securities Deposit Center. 

Director, Brokerage Department: Mr. Tareq Mohammad Daoud Al-Muhtasseb 

Born in 1974/ Amman . 
 

Educational Degrees: Bachelor’s 

Practical experiences : 

-Brokerage Manager in a number of financial services companies. 

- Chairman of the Board of Directors, Arabia for International Trading and Investments Co.  

- Member of the Board of Directors of Al-Tajamouat Investment Co. (SPIC). 

Acting Chief Financial Manager: Mr. Ahmad Abdelrahim Mustafa Daghmash 

Born in 1979/ Amman . 

 

Educational Degrees: Bachelor’s 

Practical experiences : 

Head of an accounting department in several financial services companies. 
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Fourth:  Major Shareholders 

Following are the major shareholders, who own more than 5% of the capital compared with the last year: 

Name Number of 

Shears (8102) 

% Number of Shears 

(8102) 

% 

Sharif Tawfiq Hamad Al-Rawashdeh 2,757,932 %27.58 2,783,132 %27.83 

Al-Bilad Medical Services Co. 232313017 22.31%  232313017 22.31%  

Dom Al-Riyadh for Trade &Investment Co. 132043338 12.04%  132043338 12.04%  

Abdul-Aziz Bin Hamad Bin Ibrahim Meshal. 7003000 7.00%  7003000 7.00%  
 

Fifth: the competitive position of the company within its sector, and its share of the 

domestic market, as well as the share of foreign markets, if any. 

There is no doubt that competition among brokerage firms is significant given that there are 56 licensed 

brokerage companies operates in the Amman Stock Exchange Market. However, the company was able to 

achieve a good ranking in terms of trading volume in the Amman Stock Exchange during 2019, as shown in 

the table below: 

year 
Traded 

value  
Traded Value at the *ASE 

Traded value 

(%) 

Rank in 

the *ASE  

2015 220,562,908 6,837,413,575 %3.2 8 

2016 117,506,361 4,680,768,698 %2.5 12 

2017 92,818,609 5,907,519,572 %1.6 16 

2018 59,733035 4,699,152,689 %1.3 17 

8102 5635393489 3,699,152,689 %1.7 23 

*ASE : Amman Stock Exchange Market 

 

Sixth: The degree of reliance on specific suppliers and / or main customers (locally and 

abroad):  there is no reliance on the specified suppliers or major customers locally and abroad 10% or 

more of the total purchases and revenues of the company. 
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Seventh: Government protection and privileges enjoyed by the company: 

A-  Description of any governmental protection enjoyed by the Company or of the privileges enjoyed by the 

Company or any of its products according to laws, regulations or otherwise with reference to the period to 

which this applies: There is no government protection or privileges enjoyed by the Company or any of its 

products under laws or regulations. 

B-  Description of any patents or franchise rights obtained by the Company: There are no patents or franchise 

rights obtained by the Company. 

Eighth: A description of the decisions issued by the government or international organizations and 

the extent to which the company's international quality standards are applied: 

A- Description of any decisions issued by the government, international organizations or others that have a 

material effect on the company's work or products or its competitiveness: There are no decisions issued by 

the government or international organizations or others that have a material impact on the company's 

work or products or its competitiveness. 

B- Disclosure of the Company's application of international quality standards: The international quality 

standards of the company are not applied. 

Ninth:  The Company’s organizational structure, recruitment policy, number of employees, and their 

training programs are as follows. 

A- Organizational Structure: 
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B- Company employees and Qualification: 

The number of employees of the company and their categories of scientific qualifications:   The 

number of employees of the company from various disciplines until 31/12/2019 a total of (12) The following is 

a statement of their scientific qualifications: 

Qualification The main center Zarqa Branch total 

Bachelor’s Degree Holders 6 1 7 

Community College Holders 2 0 2 

Below High School(Tawjihi) 

Holders 

2 1 3 

Total 10 2 12 

 

c-  Training and Qualification: 

1-  The Company trains its employees in all departments to provide them with comprehensive knowledge of 

the Company’s activities. 

2- The Company sends those employees whose work requires renewal and development to training courses 

during the year. This depends on the extent to which the Company benefits from such courses and their 

relevance to the employee’s work. 

Tenth:  Risks Facing the Company 

Like other financial brokerage companies, Bilad Capital is exposed to what is termed ‘regular risks’, resulting from 

economic, political and social conditions affecting capital markets, and henceforth financial securities prices, 

especially the customer category that deals with the company in the field of finance at the margin, which constitute 

the main securities guarantees them especially those customers who finance their activities through margin accounts 

and here is lays the risk, which is mostly due to the lack of collateral, putting all the pressure in the securities that 

possessed in margin account to be the only guarantees. 

Eleventh: Achievements achieved by the company in 2019 and important events 

during the fiscal year: 

A - The achievements of the company supported figures: The volume of trading company, 5635393489    JD during 

the year 2019 ranked No. 23 on the brokerage firms competing with a share of  %1.70 of the size of the market. 
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B - Significant events during the fiscal year: As an extension of the company's vision in the relentless pursuit of 

expansion, more customers were attracted during 2019 after the company opened its branch in Zarqa Governorate 

by the end of 2018. 

Twelfth: Operations of a non-recurrent nature: 

 There are no non-recurring operations having any financial impact during the fiscal year (2019). 

Thirteenth:  Profits and Losses 

The last five year Profits and losses, distributed dividends, net shareholders’ equity, and securities’ prices shown as 

follow: 

Description 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 

Profits (Losses) in JD 572,374 101,100 (620,945) (81,808) 123094 

Net Shareholders’ Equity 9,553,362 9,822,930 8,644,327 8,669,292 833543610 

Distributed Profits None None None None None 

Company Share Book Value 0.955 0.982 0.864 0.867 0.835 

Closing Price of Company Share 0.520 0.67 1.050 1.050 0.79 
 

Fourteenth: Analysis of the Financial Position and the Results of Operations in 2019, 

Compared with 2018: 

Percentage 
Year 

2018 2019 

Trading Percentage (Times) 2.067 2.591 

Quick Liquidity Ratio (Times) 1.858 2.311 

Operating Capital (JD) 2,168,932 2,274,631 

Cash Ratio 0.17 0.125 

Debt Ratio %18.99 %15.33 

Debt/Equity Ratio %23.45 %18.11 

Return on Investment (ROI) %(0.76) %0.122 

Return on equity (ROE) %(0.94) %0.145 

Earnings Per Share (0.008) 0.001 
 

Fifteenth: Developments and Company future Year Plan 

A - Expansion and new projects: Continue to seek to attract more customers in all areas of financial services have 

been obtained licenses: - Financial brokerage, investment management, margin financing, in addition to the 

expansion of the service of financial intermediation to include the opening of new branches and the launch of 

markets Regional commissions. 
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B - The future plan of the company: We will seek to complete access to the rest of the licenses of financial services 

in the light of developments and needs for the next phase so that the company becomes a competition for all 

financial services companies. 

C) Board of Directors' expectations for the results of the company's business: The search for investment 

opportunities that achieve an excellent return for the company through entering into strategic contributions or 

establishing subsidiaries, which in turn will contribute to increase the revenues of the company. 

Sixteenth: Auditor Fees. 

Auditor fees for the year 2019 amounted to (12,180) JD for Al-Bilad Securities and Investment Co. (Parent 

Company), and amounted to (500) JD for Sawar Al-Sharq Trading Co (subsidiary Company). There are no fees paid 

or due to auditors for services other. 

Seventeenth: A statement of the number of securities issued by the company and owned by 

the members of the Board of Directors and Management executive and their relatives, and 

the companies controlled by any of them compared to the previous year: 

A- Securities issued by the Company and owned by the members of the Board of Directors: 
 

 

Number of Shares 

 

Adjective 

 

Nationality 

 

Name 

 2019 2018 

237833132 2,757,932 
 

Natural Jordanian Mr. Sharif Tawfiq Hamad Al-Rawashdeh 

103,804 103,804 
 

Natural Jordanian Eng. Ismail Issa Ismail Dkeidek 

1,204,338 

None 

1,204,338 

None 

Legal 

Natural 

Jordanian 

Jordanian 

Dom Al-Riyad for Trade &Investment Co.  

Mr.Iyad Ghasoub Jamil Asali. 

79,594 

None 

79,594 

None 

Legal 

Natural 

Jordanian 

Jordanian 

Sadaf Al-Bahar Real Estate Development  

Mr.Samer Yousef Kayed Hammad 

2,231,017 

None 

2,231,017 

None 

Legal 

Natural 

Jordanian 

Jordanian 

Al-Bilad Medical Services Co. 

Mr. Ahmed Mohammad  Al-Ahmad 

50,000 50,000 
 

Natural Jordanian Mr. ahmad Salah Atallah Suheimat. 

25,000 25,000 
 

Natural Jordanian 
Mr. Mohamed Rashid Dhiab Hassan. 
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B - Securities issued by the company and owned by relatives of the members of the Board of 

Directors: 

Members of the Board of Directors and their 

Relatives 

Relationship Nationality No. of Shares 

2018 2019 

Mr. Sharif Tawfiq Hamad Al-Rawashdeh 

Suhad Abdulaziz Khalaf Al-Rawashdeh Wife Jordanian None None 

Rayan Sharif Tawfiq Al-Rawashdeh Son Jordanian None None 

Mr. Ismail Issa Ismail Dkeidek 
Melissa Suzanne Eben Berry Dkeidek Wife American 2,202 2,202 

Mr.Iyad Ghasoub Jamil Asali.  

Salam Mohammed Abed AlHadi Najdawi wife Jordanian None None 

Farah Iyad Ghassoub Asali Daughter Jordanian None None 

Noor Iyad Ghassoub Asali Daughter Jordanian None None 

Hana Iyad Ghassoub Asali Daughter Jordanian None None 

Mr.Samer Yousef Kayed Hammad. 

Rana Ahmed Mahmud Eid Wife Jordanian None None 

Faisal Yousef Samer Hammad Son Jordanian None None 

Ghada Samer Yousef Hammad Daughter Jordanian None None 

Mesk Samer Yousef Hammad Daughter Jordanian None None 

Mr. Ahmed Salah Atallah Al Suheimat 

Hanna Mohammed Al Suheimat Wife Jordanian None None 

Mr. Mohamed Rashid Dhiab Hassan. 

Mai Wafik fared annsour Wife Jordanian None None 

Rashid Mohamed Rashid Hassan. Son Jordanian None None 

Abdurrahman Mohamed Rashid Hassan. Son Jordanian None None 

Mr. Ahmed Mohammad  Al-Ahmad 

Sandy Saleh Mahmoud Abed Wife Jordanian None None 

Zanah Ahmed Mohammad  Al Ahmad Daughter Jordanian None None 
 

C) Securities issued by the Company and owned by senior management executive authority: 

Name Nationality Position No. of Shares  No. of Shares  

2018 2019 

Mr. Sameer Tawfiq Hamad Al-Rawashdeh Jordanian General Manager 25,000 None 

Mr. Tareq Mohammad Daoud Al Muhtaseb Jordanian Director, Brokerage 

Department 
None None 

Mr. Ahmad Abdel Rahim Mustafa Daghmash Jordanian Acting chief Financial 

Manager 
None None 
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D. Securities issued by the Company and owned by the relatives of management executive: 

Management executive and their Relatives Relationship Nationality No. of Shares 

2018 2019 

Mr. Sameer Tawfiq Hamad Al-Rawashdeh 

Mai Issa Abdel Mahdi Al-Rawashdeh Wife Jordanian None None 

Mr. Tareq Mohammad Daoud Al-Hajj Omar Al-Muhtasseb 

Sara Marwan Noor Al Din Shahdeh Wife Jordanian None None 

Tala Tareq Mohammad Daoud Al-Muhtasseb Daughter Jordanian None None 

Daoud Tareq Mohammad Daoud Al-Muhtasseb Son Jordanian None None 

Farah Tareq Mohammad Daoud Al-Muhtasseb Daughter Jordanian None None 

Muhammad Tareq Mohammad Daoud Al-Muhtasseb Son Jordanian None None 

Mr. Ahmad Abdelrahim Mustafa Daghmash 

Sana’a Hussein Mohammad Zeidan Wife Jordanian None None 

Amr Ahmad Abdelrahim Daghmash Son Jordanian None None 

Munther Ahmad Abdelrahim Daghmash Son Jordanian None None 

Abdelrahim Ahmad Abdelrahim Daghmash Son Jordanian None None 

Mohammad  Ahmad Abdelrahim Daghmash Son Jordanian None None 
 

E. Companies controlled by members of the Board of Directors and their relatives: 

Members of the Board of Directors and their 

Relatives 

Relationship Companies 

Controlled 

No. of shares owned by the 

controlling company 

2018 2019 

Mr. Sharif Tawfiq Hamad Al-Rawashdeh Chairman of Board 

of Directors 

Dom Al-Riyad  
 

Sadaf Al-Bahar 

1,204,338 

 

79,594 

1,204,338 

 

79,594 

Suhad Abdulaziz Khalaf Al-Rawashdeh Wife None None None 

Rayan Sharif Tawfiq Al-Rawashdeh Son None None None 

     

Mr. Ismail Issa Ismail Dkeidek Vice Chairman Sadaf Al-Bahar 79,594 79,594 

Melissa Suzanne Eben Berry Dkeidek Wife None None None 

  

Dom Al-Riyad for Trade & Investment Co Member None None None 

Mr.Iyad Ghasoub Jamil Asali Representative None None None 

Salam Mohammed Abed AlHadi Najdawi wife None None None 

Farah Iyad Ghassoub Asali Daughter None None None 

Noor Iyad Ghassoub Asali Daughter None None None 

Hana Iyad Ghassoub Asali Daughter None None None 
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Sadaf Al-Bahar Real Estate Development Co Member None None None 

Mr.Samer Yousef Kayed Hammad. Representative None None None 

Rana Ahmed Mahmud Eid Wife None None None 

Faisal Yousef Samer Hammad Son None None None 

Ghada Samer Yousef Hammad Daughter None None None 

Mesk Samer Yousef Hammad Daughter None None None 

 

Mr. Ahmed Salah Atallah Al Suheimat Member None None None 

Hanna Mohammed Al Suheimat Wife None None None 

 

Mr. Mohamed Rashid Dhiab Hassan. Member None None None 

Mai Wafik fared annsour Wife None None None 

Rashid Mohamed Rashid Hassan. Son None None None 

Abdurrahman Mohamed Rashid Hassan. Son None None None 

 

Al Bilad Medical Services Co. Member None None None 

Mr. Ahmed Mohammad  Al-Ahmad Representative None None None 

Sandy Saleh Mahmoud Abed Wife None None None 

Zanah Ahmed Mohammad  Al Ahmad Daughter None None None 

F. Companies controlled by senior management with executive authority and their relatives: 

Management executive and their Relatives Relationship Companies 

Controlled 

No. of shares owned by the 

controlling company 

2018 2019 

Mr. Sameer Tawfiq Hamad Al-Rawashdeh General Manager None None None 

Mai Issa Abdel Mahdi Al-Rawashdeh Wife None None None 

Mr. Tareq Mohammad Daoud Omar Al-

Muhtasseb 

Director, Brokerage 

Department 

None None None 

Sara Marwan Noor Al Din Shahdeh Wife None None None 

Tala Tareq Mohammad Daoud Al-Muhtasseb Daughter None None None 

Daoud Tareq Mohammad Daoud Al-Muhtasseb Son None None None 

Farah Tareq Mohammad Daoud Al-Muhtasseb Daughter None None None 

Muhammad Tareq Mohammad Daoud Al-Muhtasseb Son None None None 

Mr. Ahmad Abdelrahim Mustafa Daghmash Acting chief Financial 

Manager 

None None None 

Sana’a Hussein Mohammad Zeidan Wife None None None 

Amr Ahmad Abdelrahim Daghmash Son None None None 

Munther Ahmad Abdelrahim Daghmash Son None None None 

Abdelrahim Ahmad Abdelrahim Daghmash Son None None None 

Mohammad  Ahmad Abdelrahim Daghmash Son None None None 
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Eighteenth:  Benefits, Awards and Salaries: 

Name 
Occupation Benefits & rewards 

Travel &transportation 

Allowances 

Mr. Sharif Tawfiq Hamad Al-Rawashdeh Chairman Board of Directors None 4,800 

Eng. Ismail Issa Ismail Dkeidek Deputy Chairman Board of 

Directors  

None 
4,800 

Mr.Iyad Ghasoub Jamil Asali. Member Board of Directors None 4,800 

Dr.Issam Adib Ahmad Hashem. Member Board of Directors None 4,800 

Mr.Samer Yousef Kayed Hammad.  Member Board of Directors None 4,800 

Mr. Ahmed Mohammad  Al-Ahmad Member Board of Directors None 4,800 

Mr. Mohamed Rashid Dhiab Hassan. Member Board of Directors None 4,800 

TOTAL AMOUNT  33,600 

 

A-  Benefits and rewards enjoyed by management executive for the year 2019: 

 

Name Occupation Salaries Benefits & rewards 
Travel &transportation 

Allowances 

Mr. Sameer Tawfiq Hamad Al-

Rawashdeh 

General Manager 126,000 None None 

Mr. Tareq Mohammad Daoud Al 

Muhtaseb 

Brokerage 

Department 

Manager  

35,000 None None 

Mr. Ahmad Abdel Rahim Mustafa 

Daghmash 

Acting Chief 

Financial Manager 

12,250 None None 

TOTAL AMOUNT 173,250 - - 

 

Nineteen: Donations and grants paid by the company: 

The value of contributions paid during 2019 amounted to (2,000) JD as follows: 

1- Al-Khath Cultural Forum at 1,000 JD. 

2- Karak Sons Association, in a sum of 1,000 JD. 

Twentieth: contracts, projects and commitments that have been adopted by the 

company: 
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A-  Subsidiaries, associates or associates:  There are no contracts, projects or commitments entered 

into with any of them. 

 

B-  The Chairman of the Board of Directors, the members of the Board of Directors, the General 

Manager or any employee of the Company or their relatives:  There are no contracts, projects 

or engagements concluded with any of them. 

 

Twenty First: Contribution to the company in environmental protection or community 

service: 

There are no contributions to the company in environmental protection or community service, depending 

on the nature of the company's business 
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Twenty Two: The Board of Directors acknowledges the following: 

1. That there is no material or essential issues that may affect the continuity of the Company during the financial year 2020. 

2. That it is responsible for preparing the Financial Statements for the year 2019 and for providing an effective control 

system for the Company. 

The Board of Directors wishes to extend its sincere gratitude and appreciation to all employees of the Company for the 

concerted efforts they exerted to maintain the continuity of the Company and develop its operations forward, and for their 

contribution towards the success of plans and visions set by the Company.The Board finally recommends that this auspicious 

assembly approves the Balance Company Sheet and the accompanying financial statements for the financial year ending on 

31/12/2019. 

Eng  . Ismail Issa  Ismail  Dkeidek. 

Chairman of the Board of Directors  .                     

 

Mr. Samer Yousef Hammad. 

Deputy Chairman of the board of directors, Representative of 

Sadaf Al-Bahar Real Estate Development Co 

 

 

 

Mr. Ahmed  Mohammad  Al-Ahmad 

Member of the Board of Directors, Representative of Al 

bilad medical services co. 

 

 

Mr. Ahmad Salah Suheimat. 

Member of the Board of Directors. 

 

 

 

Mr. Iyad Ghassoub Al-Asali. 

Member of the Board of Directors, Representative of Dom Al-

Riyadh for Trade &Investment Co. 

 

Mr. Sharif Tawfiq Al-Rawashdeh. 

Member of the Board of Directors. 

Mr. Mohamed Rashid Dhiab Hassan.  

Member of the Board of Directors. 

3-That the information and statements mentioned in the Annual Report for 2019 are true, accurate and complete. 

Eng Ismail Issa Dkeidek. 

Chairman of the Board of Directors. 

 

 

 

Mr. Sameer Tawfiq Al-Rawashdeh. 

General Manager. 

 

Mr. Ahmad Abdel Rahim Daghmash. 

Acting Chief Financial Manager. 
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Governance Report 

________________________________________ 

Introduction : 

As a result of its commitment to best governance practices in all its operations, the company has defined the 

responsibilities and rights of each stakeholder and has enhanced the principles of transparency, accountability, 

responsibility and equity, creating an ideal regulatory environment for the company's business and activities. 

Governance is one of the most important platforms for transparency and communication with the public. 

Governance is embodied in the set of rules and procedures under which the company is managed and controlled. It 

also regulates relationships between the board of directors, executive management, shareholders and other 

stakeholders. This report provides an indication of what is available to the public and allows shareholders to know 

what the company is doing in this context. 

This report deals with the application of the rules of governance that define the company's corporate governance 

framework in line with the Corporate Governance Regulations of Listed Companies of 2017 issued pursuant to the 

provisions of Articles (12 / N) and 118 / B of the Securities Authority Law No. (18) 2017 and approved by the Board 

of Commissioners Commission decision no. (146/2017) dated 22/5/2017, and other relevant legislation, as well as 

the best practices of global governance, and also addresses the Board of Directors of the company and the 

committees emanating from it and the membership of the boards of directors occupied by members of the board of 

directors in the joint stock companies. The report also discusses executive management and meetings of committees 

emanating from the Board of Directors. 
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A- Application of the rules of governance: 

The importance of corporate governance has grown to become one of the most important issues that are 

indispensable for public shareholding companies. Al Bilad Securities & Investment Co. is one of the leaders in 

applying these rules  . They are managing their various operations with an integrated system of policies and 

mechanisms aimed at achieving transparency and facilitating the company's completion of its work. At a faster pace 

in line with the rapid development of financial markets. 

The Board of Directors is committed to implementing the Corporate Governance Regulations issued by the Securities 

Commission for the year 2017. The company believes in the importance of applying the rules and regulations of 

corporate governance to achieve transparency and fairness and granting the right of accountability to the 

management of the company within the working procedures of committees emanating from the Board of Directors. , 

Taking into account the interests of labor and workers, and reducing the abuse of power in the public interest. These 

rules also emphasize the importance of adhering to the provisions of the law and ensuring the review of financial 

performance and the existence of administrative structures that enable management to be accountable to the 

shareholder With the establishment of an audit committee that is not a member of the Executive Board, which has 

many functions, competencies and powers to achieve independent control over implementation. The details of the 

application of governance include the following: 

- The Board Member Meetings 

The Board of Directors held six meetings in 2019 through a written invitation from the Chairman of the Board of 

directors and the decisions made by the majority of the members attainted. The appointed trustee member of the 

Board of Directors has recorded the meetings and the decisions in a general meeting register. 

 

- Company's General Assembly meeting 

Company's General Assembly meeting hold regular once every year during the four months following the end of the 

financial year, the meeting is headed by the Chairman of the Board of Directors allowing shareholders to participate 

actively and express freely their views and to get answers to their questions and provides sufficient information to 

enable them to make their own decisions. 

 

- Shareholders' equity 

The company is taking appropriate measures to ensure that shareholders will get their rights in order to achieve 

justice and equality without discrimination, including the general rights, and the rights within the powers of the 

General Authority. 
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- Disclosure and transparency 

The company provides a written work procedures in accordance with the certified  disclosure policies by the board of 

directors to regulate the information disclosure affairs, maintain a steady follow-up of the application of those 

policies in accordance with the requirements of the regulatory authorities and the legislation, and ensure providing 

those disclosure information to the shareholders and investors in accuracy, clear, and without mislead before the 

end of the required deadline that include the disclosures of  periodic reports, essential information, and the trades of 

insider and related parties. 
 

B- The names of the members of the Board and the representatives of the members of the Board  and 

determine the status of each member 

 

Members of the board Position Status 

Eng. Ismail Issa Ismail Dkeidek 
Chairman Of The Board Of 

Directors  

Non-executive member 

Non-independent member 

Sadaf Al-Bahar Real Estate Development Co 

 

Mr.Samer Yousef Kayed Hammad. 

Vice Chairman of the 

board of directors 

Non-executive member 

Non-independent member 

Mr. Sharif Tawfiq Hamad Al-Rawashdeh Member of the board 
Non-executive member 

Non-independent member 

Dom Al-Riyad for Trade &Investment Co.  

 

Mr.Iyad Ghasoub Jamil Asali. 

Member of the board  
Non-executive member 

Non-independent member 

Al bilad medical services co. 

 

Mr. Ahmed Mohammad  Al-Ahmad 

Member of the board  
Non-executive member 

Non-independent member 

Mr.ahmad Salah Atallah Suheimat. Member of the board  
Non-executive member 

independent member 

Mr. Mohamed Rashid Dhiab Hassan.  

 
Member of the board  

Non-executive member 

independent member 
  

 

C- The executive positions in the company and the names of the persons who occupy them 

Name Position 

Sameer Tawfiq Hamad Al-Rawashdeh General Manager 

Tareq Mohammad Daoud Al-Muhtasseb Director, Brokerage Department 

Ahmad Abdelrahim Mustafa Daghmash Acting Chief Financial Manager 
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D- Membership of the Board of Directors held by a member of the Board of Directors of 

public shareholding companies: 

 

Members of the board Membership 

Mr. Sharif Tawfiq Hamad Al-Rawashdeh 

1. Board Member, Jordan Commercial Bank , 

2. Member of the Board of Directors, National Chlorine Industries Co. 

3. Member of the Board of Directors, Arabian Aluminum Manufacturing Co. 

Eng. Ismail Issa Ismail Dkeidek 

1. Member of the Board of Directors, Arabia for International Trading and 

Investments Company (INMA). 

2. Member of the Board of Directors, Darkom Investment Co. 

Dom Al-Riyad for Trade &Investment Co.  

Mr.Iyad Ghasoub Jamil Asali. 

None 

Mr. Mohamed Rashid Dhiab Hassan.  None 

Sadaf Al-Bahar Real Estate Development 

Co 

Mr.Samer Yousef Kayed Hammad. 

1- Member of the Board of Directors, Arabia for International Trading and 

Investments Co (INMA). 

 

Mr.ahmad Salah Atallah Suheimat. None 

Al bilad medical services co 

 Mr. Ahmed Mohammad  Al-Ahmad 

None 

                                           

 

E- Name of Corporate Governance Officer : 

             Mr. Mohammad Issam Othman Dar Mahmoud  

 

                 F.  Board Committees : 

Council formed four committees and carry out its tasks and responsibilities according to the 

rules of procedure of the company are as follows: 

1- Audit Committee. 

2- Governance Committee. 

3- Nomination and Remuneration Committee. 

4- Risk Management Committee. 

5- Investment Committee. 
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H. Name of the chairman and members of the Audit Committee and a description of their 

qualifications and experience related to financial and accounting matters: 

Member Name Qualification Work Experience 

Mr. Iyad Ghassoub Jamil Al-Asali. 

Chairmen of the Committee  

- Bachelor's Degree in Business 

Administration/ Economy and 

statistics, Jordan University, 

Amman-Jordan, 1986. 

- MBA, American University of 

Cairo, Egypt, 1989. 

- Credit and Marketing Officer, Al-Mashreq Bank, Dubai-

UAE, {1989-1992}. 

- Director of the Credit Department, ABC Bank, Amman-

Jordan, {1992-1999}. 

- Chief of the Commercial Bank Services Group, Arab 

National Bank, Riyadh-Saudi Arabia, {1999-2007}. 

- Deputy CEO-of the Corporate Banking Services Group, 

Jordan Ahli Bank, Jordan,{2007-2011}. 

- General Member, International Islamic Arabic Bank, 

Jordan, {2011-Till Now}. 

 - Bachelor's Degree in Finance 

&Banking science, Yarmouk 

University, 1991. 

- Master Degree in Business 

Accounting, New York University, 

New York- USA, 1995 

 

- Deputy Manager &Partner, Center Press Co, Jordan, 

{1991- Till Now}.}. 

- Manager and Owner, Hammad General Services, 

Ontario- Canada, {1999-2011}. 

- President and Chief Pilot (Volunteer), Royal Jordanian 

Gliding, {2004 - Till Now}. 

- Managerial Board Member, Jordanian Canadian Business 

Association, {2005- Till Now}. 

- Member of the Board of Directors, Al-Inma Investment 

&Financing Co, {2012-04/2016}. 

Mr. Ahmad Salah Attalla 

Suheimat. 

Member of the committee. 

 

- Bachelor's Degree in 

Economy, University of 

Houston, Texas- USA, 1978. 

 

- Operation Director, City bank manager, Al-Khobar –

Saudi Arabia {1980- 1983}. 

- Electronic Operations Director,  Saudi American Bank 

(Citibank), Riyadh-Saudi Arabia, {1983-1985} 

-  Director in the bank facilities, Saudi American Bank 

(Citibank), Riyadh-Saudi Arabia, {1985-1991}. 

- Financial Manager, Safari Company, Riyadh - Saudi 

Arabia, {1991-1993} 

- Chairman of the Investment Group, Saudi Commercial 

Bank, Riyadh - Saudi Arabia, {1993-1997} 

- Director of Facilities, Saudi American Bank- central 

region, Riyadh, Saudi Arabia {1997- 2001}. 

- Director of Facilities, Saudi France Bank- Central Region, 

Riyadh-Saudi Arabia, {2003-2008}. 

- Chairman of Board of Directors of A'awn for investment, 

Amman-Jordan, 2009. 

- Partner and executive director of the House tables for 

Publication and Distribution, Riyadh-Saudi Arabia, {2008 

to Date}. 

- Several sessions with Citibank in operations, credit, 
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treasury and administration in Athens, London, 

Singapore, Istanbul and Riyadh. 

Ahmed Mohamed Mahmoud 

Al-Ahmad Member of the 

Committee  

- Bachelor of Accounting, 

Yarmouk University, 2006 

- Member of the Institute of 

Internal Auditors (IIA) 

-  Internal auditor at Aqaba Special Economic Zone 

Authority - from 2007 to 2009. 

- Internal Auditor at Fall Arabia Holding Company Riyadh-

Saudi Arabia from 2012-2015. 

-  Financial Director of Ramle Medical Services Ltd. Riyadh 

Saudi Arabia from 2014-2015 

- Internal auditor in Al-Bilad Medical Services Company 

from 8-2016 till 1-2018. 

-  Acting General Manager of Al Bilad Medical Services 

Company from 9-2016 to 9-2018. 

-  General Manager of Al-Bilad Medical Services Company 

from 9-2017 to date. 

 

I- Name of Chairman and members of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Governance Committee, 

the Risk Management Committee and the Investment Committee: 

 

Committee Members 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

Ismail Issa Ismail Dikidak. 

Sherif Tawfiq Al - Rawashdeh. 

Iyad Ghassoub Jamil Al-Asali. 

Chairman 

Member 

Member 

Governance Committee 

Mohammad Rashid Dhiab Hassan. 

Ismail Issa Ismail Dikidak. 

Samer Youssef Hammad. 

Chairman 

Member 

Member 

Risk Management Committee 

Sherif Tawfiq Al - Rawashdeh. 

Ahmed Mohamed Al-Ahmad 

Sameer Tawfiq Al - Rawashdeh. 

Chairman 

Member 

Member 

Investment Committee 

 

Sherif Tawfiq Al - Rawashdeh. 

Ismail Issa Ismail Dikidak. 

Mohammad Rashid Dhiab Hassan. 

Chairman 

Member 

Member 
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           J- Number of meetings of each committee with the members present: 

Members Governance committee meetings 

First Second 

Mohammad Rashid Dhiab Hassan.   

Ismail Issa Ismail Dikidak.   

Samer Youssef Hammad.   

Members Nomination and Remuneration committee 

meetings 

First Second 

Ismail Issa Ismail Dikidak.   

Sherif Tawfiq Al - Rawashdeh.   

Iyad Ghassoub Jamil Al-Asali.   

Members Risk Management committee meetings 

First Second 

Sherif Tawfiq Al - Rawashdeh.   

Ahmed Mohamed Al-Ahmad   

Sameer Tawfiq Al - Rawashdeh.   
 

 The Investment Committee did not hold any meetings during 2012. 

 

H. The number of meetings of the Audit Committee during the year 8102 and the names of the 

members present and the number of meetings of the Committee with the External Auditor during 

the year. 

Members Audit committee meetings 

First Second Third Forth 

Iyad Ghasoub Al Asali     

Ahmed Mohamed Al-Ahmad     

Samer Youssef Hammad. start of 

28/02/2018 
   

Ahmed Salah Suheimat   End of 27/04/2019 

External Auditor     
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K. Number of Board meetings during the year 2019 and names of members present. 

 

Members The Board Meetings 

First Second Third Forth Fifth Sixth 

Sherif Tawfiq Hamad Al - Rawashdeh       

Ismail Issa Ismail Dikidak       

Mr. Samer Yousef Hammad 

Representative of Sadaf Sea Real Estate 

Development Company 
      

Mr. Iyad Ghasoub Jamil Al-Asali 

Representative of Dom Riyadh Company 

for Trading and Investment 
      

Mr. Ahmed Salah Atallah Suheimat 
  

 
 

 
   

Mr. Ahmed Mohamed Mahmoud Al 

Ahmad Representative of Al Bilad 

Medical Services Co. 

 

 

 
 

     

Mr. Mohammad Rasheed Diab Hassan  

 
 

     

 

 

 

Chairman of the Board of Directors  

Ismail Issa Ismail Dikidak 
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KPMG Kawasmy & Partners Co., a registered Jordanian partnership under No. (226),  
is a member firm of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT  

 

To the General Assembly  

Al BILAD SECURITIES AND INVESTMENT COMPANY  

(Public Shareholding Company) 

Amman – Jordan 

Audit Report Over the Consolidated Financial Statements 
 

Opinion 

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Al Bilad Securities and Investment 

Company Public Shareholding Company  - (“the Company”) and its subsidiary (“ the 

Group”), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 
2019, the consolidated statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, 

consolidated changes in shareholders’ equity and consolidated cash flows for the year then 

ended, and notes, comprising significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.  

 
In our opinion the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated 

financial position of the Group as of December 31, 2019, and its financial performance and its 
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting 

Standards”. 
 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for 

the Audit of the consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of 

the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 
consolidated financial statements in accordance with International Ethics Standards Board for 

Accountants Code of Ethics, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 

accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Emphasis of Matter 

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to the notes (2-D) of the consolidated 

financial statements, which highlights the consolidation of Siwar Al Sharq For Trading (a 

Subsidiary) in accordance with exchange of settlement agreement with one of broker 
receivables, as a result the right of ownership transferred from old partners to the benefit of the 

Company against such receivables. 

Key Audit Matters  

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance 
in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current year. These matters were 

addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in 

forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.  The 

description of the key audit matters is presented below: 
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1- Determination of fair value of the Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive 

income  

Description of the key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit 

The Group holds investments in financial assets 

at fair value through other comprehensive 

income amounted to JOD 1,910,599 and JOD 
2,520,927 as of December 31, 2019 and 

December 31, 2018, respectively, some of these 

investments are not quoted in an active market.  
Accordingly, the determination of the fair value 

requires management to make several judgments 

and assessments and to rely on non-listed prices 
inputs. Consequently, management’s fair value 

estimation of these assets was significant to our 

audit. 

 

Audit procedures included evaluating internal 

procedures relating to the determination of 

financial assets at fair value through other 
comprehensive income and examination of their 

efficiency. In addition to evaluate the estimates 

adopted by the Group’s management to 
determine the fair value of non- listed financial 

assets. Moreover, these estimates have been 

compared to the requirements of International 
Financial Reporting Standards and discussed in 

light of available information. 

  

The audit procedures also included evaluating 
the adopted methodology, appropriateness of 

evaluation models, and inputs used to determine 

the fair value of financial assets. They also 
included reviewing the reasonableness of the 

most significant inputs in the evaluation process 

through reviewing investee companies’ 
financial statements.  

 

2- Expected credit losses  

Description of the key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit 

The Group’s has financial assets at amortized 
cost (net) amounted to JOD 3,125,618, and JOD 

3,430,882 as of December 31, 2019 and 

December 31, 2018 respectively. 
The adequacy of the provisions depends on 

management’s estimates. Consequently, this 

matter is significant to our audit. 
 

In addition, the application of IFRS no. (9) has 

affected the management's estimate in 

calculating the provision for the expected credit 
losses on these receivables. 

 

 
 

 

 

 
  

The audit procedures include considering the 
internal control system related to collection of 

the brokerage receivables, the acceptance of 

new customers, and  review of  the cash received 
in the subsequent period until the end of the 

financial year, testing the adequacy of the 

expected credit losses provision recorded on 
Financial assets at amortized cost through 

evaluating the management assumptions 

regarding receivables aging. We also review the 

available external information of due 
receivables risks, and our experience regarding 

the expected credit losses provision in this 

sector. The evaluation also include the 
evaluating of real estate or customers portfolios 

held as collaterals against receivables due for 

more than three months. The audit procedures 

also includes an assessment of the 
reasonableness of the assumptions adopted by 

the management regarding the calculation of the 

expected credit losses provision based on the 
market information and the specific patterns 

selected by management, as well as the 

recalculation of this provision and the 
disclosure of its impact on the consolidated 

financial statements for the current year.  



 

 

  

 

3 
 

Other Information  

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information does not include 
the consolidated financial statements and our auditors’ report on the consolidated financial 

statements. 

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and 

we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to 

read the other information and, in doing so, we consider whether the other information is 

materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in 
the audit. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 

misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We were not provided 

with the annual report of the company or any other information as it relates to this paragraph 

until the date of this report. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated 

Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial 

statements in accordance with IFRS, and for such internal control as management determines is 
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 

concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to 

liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.  

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting 

process.  

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial 

statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 
issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 

assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always 

detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and 
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 

influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial 

statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, 

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The 

risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 

from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, 

or the override of internal control. 
 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 

opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. 
 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by management.  
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Al BILAD SECURITIES AND INVESTMENT COMPANY AND ITS SUBSIDIARY 

(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY) 

AMMAN – JORDAN  
 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION  

    

  Jordanian Dinar   As at December 31, 

 Notes  2019  2018 

Assets      

Current Assets      

Cash and cash equivalents  6  178,524  345,596 
Financial assets at amortized cost 7  3,125,618  3,430,882 
Other debit balances 8  400,474  425,080 
Total-Current Assets   3,704,616  4,201,558 

      

Non- Current Assets      
Financial assets at fair value through other 

comprehensive income 9 

 
1,910,599 

 
2,520,927 

Investment in associate 10  2,245,266  2,026,266 
Property and equipment 11  75,063  112,221 
Investment property 12  737,363  741,988 
Right of use assets  13  166,120  - 
Intangible assets 14  3,541  5,859 
Brokerage license  15  1  1 
Deferred tax assets 16  1,025,098  1,093,098 
Total Non- Current Assets   6,163,051 

 

6,500,360 

Total Assets   9,867,667  10,701,918 

 
  

   
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity      

Liabilities       

Current Liabilities       

Due to banks  17,6  996,009  1,448,224 
Brokerage customer payable  18  179,157  326,494 
Leased liability- short-term  19  44,835  - 
Other credit balances 20  209,984  224,013 
Income tax payable 16  -  33,895 
Total Current liabilities   1,429,985  2,032,626 

      
Non-current liability       

Leased liability- long-term  19  83,072  - 

Total non-current liability    83,072  - 

Total Liabilities    1,513,057  2,032,626 

      
Shareholders’ equity       

Paid-up capital  1  10,000,000  10,000,000 
Statutory reserve 21  516,729  516,729 
Fair value reserve 9  (1,256,872 )  (966,103) 
Accumulated losses    (905,247 )  (881,334) 
Net Shareholders’ Equity   8,354,610  8,669,292 

Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity   9,867,667  918,70110, 
 

* The accompanying notes on pages from (9) to (41) are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 

* The consolidated financial statements were approved by page (9) to (41) by board of directors June 15, 2020 and 

signed by  

 

Chairman of Board of Directors General Manager Financial Manager 
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Al BILAD SECURITIES AND INVESTMENT COMPANY AND ITS SUBSIDIARY  

 (PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY) 

 AMMAN – JORDAN  

 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE 

INCOME 

  

Notes 

 year ended December 31,For the  

               Jordanian Dinar  2019  2018 

      

Revenues      

Brokerage Commissions   201,626  198,405 

Interest revenue customer margin accounts   75,503  92,133 

Dividends revenue distributed by investees     -  63,106 

Bank interests revenue    2,334  3,520 

Investment Management revenue   53  462 

Company share of results from an associate 10  219,000  163,977 

Other revenue 22  11,150  5,670 

Reversed from (provision) of expected credit losses  7  243,000  - 

Total revenue   752,666  527,273 

      

Expenses      

Administrative expenses 23  (431,249 )  (506,205) 
Finance expenses 24  (130,855 )  (135,212) 

Depreciation and amortization 11,12,13,14  (88,297)  (46,245) 

Foreign currency exchange loss   -  (17,359) 

Total expenses   (650,401 )  (705,021) 

      

Income (Loss) for the year before income tax   102,265  (177,748) 

Income tax (Expense) surplus 16  (90,171)  95,940 

Profit (Loss) for the year   12,094  (81,808) 

      
Other consolidated comprehensive income items:      

Gain (loss) on sale of financial assets at fair value 

through other comprehensive income 

  

168,211 

  

(21) 
Net change in the fair value of the financial assets at 

fair value through other comprehensive income 

  (494,987 )   

106,794 

Total comprehensive (loss) income for the year   (314,682 )  24,965 

Basic and diluted earning (losses) per share 25  0.001  (0.008) 

 

The accompanying notes on pages from (9) to (41) are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 

 

 
 

Chairman of Board of Directors General Manager Financial Manager 
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Al BILAD SECURITIES AND INVESTMENT COMPANY AND ITS SUBSIDIARY  

(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY) 

AMMAN – JORDAN  

 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 
           

 

 

Jordanian Dinar 
Paid-up Capital  

Statutory 

Reserve 

 

Fair value 

reserve *  

(Accumulated) 

losses ** 

 

Net Shareholders’ 

Equity 

          

Changes for the year ended December 31, 2019          

Balance at 1 January 2019 10,000,000  516,729  (966,103 )  (881,334)  8,669,292 

Profit for the year -  -  -  12,094  12,094 

Change in fair value of the financial assets through other comprehensive 

income 
-  -  (494,987 )  -  (494,987) 

Gain from selling financial assets -  -  -  168,211  168,211 
Transfer from change in fair value -  -  204,218  (204,218)  - 

Balance at 31 December 2019 10,000,000  516,729  (1,256,872 )  (905,247 )  8,354,610 

          

Changes for the year ended December 31, 2018          

Balance at 1 January 2018 10,000,000  516,729  (1,076,592)  (795,810)  8,644,327 

(Loss) for the year -  -  -  (81,808)  (81,808) 

Change in fair value of the financial assets through other comprehensive 

income 
-  -  106,794  -  106,794 

(Loss) from selling financial assets -  -  -  (21)  (21) 

Transfer from change in fair value -  -  3,695  (3,695)  - 

Balance at 31 December 2018 10,000,000  516,729  (966,103)  (881,334)  8,669,292 

 

* According to the Jordanian Securities Commission instructions the negative value of the fair value reserve amounting to JOD (1,256,872) is prohibited from distribution to the 

Shareholders as of December 31, 2019 (2018: JOD (966,103)). 
 

**   The accumulated losses as at December 31, 2019 include deferred tax assets of JOD 1,025,098, (2018: JOD 1,093,098) prohibited from use or distribution to the shareholders in 

accordance with the instructions of Jordanian Securities Commission.  
  

 

 

The accompanying notes on pages from (9) to (41) are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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Al BILAD SECURITIES AND INVESTMENT COMPANY AND ITS SUBSIDIARY 

(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)  

AMMAN – JORDAN 
 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

   For the year ended December 31, 

Jordanian Dinar sNote  2019  2018 

Cash flows from operating activities:       

Profit (Loss) for the year before income tax   102,265  (177,748) 

      

Adjustments for:        

Finance expenses 24  130,855  135,212 

Depreciation and amortization 11,12,13,14  88,297  46,245 

Company share of results from associate company 10  (219,000 )  (163,977) 

Reversed from (provision) of expected credit losses 7  (243,000)  - 

Loss from selling financial asset through other 
comprehensive Income  

  
(36,007 )  - 

   (176,590 )  (160,268 ) 

Changes in working capital items:      

Financial assets at amortized cost   548,264  333,174 

Other debit balances   24,606  (54,409) 

Brokerage customer payables   (147,337 )  44,372 

Other credit balances   (14,029 )  21,869 

Cash flow from operating activities   234,914  184,738 

      

Finance expense paid   (130,855)  (135,212) 

Income tax paid 16  (56,066)  (26,322) 

Net cash flow from operating activities   47,993  23,204 

      

Cash flows from investing activities      

Payment on purchase of property and equipment 11  (2,674 )  (15,754) 

Payment on purchase of intangible assets 14  -  (2,184) 

Payment on purchase of investment in associate 

company 
  -  (3,445) 

Payment on purchase through other comprehensive 

income 
  319,559  (15,543) 

Net cash flow from (used in) investing activities   316,885  (36,926) 

      

Cash flow from Financing activities       

Leased liability    (79,735 )  - 

Cash flow (used in) financing Activities    (79,735 )  - 

      

Net change in cash and cash equivalents      285,143  (13,722) 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 6  (1,102,628 )  (1,088,906) 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 6  (817,485 )  (1,102,628 ) 

Non-cash item 
     

Investment property against settlement of Accounts 

receivable 

  

-  (159,000) 

Right of Use    207,642  - 

Leased Liability    297,642  - 

   
 

 

 

The accompanying notes on pages from (9) to (41) are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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1) GENERAL 
 

Al Bilad Securities and Investment Company was established as a public shareholding company, on 

22 March 2006 and registered with the Ministry of Industry and Trade of the Hashemite Kingdom of 

Jordan under the number (397), in the book of public shareholding stock companies with a capital of 
10 million Jordanian dinar, and the most important goals of the company is acting as an intermediary 

in Amman stock exchange, according to the Jordan securities commission law and regulations.  

 

On April 16, 2009, the capital has increased from 10 million Jordanian dinar to 11.5 million dinar 

through capitalizing part from retained earnings. On May 5, 2010, the capital increased from 11.5 

million Jordanian dinars to 12 million Jordanian dinars through capitalizing part from retained 
earnings. 

 

On June 18, 2013, the capital has decreased from 12 million Jordanian dinar to 10 million Jordanian 

dinars through amortizing the full-accumulated losses.  
 

The Company shares is listed on the Amman Stock Exchange. 

 
The Company is located in Amman - The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan. 
 

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on June 15, 2020 and 

is subject to general assembly approval. 

 

2) BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

(a) Statement of compliance 

The consolidated financial statement preparation in accordance to International Financial Reporting 

Standards (IFRS).   
   

(b) Basis of measurement 

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for 

financial assets of fair value through other comprehensive income which we measured as fair value. 
 

(c) Functional and presentation currency 

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Jordanian Dinar, which is the group's 

functional currency. 
 

 

(d) Basis of consolidating financial statements 

The consolidated financial statements include the consolidated financial statements for the Company 

and its following subsidiary, after the elimination of transactions and balances between them, the 

Company has the following subsidiary as of December 31, 2019: 

 

The following is the most important information about the subsidiary as of December 31, 2019 & 2018: 

 

 
 

 

Year of 

acquisition 

Country of 

operation Nature of operation 
Ownership 

Percentage Capital Company Name 

20 June 2018 Jordan 

Possession of movable 

and immovable property %100 1,000 

Siwar Al Sharq For Trading 

Company 

As of 31 December, 2019 

Expenses Revenues Liabilities Assets In Jordanian Dinar 
500 - 158,300 159,000 Siwar Al Sharq For Trading Company 

As of 31 December, 2018 

Expenses Revenues Liabilities Assets In Jordanian Dinar 
500 - 158,500 159,000 Siwar Al Sharq For Trading Company 
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Siwar Al- Sharq for Trading Company has been consolidated according to a settlement agreement 

for brokerage customers receivables, through which previous owners' shares have been waived to the 

Group against these receivables 

 
The Company accounts for business combinations of a subsidiary in the consolidated statement of 

profit or loss and other comprehensive income starting from the date of the acquisition which is the 

date when control is transferred from the company to the group.  
 

The Group accounts for business combinations using the acquisition method when control is 

transferred to the Group. The consideration transferred in the acquisition is generally measured at 

fair value, as are the identifiable net assets acquired. Any goodwill that arises is tested annually for 
impairment. 
 

Any gain on bargain purchases is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income immediately. Transactions costs are expensed as incurred in the consolidated 

statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income except if related to the issue of debt or 

equity securities.  
 

The consideration transferred does not include amounts related to the settlement of pre-existing 

relationship. Such amounts are generally recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss 

and other comprehensive income. 
  

Any contingent consideration payable is measured at fair value at the acquisition date. If the 

contingent consideration is classified as shareholders’ equity, then it is not re-measured, and 

settlement is accounted for within Shareholder’s equity. Otherwise, subsequent changes in the fair 
value of the contingent consideration are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss 

and other comprehensive income. 
 
 

Non-controlling interests are measured at their proportionate share of the acquire identifiable net 
assets at the acquisition date. 
 

On the loss of control, the Group derecognizes the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, any non-

controlling interests and the other components of equity related to the subsidiary. Any surplus or 
deficit arising on the loss of control is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and 

other comprehensive income. 
 

Balances, transactions and unrealized profits and expenses resulted from transactions within the 
Group are eliminated when preparing these consolidated financial statements. 

 

(e) Use of judgments and estimates  

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, management has made judgements and 
estimates that affect the application of the Company’s accounting policies and the reported amounts 

of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates are 
recognized prospectively. 

• Judgments 

The following are the most significant judgments that have a material effect on the amounts of assets 

and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements: 

- Classification of financial assets: Valuation of the business model under which the asset is to be 
held and determining whether the contractual terms of the SPPI are on the outstanding balance. 

- The development of new criteria to determine whether financial assets have declined significantly 

since initial recognition and determine the methodology of future expectations and methods of 
measuring expected credit loss. 
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• Assumptions and estimation uncertainties  

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties at December 31, 2019 that have 

significant  risk of resulting in a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities 

in the next financial year is included in the following notes: 

- Recognition of deferred tax assets: availability of future taxable profit against which deductible 
temporary differences and tax losses carried forward can be utilised; 

- Impairment test of tangible assets: key assumptions underlying recoverable amounts, and 

periodically reassessment of the economic useful lives of tangible assets based on the general 
condition of these assets and the expectation for their useful economic lives in the future. 

- Impairment test of intangible assets: key assumptions underlying recoverable amounts, including 

the recoverability of development costs; and periodically reassessment of the economic useful lives 

of intangible assets based on the general condition of these assets and the expectation for their useful 
economic lives in the future. 

- Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: key assumptions about the 

likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources; 

- Measurement of ECL allowance for trade receivables and contract assets: key assumptions in 

determining the weighted‑average loss rate; and  

- Impairment test of Investment property: key assumptions underlying recoverable amounts, and 
periodically reassessment of the economic useful lives of Investment property based on the general 

condition of these assets and the expectation for their useful economic lives in the future. 

Measurement of fair values: 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. 

 

A number of the Group’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, 
for both financial and non‑financial assets and liabilities. 
 

The Group has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. 

This includes a valuation team that has overall responsibility for overseeing all significant fair value 
measurements, including Level 3 fair values, and reports directly to the chief financial officer. 
 

The valuation team regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If 

third party information, such as broker quotes or pricing services, is used to measure fair values, then 
the valuation team assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion 

that these valuations meet the requirements of the Standards, including the level in the fair value 

hierarchy in which the valuations should be classified. 

Significant valuation issues are reported to the Group’s Board of Directors.  
 

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses observable market data as far 

as possible. Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the 
inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows. 
 

– Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

– Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or 
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). 

– Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable 

inputs). 

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair 
value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the 

fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement. 
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The Group recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting   

period during which the change has occurred. 

The management’s believe that the accounting estimates and assumptions used are resonable and 

sufficient. 
 
 

3) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

The accounting policies applied by the Group in these consolidated financial statements for the year 

ended December 31, 2019 are the same as those applied by the Group in its consolidated financial 
statements for the year ended December 31, 2018, except for the following new International Financial   

Reporting Standards or amendments that become effective after  January 1,2019:                                                     

- IFRS 16 Leases. 

- IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments. 

- Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation (Amendments to IFRS 9). 

- Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement (Amendments to IAS 19). 

- Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015–2017 Cycle (Amendments to IFRS 3, IFRS 11, IAS 12 and IAS 23). 

         

   The Group anticipates that each of the above standards and amendments will be adopted in the 
consolidated financial statements by its date mentioned above without having any material impact on 

the Group’s consolidated financial statements, except for IFRS 16 Leases. 

 

Changes in Significant Accounting Policies 

- IFRS (16) Leases Contracts 

The Company has applied IFRS (16) using the modified retrospective approach and therefore the 

comparative information has not been restated and continues to be reported under IAS (17) and IFRIC 
(4) The details of accounting policies under IAS (17) and IFRIC (4) are disclosed separately if they are 

different from those under IFRS 16 and the impact of changes is disclosed below.  

At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract 
is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a 

period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control 

the use of an identified asset, the Group uses the definition of a lease contract that mentioned as per the 

international financial reporting standards no (16). 

This policy applies to contracts entered on or after January 1, 2019. 

• As a Lessee  

At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a lease component, the Group allocates the 

consideration in the contract to each lease component based on their relative prices. However, for the 
leases of land and buildings in which it is a lessee, the Group has elected not to separate non-lease 

components and account for the lease and non-lease components as a single lease component. 

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the 

commencement date to the end of the lease term. Unless the lease transfers the ownership of the 
underlying asset to the group, at the end of lease contract, or the exercise price under a purchase option 

that the Company is reasonably certain to exercise, then the asset will be depreciated based on the 

estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets, which are determined on the same basis as those of property 
and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, 

and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.  

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the 
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be 

readily determined, the Group’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Group uses its incremental 

borrowing rate as the discount rate.  
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The Group determines the additional borrowing rate, by obtaining the interest rates from external 

financing resources, and making some adjustments to reflect the terms of the lease contracts, and the 

leased asset.  

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following: 

- fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;  

- Variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as 

at the commencement date;  

- Amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and  

- The exercise price under a purchase option that the Group is reasonably certain to exercise, lease 

payments in an optional renewal period if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise an extension 

option, and penalties for early termination of a lease unless the Group is reasonably certain not to 
terminate early.  

- To classify each lease, the Group makes an overall assessment of whether the lease transfers 

substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset. If this is the 
case, then the lease is a finance lease; if not, then it is an operating lease. As part of this assessment, the 

Company considers certain indicators such as whether the lease is for the major part of the economic 

life of the asset. 

When the Company is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the sub-

lease separately. It assesses the lease classification of a sub-lease with reference to the right-of-use asset 

arising from the head lease, not with reference to the underlying asset. 

Property and equipment include owned and leased assets that do not meet the definition of the right of 
use assets. 

 

Short-Term Leases and Leases of Low-Value Assets 

The Group has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases that 

have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets, The Company recognizes the lease 

payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 
 

• As Lessor  

At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a lease component, the Group allocates the 

consideration in the contract to each lease component based on their relative prices. 

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease inception whether each lease is a finance lease 
or an operating lease. 

To classify each lease, the Group makes an overall assessment of whether the lease transfers 

substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset. If this is the case, 
then the lease is a finance lease; if not, then it is an operating lease. As part of this assessment, the Group 

considers certain indicators such as whether the lease is for the major part of the economic life of the 

asset. 

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the sub-lease 
separately. It assesses the lease classification of a sub-lease with reference to the right-of-use asset 

arising from the head lease, not with reference to the underlying asset. If a head lease is a short-term 

lease to which the Group applies the exemption described above, then it classifies the sub-lease as an 
operating lease.  

The Group applies the impairment requirements, according to the international financial reporting 

standard no (9), on the net investment from rent contract. In addition, on a regular basis, the group revise 
the estimated-guaranteed residual value, that are used in gross investment account in the rent contract.   

The Group recognizes lease payments received under operating leases as income on a straight-line basis 

over the lease term as part of ‘other income’.  



Al BILAD SECURITIES AND INVESTMENT COMPANY AND ITS SUBSIDIARY 

(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY) 

AMMAN – JORDAN  

 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

14 
 

The accounting policies applicable to the Group as a lessor in the comparative period were not different 

from IFRS 16. However, when the Group was an intermediate lessor the sub-leases were classified with 

reference to the underlying asset. 

There is no rental income from leases contracts in which the group acts as lessor.  
  

Policy applicable before January 1, 2019 

For contracts entered into before 1 January 2019, the Group determined whether the arrangement was 

or contained a lease based on the assessment of whether: 
- Fulfilment of the arrangement was dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets; and 

The arrangement had conveyed a right to use the asset. An arrangement conveyed the right to use the 

asset if one of the following was met: 
- The purchaser had the ability or right to operate the asset while obtaining or controlling more than an 

insignificant amount of the output; 

- The purchaser had the ability or right to control physical access to the asset while obtaining or 

controlling more than an insignificant amount of the output; or 
- Facts and circumstances indicated that it was remote that other parties would take more than an 

insignificant amount of the output, and the price per unit was neither fixed per unit of output nor equal 

to the current market price per unit of output. 

• As a Lessee 

In the comparative period, as a lessee the Group classified leases that transferred substantially all of the 
risks and rewards of ownership as finance leases. When this was the case, the leased assets were 

measured initially at an amount equal to the lower of their fair value and the present value of the 

minimum lease payments. Minimum lease payments were the payments over the lease term that the 
lessee was required to make, excluding any contingent rent. Subsequent to initial recognition, the assets 

were accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy applicable to that asset. 

Assets held under other leases were classified as operating leases and were not recognized in the Group’s 
statement of financial position. Payments made under operating leases were recognized in profit or loss 

on a straight‑line basis over the term of the lease. Lease incentives received were recognized as an 

integral part of the total lease expense, over the term of the lease. 

• As a Lessor  

When the Group acted as a lessor, it determined at lease inception whether each lease was a finance 
lease or an operating lease. 

To classify each lease, the Group made an overall assessment of whether the lease transferred 

substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset. If this was the 

case, then the lease was a finance lease; if not, then it was an operating lease. As part of this assessment, 
the Group considered certain indicators such as whether the lease was for the major part of the economic 

life of the asset. 

 

• As a Lessee  

Right-of-Use Assets 

Jordanian Dinar   

As of December 31, 

2019 

Cost     

Balance at January 1, 2019   207,642 

Balance at December 31   207,642 

Accumulated Depreciation     

Balance at January 1, 2019   - 
Amortization charge for the year     (41,522) 
Balance at December 31, 2019   (41,522) 

Net book value at December 31,   166,120 
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Lease Liabilities 
 

Maturity Analysis – Contractual Undiscounted Cash Flows 

 

As of December 31, 

2019 
   

Jordanian Dinar   

Within a year  49,100 

More than a year  147,300 
Total Undiscounted Lease Liabilities at December 31,  196,400 

 

Maturity Analysis – Contractual Discounted Cash Flows 

As of December 31, 

2019 

Jordanian Dinar  
  

Current  44,835 
Non-Current  83,072 

Lease Liabilities included in the Statement of Financial Position 127,907 
 

Amounts recognized in the statement of profit and loss 
 

Jordanian Dinar  

For the Year 

Ended December 

31, 2019 
   

Interest on Lease Liabilities  14,240 

Amounts recognized in the statement of cash flows 

Jordanian Dinar   

For the year ended 

December 31, 2019 
    

Total cash outflow for leases   (79,735) 

 

As A Lessor  

There is no lease income from lease contracts in which the Group acts as a lessor 

 

Impact on the opening balances 
 

The impact on applying IFRS (16) on the Group’s consolidated financial statements as at January 1, 

2019 is as follows:  
 Estimated impact of adoption of IFRS (16) 

Jordanian Dinar 

As reported at 

December 31, 

2018  

Estimated adjustments  

due to adoption of  

IFRS 16 

Estimated adjustments at 

January 1, 2019 due to 

adoption of IFRS (16) 
     

RoU assets -  207,642 207,642 

Lease liability -  (207,642) (207,642) 

 

Significant accounting policies applied by the Group: 

(a) Financial Instruments: 

- Recognition and initial measurement 

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognized when they are originated. All other 

financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognized when the Group becomes a party to the 

contractual provisions of the instrument . 

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component) or financial 

liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are 

directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a significant financing 

component is initially measured at the transaction price. 
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- Classification and subsequent measurement for financial assets and liabilities:  

Financial Assets: 

According to the international financial reporting standard no(9), On initial recognition, a financial asset 

is classified as measured at: amortised cost; FVOCI – debt investment; FVOCI – equity investment; or 
FVTPL. 

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Group changes its 

business model for managing financial assets, in which case all affected financial assets are reclassified 

on the first day of the first reporting period following the change in the business model. 

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not 

designated as at fair value through the consolidated profit or loss: 

- It’s held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows. 

- Its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and 

interest on the principal amount outstanding. 
A debt investment is measured at fair value through the consolidated other comprehensive income if it 

meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at fair value through the consolidated 

profit or loss: 

- It’s held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows 

and selling financial assets. 

- Its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows (that are solely payments of principal and 
interest on the principal amount outstanding). 

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Group may irrevocably 

elect to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in the consolidated other 

comprehensive income. This election is made on an investment-by-investment basis. 

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortized cost or fair value through the consolidated  

other comprehensive income as described above are measured at fair value through the consolidated 

profit or loss. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Group may 
irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at 

amortized cost or at fair value through the consolidated other comprehensive income as at fair value 

through profit or loss if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would 
otherwise arise. 

 

• Business model assessment 

The Group makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held 

at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided 

to management. The information considered includes: 
 

- The stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. These 

include whether management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income, maintaining a 
interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any related liabilities 

or expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets; 

- How the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Group’s management; 

- The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that 

business model) and how those risks are managed; 

- How managers of the business are compensated – e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value 

of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and 

- The frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales 
and expectations about future sales activity. 

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not 

considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Group’s continuing recognition of the assets. 
 

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair 

value basis are measured at FVTPL. 
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• Financial assets – Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and 

interest 

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial 
recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk 

associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic 

lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin. 
In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Group 

considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset 

contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that 
it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers: 
 

- Contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows; 

- Terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable‑rate features; 

- Prepayment and extension features; and 

- Terms that limit the Group’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non‑recourse features). 
 

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the 

prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal 

amount outstanding, which may include reasonable compensation for early termination of the contract. 
Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at a discount or premium to its contractual par amount, a 

feature that permits or requires prepayment at an amount that substantially represents the contractual 

par amount plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual interest (which may also include reasonable 
compensation for early termination) is treated as consistent with this criterion if the fair value of the 

prepayment feature is insignificant at initial recognition. 

 

Financial assets – Subsequent measurement and gains and losses 

Financial assets at FVTPL These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains 
and losses, including any interest or dividend income, are 

recognised in profit or loss. 

Financial assets at amortized cost These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using 

the effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by 

impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains 
and losses and impairment are recognised in consolidated 

profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised 

in consolidated profit or loss. 

Debt investments at FVOCI These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest 
income calculated using the effective interest method, foreign 

exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in 

profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are recognised in 
COCI. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in 

COCI are reclassified to profit or loss. 

Equity investments at FVOCI 

 

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. 

Dividends are recognised as income in profit or loss unless the 
dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the 

investment. Other net gains and losses are recognised in COCI 

and are never reclassified to consolidated profit or loss. 
 

• Financial liabilities – Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses 

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is 
classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held‑for‑trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as such 

on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, 

including any interest expense, are recognized in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are 
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and 

foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is 

also recognized in profit or loss. 
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Derecognition 

 

Financial assets 

The Group derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial 

asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which 
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which 

the group neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does 

not retain control of the financial asset. 

Financial liabilities 

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, 

or expire. The group also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash 

flows of the modified liability are substantially different, in which case a new financial liability based 
on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. 

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount extinguished and 

the consideration paid (including any non‑cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed) is recognised in 

profit or loss. 
 

- Modifications of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities  

Adjusted Financial Assets 
 

If the terms of a financial asset are modified, then the Group evaluates whether the cash flows of the 

modified asset are substantially different. If the cash flows are substantially different, then the 
contractual rights to cash flows from the original financial asset are deemed to have expired. In this case, 

the original financial asset is derecognized, and a new financial asset is recognized at fair value plus any 

eligible transaction costs. Any fees received as part of the modification are accounted for as follows: 

 
- Fees considered in determining the fair value of the new asset and fees that represent reimbursement of 

eligible transaction costs are included in the initial measurement of the new asset. 

- Other fees are included in profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on derecognition. 

If cash flows are modified when the borrower is in financial difficulties, then the objective of the 

modification is usually to maximize recovery of the original contractual terms rather than to originate a 

new asset with substantially different terms. If the Group plans to modify a financial asset in a way that 
would result in forgiveness of cash flows, then it first considers whether a portion of the asset should be 

written off before the modification takes place (see below for write-off policy). This approach impacts 

the result of the quantitative evaluation and means that the derecognition criteria are not usually met in 

such cases. 
 

Adjusted Financial Liabilities 

The Group derecognizes a financial liability when its terms are modified, and the cash flows of the 

modified liability are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified 
terms is recognized at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability 

derecognized and consideration paid is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. 

(b) Impairment 

-  Financial assets measured at amortised cost; 

- Debt investments measured at FVOCI; and 

- Contract assets. 

 The Group measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except for the following, 

which are measured at 12‑month ECLs: 
 

- Debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and 

- Other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the 

expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition. 
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Loss allowances for due from related parties and contract assets are always measured at an amount equal 

to lifetime ECLs. 

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial 

recognition and when estimating ECLs, the group considers reasonable and supportable information that 
is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative 

information and analysis, based on the Group’s historical experience and informed credit assessment, 

that includes forward‑looking information. 

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than 

90 days past due. 
The Group considers a financial asset to be in default when: 

- The debtor is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by the Group to 

actions such as realising security (if any is held); or 

- The financial asset is more than 90 days past due. 

The Group considers a debt security to have low credit risk when its credit risk rating is equivalent to 

the globally understood definition of ‘investment grade’. 

Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a 

financial instrument. 

12‑month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within the 12 
months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12 

months). 

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which 

the Group is exposed to credit risk. 
 

     Measurement of ECLs 

ECLs are a probability‑weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present 
value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in accordance 

with the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive). 

ECLs are discounted at the effective interest rate of the financial asset. 

Credit-impaired financial assets 

At each reporting date, the group assesses whether financial assets carried at amortized cost and debt 

securities at FVOCI are credit‑impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit‑impaired’ when one or more events 

that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. 

Evidence that a financial asset is credit‑impaired includes the following observable data: 

 

- Significant financial difficulty of the debtor; 

- A breach of contract. 

- The restructuring of a loan or advance by the group on terms that the group would not consider otherwise; 
- It is probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization; or 

- The disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties. 

Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement of financial position 

Loss allowances  for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross carrying 

amount of the assets. 

For debt securities at FVOCI, the loss allowance is charged to profit or loss and is recognized in OCI. 

Write-off 

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the group has no reasonable 

expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. However, financial assets 
that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the group’s 

procedures for recovery of amounts due. 
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Non-financial assets  

At each reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its non‑financial assets (other than 

biological assets, investment property, inventories, contract assets and deferred tax assets) to determine 

whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable 
amount is estimated. Goodwill is tested annually for impairment. 

For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash 

inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs. 

Goodwill arising from a business combination is allocated to CGUs or groups of CGUs that are expected 
to benefit from the synergies of the combination. 

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs 

to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using 
a pre‑tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks 

specific to the asset or CGU. 

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable 
amount. 

Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. They are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount 

of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets in the 

CGU on a pro rata basis. 
 

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. For other assets, an impairment loss is reversed 

only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have 

been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized 

(c) Property and Equipment 

Recognition and measurement 

Items of property and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment losses. Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the 

property and equipment. When parts of an item of property and equipment have different useful lives, 

they are accounted for as separated items of property and equipment. Gains and losses on disposal of an 

item of property and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the 
carrying amount of property and equipment and are recognized net within the consolidated statement of 

profit or loss. 

Subsequent costs 

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated 

with the expenditure will flow to the Group. 

Depreciation 

Items of property and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis in consolidated statement of 
profit or loss over the estimated useful lives of each component.  

The estimated useful lives of property and equipment for the current and previous year are as follows: 

Property and equipment  Depreciation rates 

Furnitures and fixtures  15% 
Decorations  20% 
Machinery and equipment   15% 

Vehicles  15% 
Computers  25% 
Zarqa branch fixed assets  15% - 25% 
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(d) Intangible Assets 

Intangible assets with definite useful lives are amortized over their useful lives and are recognized at 

cost less accumulated amortization less any impairment. Amortization of assets shall be recognized in 

the statement of profit or loss. However, intangible assets with an indefinite useful life should not be 
amortized and it is required to be tested for impairment as at the consolidated financial statement date. 

 
 

 

 

 

(e) Investment property  

Investment property is property held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for both, 

but not for sale in the ordinary course of business, use in the production or supply of goods or services 

or for administrative purposes. Investment properties are recognized initially at cost. Their fair values 
are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements. Investment properties are revalued 

annually by independent real-estate experts based on market values, being the estimated amount for 

which a property could be exchanged on the date of the valuation between a willing buyer and a willing 

seller in an arm’s length transaction after proper marketing wherein the parties had each acted 
knowledgeably and willingly. 
 

Depreciation expense is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other 

comprehensive income on a straight – line basis using a rate of 2%. 

 

(f) Investment in associate 

Associates are those entities in which the Group has significant influence, but not control or joint 

control, over the financial and operating policies.  

Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method. They are recognized initially at 
cost, which includes transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, the financial statements 

include the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the investees 

 
(g) Revenue recognition  

 

Revenue is measured based on the considerations specified in the contract with the customer. Where 

the Group recognizes revenue when it transfers control, at a specific time or over time - a good or 

service to a customer. 
 

Contract (s) with the customer: A contract is defined as an agreement between two or more parties that 

creates enforceable rights and obligations. 
 

Determine performance obligations in the contract. 
 

Transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of revenue that the group expects to receive in 

exchange for transferring services to the customer, except for the consideration that are collected on 

behalf of third parties. 
 

Allocating the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a contract that 

contains more than one performance obligation, the company will allocate the transaction price to each 

performance obligation in an amount that indicates the amount of return that the group expects to 

receive in exchange for fulfilling each performance obligation. 
 

The Group recognizes revenue when the Group meets a customer's performance obligation at a 

specified time or over time. 
 

The group fulfills the performance obligation and recognizes revenue over time, if one of the following 
criteria is met: 

- the group's performance obligation creates and / or improves the assets the customer controls when 

creating or improving the asset; or 

- The performance of the group does not lead to the creation of an asset with an alternative use of the 

group and the group has an enforceable right to pay for the performance completed so far. 

Intangible assets  Amortization Rate 

Computer Programs  25% 
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(h) Fair value measurement 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 

transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the 

most advantageous market to which the group has access at that date. The fair value of a liability 
reflects its non‑performance risk. 
 

A number of the group’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, 

for both financial and non‑financial assets and liabilities when one is available, the group measures 
the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in an active market for that instrument. A market 

is regarded as ‘active’ if transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency and 

volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis. 
 

If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the group uses valuation techniques that maximize 

the use of relevant observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. The chosen 

valuation technique incorporates all of the factors that market participants would consider in pricing 

a transaction. 
    

If an asset or a liability measured at fair value has a bid price and an ask price, then the group measures 

assets and long positions at a bid price and liabilities and short positions at an ask price. 
The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument on initial recognition is normally the 

transaction price – i.e. the fair value of the consideration given or received. If the Group determines 

that the fair value on initial recognition differs from the transaction price and the fair value is 

evidenced neither by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or liability nor based on 
a valuation technique for which any unobservable inputs are judged to be insignificant in relation to 

the measurement, then the financial instrument is initially measured at fair value, adjusted to defer the 

difference between the fair value on initial recognition and the transaction price. 
   Subsequently, that difference is recognized in the consolidated profit or loss on an appropriate basis 

over the life of the instrument but no later than when the valuation is wholly supported by observable 

market data or the transaction is closed out. 
 

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present (legal or contractual) 

obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will 

be required to settle the obligation. 
 

Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a rate that reflects current 

market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. 
 

(i) Provisions 

Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre‑tax rate that reflects 
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The 

unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost. 

Warranties: A provision for warranties is recognized when the underlying products or services are 

sold, based on historical warranty data and a weighting of possible outcomes against their associated 
probabilities. 

Restructuring: A provision for restructuring is recognized when the Company has approved a detailed 

and formal restructuring plan, and the restructuring either has commenced or has been announced 
publicly. Future operating losses are not provided for . 

Site restoration: In accordance with the Company’s published environmental policy and applicable 

legal requirements, a provision for site restoration in respect of contaminated land, and the related 

expense, is recognized when the land is contaminated. 
Onerous contracts: A provision for onerous contracts is measured at the present value of the lower of 

the expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. 

Before a provision is established, the Company recognizes any impairment loss on the assets 
associated with that contract. 
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(j) Finance expenses  

Finance expenses comprise interest expense on borrowings. All borrowing costs that are not directly 

attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are recognized in the 

consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income using the effective interest 
method.  

 

(k)Offsetting 

Financial liabilities are set off against financial assets, and the net amount is shown in the consolidated 

financial position only when the obliging legal rights are available and when settled on net basis or the 

realization of assets or settlement of liabilities is done at the same time. 
 

(l) Earnings per share 

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS 
is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Group by the 

weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined 

by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number 
of ordinary shares outstanding, for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. 

 

(m) Foreign currency transactions 
  

Transactions in foreign currencies during the year are translated at exchange rates at the dates of the 

transactions.  
 

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are translated to 

Jordanian Dinar at the exchange rate at that date.  
 

The foreign currency gain (loss) on monetary items is the difference between amortized cost in Jordanian 
Dinar at the beginning of the year, adjusted for effective interest rate and payments during the year, and 

the amortized cost in foreign currency translated at the exchange rate at the end of the year. 
 

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value 

are retranslated to Jordanian Dinar at the exchange rate at the date that the fair value was determined.  
 

Foreign currency differences arising on retranslation are recognized in the consolidated statement of 

profit or loss and other comprehensive income. 

 

(n) Income tax and National contribution  
  

- Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax are recognized in 

the consolidated statement of profit or loss except, to the extent that, it relates to a business combination, 

or items recognized directly in equity. 
 

- Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using 

tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in 

respect of previous years. 
  

- Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets 

and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. 
 

- Deferred tax is measured at tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they 

reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. The 

amendments over the Amended Income Tax Law No. 38 of 2018 will be reflected in the calculation of 
the deferred taxes measured as of the end of the reporting period.  
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- Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax 

liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable 

entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis 

or their tax assets and liabilities will be realized simultaneously. 
 

- A deferred tax asset is recognized for unused tax losses, tax credits and deductible temporary 

differences, to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which 
they can be utilized.  
 

- Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer 

probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.  
 

- Current tax payable is calculated at the tax rate of 24% in accordance with the amended income tax law 

for 2018, and national contribution rate is 4% as per the amended income tax law. 

 

4) Standards and interpretations not yet adopted 

A number of new standards are effective for annual periods beginning after January 1, 2019 and earlier 

application is permitted; however, the Group has not early adopted the new or amended standards in 

preparing these consolidated financial statements: 
 

The following amended standards and interpretations are not expected to have a significant impact on 
the Group’s consolidated financial statements: 

- Amendments to References to Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards. 

- Definition of a Business (Amendments to IFRS 3). 
- Definition of Material (Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8). 

- IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts. 
 

The Group anticipates that each of the above standards and amendments will be adopted in the 

consolidated financial statements by its date mentioned above without having any material impact on 

the Group’s consolidated financial statements. 
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5) Segment Reporting 
An operating segment is a group of components of the Group affected by risks and returns that distinguish 
it from others and engages in producing products or services known as operating segments or engages in 
producing products or services within specific economic environment that distinguish it from other sectors 
known as geographical segments. 

 

 

A- Operating Segment 
The Group operates its activities in major operating segments, which represents the follows: 

- Brokerage. 

- Investments. 

 

Jordanian Dinar 

 

As of December 31, 2019 
  

As of December 31, 2018 
 Brokerage 

 Investments Total 

 
Brokerage  Investments Total 

Brokerage commission 201,626 -  201,626  198,405 - 198,405 

Interest revenue on customer 

margin accounts 75,503 - 75,503 

 

92,133 - 92,133 

Dividends revenue - - -  - 63,106 63,106 

Bank interests 2,334 - 2,334  3,520 - 3,520 

Investment Management 

revenue 53 - 53 

 

462 - 462 

Company share of results 
associate company - 219,000 219,000 

 

- 163,977 163,977 

Other revenue - 11,150 11,150  5,670 - 5,670 

Reversed from (provision) 
expected credit losses 243,000 - 243,000 

 

- - - 

Total Revenue 522,516 230,150 752,666  300,190 227,083 527,273 
  

   

 

      

Administrative expenses (431,249) - (431,249)  (506,205) - (506,205) 

Finance expenses  (130,855) - (130,855)  (135,212) - (135,212) 

Depreciation and amortization (83,672) (4,625) (88,297)  (41,620) (4,625) (46,245) 

Foreign currency exchange loss - - -  - (17,359) (17,359) 

Total expenses (645,776 ) (4,625 ) (650,401 )  (683,037) (21,984) (705,021) 

    

 

   

Total segment assets 4,974,439 4,893,228 9,867,667  5,412,737 5,289,181 10,701,918 

Total segment liabilities (1,513,057 ) - (1,513,057 )  (2,032,626 ) - (2,032,626) 

 

B- Geographical Segment 

The Group operated its activities inside the Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan. 
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6) Cash and cash equivalents  

 As at December 31, 
Jordanian Dinar 2019  2018 
    

Cash at banks – current accounts* 12,781  15,298 

Cash at banks – customer currents account* 165,463  327,345 
Cash on hand 280  2,953 
    

Total 178,524  345,596 
    

Due to banks (Note 17) (996,009 )  (1,448,224) 

Cash and Cash Equivalents for cash flow purpose  (817,485 )  (1,102,628) 

* These bank account bears an interest of 1% annually for the years 2019 and 2018. 

 
7) Financial assets at amortized cost   

 This item represents brokerage customers receivables, and it is as follow: 

 As at December 31, 
Jordanian Dinar 2019  2018 
    

Brokerage customer receivables   3,777,076  4,005,442 

Finance customer receivables on margin 3,009,042  3,329,360 

Related parties’ receivables note (26-1) 420  - 

 6,786,538  7,334,802 

Less: Expected credit losses provision    

Brokerage customers receivables  (1,932,582)  (2,058,950) 

Margin customers receivables (1,728,338)  (1,844,970) 

 3,125,618  3,430,882 

 
* The movement on provision expected credit loss was as follows:  

 For the year ended December 31, 
Jordanian Dinar 2019  2018 
    

Balance at the beginning of the year 3,903,920  3,903,920 

Additions during the year  200,000  - 
(Reversed) during the year (443,000 )  - 

 3,660,920  3,903,920 

 

The following is brokerage customer receivables aging  
A) The following table describe the aging for brokerage customer receivables: 

 As at December 31, 
Jordanian Dinar 2019  2018 
    

Less than 30 days  901,699  1,275,563   

From 31 to 90 days 977,611  677,791   
From 91 to 180 days  174  10 

More than 180 days 1,897,592  2,052,078   

Balance at the end of year (A) 3,777,076  4,005,442 
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B) The following table describe the age of finance customer receivables on margin including related party 

receivables: 

 As of December 31, 

Jordanian Dinar 2019  2018 
    

Less than 30 days  9,407  7,027   

From 31 to 90 days  13,547  18,700   

From 91 to 180 days 80,267  22,366   

More than 180 days 2,906,241  3,281,267   

Balance at the end of year (B) 3,009,462  3,329,360 

Total (A)+(B) 6,786,538  7,334,802 

 
The impairment losses have been calculated according to the requirements of IFRS no (9), financial 

instruments, in accordance with the following rules:   
 

Under IFRS (9), impairment loss is measured on either of the following bases: 
 

• 12-month ECLs: these are ECLs that result from possible default events within the 12 months 
after the reporting date. 

• Lifetime ECLs: These ECLs result from all possible default events over the expected life of a 

financial instrument 
 

The Group measures impairment allowances equal to expected credit losses within 12 months if these 

assets are classified as Tier 1 and have the following characteristics: 
 

• Debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date. 

• Other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring 

over the expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial 

recognition. 

• the expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial 

recognition. 
The expected impairment of the life of the financial instrument to maturity is calculated in the event 

of a significant increase in credit risk, which requires to transfer the financial instrument from Tier 1 

to Tier 2, or if the financial instrument applies to specific cases with the standard, which requires the 
group to classify the assets directly within the second tier.  

 

The financial instrument is impaired,  when there is an objective evidence of impairment, as a result 
of a loss that have negative impact on the estimated future cash flow, accordingly  the financial 

instrument is transferred to third tier, and the expected credit loss model requires recognition of the 

expected loss over the life of the asset debt instruments are very similar to the requirements of IAS 

(39). 
 

When determining whether the credit risk of financial assets has increased significantly since initial 

recognition and in estimating the expected credit loss, the group relies on reasonable and supportive 
information available and relevant, including quantitative and qualitative information and analysis of 

this information based on the Group's past experience and credit study.  

 

The group considers financial assets to be impaired when: 

- The borrower likely be unable to pay its credit obligations to the group without recourse to the 

procedures for using the collateral held against such obligations (if any). 

- If more than, 90 days have elapsed on maturity of financial assets. 

 

The expected credit loss calculation mechanism depends on the (probability of default), which is 
calculated according to the credit risk and future economic factors, (loss given default), which depends 
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on the value of the existing collateral, the (exposure at default), The expected credit loss is discounted 

at the effective interest rate of the financial asset. 
 

At each financial period, the group evaluates the credit rating of financial assets at amortized cost and 

debt securities at fair value through the cosolidated statement of other comprehensive income. The 

credit rating of financial assets is considered to be impaired when one or more events that have a 
negative impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset occur. 
 

Provisions loss for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the total carrying 

amount of the financial asset. For debt securities at fair value through other comprehensive income, the 

provision for impairment is recognized in the consoldiated statement of  other comprehensive income 

and is not deducted from the carrying amount of the financial asset. The losses of other financial assets 
are presented under 'Financing expenses' in the same manner of disclosure used in accordance with 

IAS (39). Such disclosure is not included in the consolidated  statement of profit or loss and the 

consolidated statement of  other comprehensive income based on material considerations.  
-The brokerage customers receivables and customer margin interest receivables aged for more than 90 

days which are not covered by shares amounted to 755,657 JOD for the year ended December 31, 2019, 

(2018: JOD 755,657) are secured by property amounted to fair value as of 31 December 2019: 
4,962,125 JOD, (2018: JOD 5,386,250) assessed by an independent real estate valuator using input 

assess in the second level, and the company raised an executive case related to pledge on immovable 

property against account receivable amounted 900,000 and the case is still within the executive 

procedures. 
 

- During the year ended December 31, 2018, a receivable settlement agreement was signed at the 

Company's Financial Brokerage Department amounting to 132,502 JD. The partners of Siwar Al Sharq 
Trading Company, registered at the Companies Controller as a limited liability company under No. 

(30101), waived the amount of their shares in the said company in favor of Al-Bilad for Securities and 

Investment Company with a total value of 165,560 JD against the above-mentioned bad debt 

settlement, resulting in a full reduction in the value of the debt and recording the amount due for this 
investment of 30,057 JD under other credit balances. In accordance with the instructions of the 

Securities Commission, the investment property amounted to 159,000 JOD (note 12) must be disposed 

of within two years from the date of acquisition. 
 
 

8) Other debit balances  
  As of December 31, 

Jordanian Dinar   2019  2018 

deposits  ank guaranteesB  116,769  116,769 
Settlement guarantee fund  50,000  50,000 
Prepaid expenses  29,334  30,275 

Accrued revenue  7,945  7,945 

Employees receivable  4,898  8,268 
Securities depository Center receivable   3,688  1,736 
Refundable deposits  3,130  3,130 
Income tax on bank interest    339  7,208 
Other receivables*  184,371  199,749 

  400,474  425,080 

 

*This item includes an amount of 136,186 JD due from Inmaa Development and International 
Investment Company - Public Shareholding Company- as of December 31, 2019 (31 December 2018: 

146,674 JD) guaranteed by a first-class mortgage for the Company in the amount of JD 900,000. 
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9) Financial assets in fair value through other comprehensive income  
 

  As of December 31, 

Jordanian Dinar   2019  2018 

Shares of companies listed on the Amman Stock Exchange     

Portfolio of financial assets*  2,550,893  2,870,452 
Net change in fair value   (729,779)  (519,010) 

  1,821,114  2,351,442 
     

Shares of companies Not listed on the Stock Exchange     
Saraya Aqaba Real Estate Development Company**  616,578  616,578  
Net change in fair value   (527,093)  (447,093) 

  89,485  169,485 

Total   1,910,599  2,520,927 
 

 

* Financial assets include shares of listed companies in Amman Stock Exchange with fair value 
amounted to as of 31 December 2019: 1,251,387 JD (31 December 2018: 1,522,932 JD) at the date of 

the consolidated financial statements are mortgaged to Jordan Commercial Bank for bank facilities 

(Note 17). 
** Financial assets include shares of listed companies in Amman Stock Exchange with fair value 

amounted to as of 31 December 2019: 23,000 JD (2018: 15,000 JD), and are mortgaged against board 

membership.  
 

  ***The fair value of Saraya Aqaba Real Estate Development Company shares are evaluated according to 
the net book value of the Company’s asset since they are not listed in financial market Securities, in 

the opinion of the Group’s management there is no impairment in its value. In addition, the Company 

has a real estate project that is expected to be completed in 2022. The cost recovery depends on the 
completion of its implementation and the realization of cash flows in accordance with the cash flows 

of this project. 
 

 

 
 

 

 

10) Investment in associates’ company 

This item includes the following: 
 

  As of December 31, 

Jordanian Dinar   2019  2018 
     

Fair value to invest in associates’ company   1,862,289  1,858,844  
Additions during the year   -  3,445 

Cost purchase / invest in associates company   1,862,289  1,862,289 
     

The Company's share of net assets of the associate 

(27.656% and 27.59%) 

    

Opening balance   2,026,266  1,858,844 
Additions during the year   -  3,445 

Share of profit during the year  219,000  163,977 

Total   2,245,266  2,026,266 

Company’s profit from investing in associate  219,000  163,977 

 

Some of the shares of the associate company are mortgaged in favor of the Commercial Bank of Jordan, 
with their fair value as of 31 December 2019: 770,006 JD (as of 31 December 2018: 1,298,666 JD).  
 

The Group's share of the interests of the associate was calculated based on the audited financial 

statements for the year ended 31 December 2019. 
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11) Property and equipment  
 

Jordanian Dinar 

 

Furniture and 

Fixture 

 

Decorations 

 

Tools, 

Equipment 

 

Vehicles 

 

Computer 

Equipment 

 Al Zarqa’ 

Branch 

Assets 

 

 

Total 
As at December 31, 2019 

 

             
Cost               

Balance as at January 1, 2019  106,637  74,947  94,708  67,233  118,787  8,000  470,312 
Additions  460  -  -  -  879  1,335  2,674 
Balance as at December 31, 2019  107,097  74,947  94,708  67,233  119,666  9,335  472,986 
  

 
 

 
          

Accumulated Depreciation               

Balance as at January 1, 2019  83,045  63,925  73,408  26,067  111,146  500  358,091 
Depreciation for the year  6,504  11,018  6,464  10,085  3,652  2,109  39,832 
Balance as at December 31, 2019  89,549  74,943  79,872  36,152  114,798  2,609  397,923 

Net book value as at December 31, 2019  17,548  4  14,836  31,081  4,868  6,726  75,063 
  

 
 

 
          

As at December 31, 2018 
 

             
Cost               

Balance as at January 1, 2018  105,921  74,947  93,324  67,233  113,133  -  454,558 
Additions  716  -  1,384  -  5,654  8,000  15,754 

Balance as at December 31, 2018  106,637  74,947  94,708  67,233  118,787  8,000  470,312 
  

 
 

 
          

Accumulated Depreciation               

Balance as at January 1, 2018  76,347  52,056  66,929  15,982  107,852  -  319,166 
Depreciation for the year  6,698  11,869  6,479  10,085  3,294  500  38,925 

Balance as at December 31, 2018  83,045  63,925  73,408  26,067  111,146  500  358,091 

Net book value as at December 31, 2018  23,592  11,022  21,300  41,166  7,641  7,500  112,221 

 

.
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12) Investment property  
Jordanian Dinar   Land Buildings Total 

Cost     

Balance as at January 1, 2019 531,549 231,251 762,800 
Balance as at December 31, 2019 531,549 231,251 762,800 

    
Accumulated Depreciation     

Balance as at January 1, 2019 - 20,812 20,812 
Depreciation for the year  - 4,625 4,625 
Balance as at December 31, 2019 - 25,437 25,437 

Book Value as 31, December, 2019 531,549 205,814 737,363 

Cost     

Balance as at January 1, 2018 372,549 231,251 603,800 
Addition during the year* 159,000 - 159,000 

Balance as at December 31, 2018 531,549 231,251 762,800 

    

Accumulated Depreciation     

Balance as at January 1, 2018 - 16,187 16,187 
Depreciation for the year  - 4,625 4,625 

Balance as at December 31, 2018 - 20,812 20,812 
Book Value as 31, December, 2018 531,549 210,439 741,988 

 
*According to the independent real-estate experts the evaluation of the fair value of investment 

property at the date of consolidated financial statement was as follows: 
 

Level of fair value  Average Fair Value   Jordanian Dinar   

     

Level 2  540,494  Land 

Level 2  286,913  Buildings 
 

* The acquisition described in note (6) resulted to investment property amounted 159,000 as of 
December 31, 2019 & 2018. 

 

13) Right of use    

This item represents:  
  As of December 31, 

Jordanian Dinar   2019  2018 

     
Right of use asset   207,642  - 
Amortization – Right of use assets   (41,522)  - 

  166,120  - 
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14) Intangible assets  
 
Jordanian Dinar  

Computer 

Programs 

   

Cost   

As at 31 December 2019   
Balance at 1 January 2019  105,127 

Balance at 31 December 2019  105,127 

   

Accumulated Amortization   

Balance at 1 January 2019  99,268 

Amortization for the year  2,318 

Balance at 31, December 2019  101,586 

Net Book Value as at 31 December 2019  3,541 

   

As at 31 December 2018   

Balance at 1 January 2018  102,943 

Additions  2,184 

Balance at 31 December 2018  105,127 

   

Accumulated Amortization   

Balance at 1 January 2018  96,573 
Amortization for the year  2,695 

Balance at 31, December 2018  99,268 

Net Book Value as at 31 December 2018  5,859 
 

 

15) Brokerage license 

As of December 31,   

2018  2019  Jordanian Dinar   

     

200,000  200,000  Brokerage license 

(199,999)  (199,999)  Accumulated amortization 

1  1   

 

16) Income tax  

-   Movements on temporary timing differences were as follows: 

Jordanian Dinar 

Balance at 

the beginning 

of the year Additions 

Released 

amounts 

Balance at 

the end of 

the year 

Deferred 

tax assets  
      

As at 31 December 2019      

Expected Credit losses allowance  3,903,920 200,000 (443,000 ) 3,660,920 1,025,098 

 3,903,920 200,000 (443,000) 3,660,920 1,025,098 
      

As at 31 December 2018      

Expected Credit losses allowance  3,903,920 - - 3,903,920 1,093,098 

 3,903,920 - - 3,903,920 1,093,098 
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The movement on deferred tax asset account during the year was as follows: 

  As of December 31, 
Jordanian Dinar  2019  2018 
     

Balance at the beginning of the year   1,093,098  936,941 

Additions during the year    -  156,157 

Released  during the year    (68,000)  - 

Balance at the end of the year  1,025,098  1,093,098 
  

 

-  The movement on income tax provision during the year was as follows: 
  

As of December 31, 
        

Jordanian Dinar  2019  2018 
     

Balance at the beginning of the year   33,895  - 
Income tax for previous years  22,171  60,217 

Income Tax paid   (56,066)  (26,322) 

Balance at the end of the year   -  33,895 
 

- The income tax expense in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, other comprehensive income 

consists of: 
 

   
Jordanian Dinar  2019  2018 
     

Income tax for previous years  (22,171)  (60,217) 
Change in deferred tax assets   (68,000)  156,157 
     

  (90,171)  95,940 
 

- Reconciliation between taxable income and accounting income is as follows: 

   
Jordanian Dinar  2019  2018 
     

Income (loss) for the year before income tax   102,265  (177,748) 

(Less): Income not subject for income tax   (498,007)  (167,693) 
     

  (395,742)  (345,441) 

Income tax rate for the year %28 (2019: %24)  -  - 

 * There is no effectiveness on a tax to the presence of a deferred tax benefit rate. 

 

Tax Status 

- The Income tax status for the group has been settled until 2017. 

- The tax return was submitted for the period 2018, which have been accepted for estimation purposes 
and have not been reviewed as of the date of the consolidated financial statements. 

- The group has not calculated the income tax provision for the year; given the fact that the company 

has operating losses, which has been accepted by the Income and Sales tax department, and the group 

has operating losses during the year.  
 

17) Due to banks  
 

This balance represents the utilized balance of overdraft from the Jordan Commercial Bank with limit 

of 1.1 million JOD. The annual interest rate is 8.75%, and it is guaranteed by some of the Group’s 

own portfolio consolidated (Note 9 and Note 10) amounted to 2,021,393 JD as of December 31, 2019. 
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18) Brokerage customer payable 

 As of December 31, 
Jordanian Dinar 2019  2018 
    

Brokerage customer receivables 126,071  277,469 

Related parties Receivables (note 26-2) 40,668  
41,284 

Investment Management customer receivables 7,205  5,434 

Finance customers on margin receivables 5,213  2,307 
    

 179,157  326,494 

 

19) Leased liability  

 As of December 31, 
Jordanian Dinar 2019  2018 

Leased liability- short-term  44,835  - 

Leased liability- long-term 83,072  - 

 127,907  -  
 

 

20) Other credit balances 

 As of December 31, 
Jordanian Dinar 2019  2018 

    

Accrued expenses 59,823  82,599 

Shareholders deposits 57,956  58,096 
Employee vacations provision  40,895  31,306 

Under writing refundable 36,647  36,647 

Social security’s deposits  1,864  2,214 
Income tax deposits  1,716  1,772 

Other  11,083  11,379 

 209,984  224,013 
 

21) Statutory reserve  

According to the law of the Jordanian companies No. 22 of 1997 "on the public shareholding company 

to deduct 10% of the annual net profits to calculate the statutory reserve after the settlement of the 

accumulated losses, and maintain such a deduction for each year the total does not exceed what deduct 

25% of the subscribed company's capital "this could go on deduction of up to 100% approval of the 
General Assembly of the company. The Group may not distribute profit from its statutory reserve. 

 

 

22) Other revenue  

 For the year ended December 31, 
Jordanian Dinar 2019  2018 
    

Rent   7,908  2,990 
Interest on Settlement Guarantee Fund 2,838  2,236 

Other  259  254 

Opening accounts revenue  145  190 

 11,150  5,670 
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23) Administrative expenses  
 

  For the year ended December 31, 
Jordanian Dinar  2019  2018 

     
Salaries and wages  241,940  279,905 

Company contributions in social securities   15,562  20,817 
Transportation   33,600  33,600 

Fees and license   31,666  29,113 
Legal expenses   25,150  13,400 

Professional fees   16,680  15,164 
Medical insurance   13,022  10,322 

Employee vacation and end of service  9,816  5,086 
Mail, Phone and internet   6,296  6,911 

Car expenses   6,190  3,130 
Al Zarqa’ Branch expenses  

4,940  3,061 

Maintenance   4,179  7,556 
Cleaning and hospitality   3,975  5,471 

Other   3,903  3,837 
Water and electricity   3,192  3,667 

Printings and stationery   2,581  2,146 
Donations   

2,000  2,500 

Board of director expenses   2,203  3,904 
Trading errors   

1,812  581 

Furnished apartment expenses   1,349  2,654 
Rents   900  45,900 

Advertising   293  1,356 
Investor safety fund   -  5,974 

Penalties   -  150 

  431,249  506,205 

 

24) Finance expenses  

 For the year ended December 31, 
Jordanian Dinar 2019  2018 
    

Banks fees 102,560  121,567 

Banks commission  14,055  13,645 

Interest – Finance charges 14,240   - 

 130,855  135,212 

 

25) Basic and diluted profit (losses) per share  

 As of December 31, 
Jordanian Dinar 2019  2018 
    

Profit (loss) for the year (JOD) 12,094  (81,808) 
Weighted average for shares (per share)  10,000,000  10,000,000 
    

 0.001  (0.008) 
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26) Balances and Transaction with related parties 

Transactions with related transactions that are made with associates and key administrators and key 
partners in the company and institutions controlled in whole or in part, or affect mainly on those 

entities related parties represent. Directors have approved the policy and conditions of transactions 

with related parties. 
 

 

26-1) Due from related parties 
 

 

Jordanian Dinar 
Nature of 

transaction 

Nature of 

relationship 

 

As of December 31, 

   2019 2018 

Sharif Al-Rawshdeh Trading Member of the Board 420 - 

   420 - 
 

 

26-2) Due to related parties 
 

 

Jordanian Dinar 
Nature of 

transaction 

Nature of 

relationship 

 

As of December 31, 

   2019 2018 

Sadaf Al Bahar for 
property development 

Company 

Trading 
Deputyof Chairman 

of the Board 
21,592 

 
21,592 

Fahad Thnian  Trading Contributor 16,226 16,226 

Arab Securities Trading - 

Saudi Arabia 

 

Trading 
Former contributor 

2,524 
 

2,524 

Saleh Al-Mdefar  Trading Contributor 200 200 

 

Emran Omar  

 

Trading 

Former member of 

the Board 
101 

 

101 

Abd-Alazez Masha’al  Trading contributor 25 25 

Sharif Al-Rawashdeh  
Trading 

Member of the 

Board 
- 160 

Sameer Al-Rawashdeh   
Trading 

Former member of 
the Board 

- 
 

456 

   40,668 41,284 
 

 

The size to deal with related parties during the year is as follows: 
Jordanian Dinar 

Nature of Transaction 

For the Year ended of 

December 31, 

  2019 2018 

Sharif Al Rawshdeh  Brokerage commission 481 757 

Ahmed Al Ahmed Brokerage commission 470 167 
Samer Al Rawashdeh Brokerage commission 162 2 

Ismail Issa dkeidek  Brokerage commission 58 95 
Issam hashem  Brokerage commission - 467 

Mohammad Rasheed Brokerage commission - 138 
Sadaf Al Bahar for property 

development Company 
Brokerage commission 

- 621 

 

26-3) Key management remuneration  

Salaries and bonuses of senior executive management amounted to 173,250 Jordanian Dinar for the 

year ended 31 December 2019 compared to 211,867 Jordanian Dinar for the year ended 31 December 

2018. 
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27) Contingent Liabilities 

 

Cash insurance against the bank guarantees amounted to 116,769 Jordanian Dinars for the year ended 

December 31, 2018, (2017: JOD 101,319) 
 

28) Financial risk management   
Overview 

The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments. 
 

 

- Credit risk 
- Liquidity risk 

- Market risk  

- Capital management 
 

This note presents information about the Group's exposure to each of the above risks, the Group's 
objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Group's management of 

capital.  

 
Risk management framework 

The management has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of Group's risk 

management framework.  
 

The Group's risk management policies are established to identify and analyses the risks faced by the 
Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits.  

 

 

Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions 

and the Group's activities. The Group, through its training and management standards and 

procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all 
employees understand their roles and obligations. 

 
 

 

The Group Audit Committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Group’s risk 

management policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework 
in relation to the risks faced by the Group.  
 

The Group Audit Committee is assisted in its oversight role by Internal Audit. Internal Audit 

undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results 
of which are reported to the Audit Committee. 

 

The carrying amount of the financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum 

exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was as follows: 
 

 As of December 31, 
Jordanian Dinar 2019  2018 

    

Cash at banks  178,244  342,643 

Financial assets at amortized cost  3,125,618  3,430,882 

Other debit balances 371,140  394,805 

 3,675,002  4,168,330 
 

 

 

 

 As of December, 31 
Jordanian Dinar 2019  2018 

    

Guarantees 750,500  750,500 

 750,500  750,500 
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- Liquidity risk 
 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated 

with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Group’s 

approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient 
liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring 

unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group’s reputation. 
 

 

The Group ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational expenses, 
including the servicing of financial obligations; this excludes the potential impact of extreme 

circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted, such as natural disasters. In addition, the company 

maintains line of credit from its bank for sudden cash requirements. 
 

The following are the contracted maturities of financial liabilities, including estimated interest 

payments: 

 

 

December 31, 2019 
Carrying 

Amount 

Contractual 

Cash Flows 

Less than 

year 

 

More than a 

year  

Jordanian Dinar     

Due to banks 996,009 (996,009) (996,009) - 

Brokerage customer payable  179,157 (179,157) (179,157) - 

Other credit balances  209,984 (209,984) (209,984) - 
Lease liability  127,907 (147,300) (48,835) (83,072) 

 1,513,057 (1,532,450 )  )1,429,985) (83,072) 

 

December 31, 2018 
Carrying 

Amount 

Contractual 

Cash Flows 

Less than 

year 

 

More than a 

year  

Jordanian Dinar     

Due to banks 1,448,224 (1,448,224) (1,448,224) - 

Brokerage customer payable  326,494 (326,494) (326,494) - 

Other credit balances  224,013 (224,013) (224,013) - 

 1,998,731 )1,998,731( )1,998,731( - 

 
- Market risk 

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rate and 

equity prices will affect the Group's profit or the value of its holdings of financial instruments.  
The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within 

acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return. 

 

- Currency Risk 

Most of the Group's financial assets and liabilities are in Jordanian Dinar. Most of the Group's 

transactions in general are in Jordanian dinar accordingly, the Group is not highly exposed to foreign 

currency risk. 
 

- Interest rate risk 

At the reporting date of consolidated financial statements, the interest rate profile of the Group's 
interest-bearing financial instruments was as follows: 

 As at December 31, 
Jordanian Dinar 2019  2018 

Fixed rate instruments:    
Financial liabilities 996,009  1,448,224 

 

The increase in the interest rate by 1% will lead to an increase in financing expenses amounted to 

9,960 JD. The decrease in the interest rate by 1% would lead to a decline in financing expenses 
amounted to 9,960 JD. 
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- Market price risk  

Equity price risk arises from financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income held 

for meeting partially the unfunded portion of the Group’s obligations as well as investments at fair 
value through profit or loss. Management of the Group monitors the mix of debt and equity securities 

in its investment portfolio based on market indices. Material investments within the portfolio are 

managed on an individual basis and all buy and sell decisions are approved by the Risk Management 
Committee. 

 

- Sensitivity analysis for equity price risk 
 

A change of 5% in fair value of the securities at the reporting date would have increased (decreased) 

equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, 

in particular foreign currency rates, remain constant. 
 

 Equity 

December 31, 2019 

5%  

Increase 

5% 

Decrease 

Jordanian Dinar   
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income  95,530 95,530 

 95,530 95,530 

December 31, 2018   

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income  126,046 (126,046) 

 126,046 (126,046 ) 

 

- Capital management 

Group’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain shareholder, creditor and market 
confidence and to sustain future development of the business. Capital consists of ordinary shares, 

non-redeemable preference shares, accumulated losses of the Group. 
 

The management monitors the return on capital, which the management defined as net operation 
income divided by total shareholders’ equity. 

 

The management seeks to maintain a balance between the higher returns that might be possible with 

higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position. 
 

There have been no changes in the Group's approach to capital management during the year neither 

the Group is subject to externally imposed capital requirements. 

 

Debt-to-adjusted Capital Ratio 
 

 As at December 31, 

Jordanian Dinar 2019  2018 
    

Total Debt 1,513,057  2,032,626 

(Less) cash and cash equivalent (178,524)  (345,596) 

Net Debt 1,334,533  1,687,030 
    

Net Shareholders’ equity 8,354,610  8,669,292 

Adjusted capital 8,498,610  8,669,292 

Debt - to- adjusted capital ratio 0.160  0.195 

 

The fair value 

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities are not materially different from their carrying value 

in the statement of financial position. 
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Fair value hierarchy 

 The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method. The 

different levels have been defined as follows: 
 Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 

 Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or 

liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices) 
 Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable 

inputs) 

A. Assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis: 

Total  Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Jordanian Dinar 

    201931 December As at  

1,910,599 - 89,485 1,821,114 

Financial assets measured at fair value 

through other comprehensive income  
     

    As at 31 December 2018 

2,520,927 - 169,485 2,351,442 

Financial assets measured at fair value 

through other comprehensive income  
 

Of the items described above, have been identified the second level of the fair value of financial assets 

and liabilities on the basis (agreed-upon pricing models to reflect the credit risk for the parties that 
deal with the company / price offered for assets similar in an inactive market / interest rates, the rate 

of return and volatility implied credit / inputs and margins related to the market (market-related data). 

 

B. Assets and liabilities that are not measured at fair value: 

With the exception of the table below, the Group's management believes that the book value of 

financial assets and liabilities that appear in the consolidated financial statements approximate their 

fair value as a result of the maturity of the bonds in the short term or re-pricing of interest rates during 
the year: 

 

 

Items described above have been identified at the second level of the fair value of financial assets and 

liabilities on the basis (agreed-upon pricing models to reflect the credit risk for the parties that deal with 
the company / price offered for assets similar in an inactive market / interest rates, the rate of return and 

volatility implied credit / inputs and margins related to the market (market-related data). 

 

 

 

Fair value Book value    Jordanian Dinar  

Level 3 Level 2 Level 1   

    920131 December  

     

- - - 178,524 Cash and cash equivalent  

- - - 25,61813,  Financial assets at amortized cost  

- - - (996,009) Credit banks  

- - - (179,157) Brokerage customer payable  

   (127,907) Leased liability  

Fair value    Book value    Jordanian Dinar  

Level 3 Level 2 Level 1   

    31 December 2018 

     

- - - 345,596 Cash and cash equivalent  

- - - 3,430,882 Financial assets at amortized cost  

- - - (1,448,224 ) Credit banks  
- - - (326,494 ) Brokerage customer payable  
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C. Assets and liabilities of non-financial, which are not measured at fair value, which is disclosed 

at fair value in the financial statements: 

 

The items above clarify the fair value of assets and liabilities of non-financial, which is determined on 

the basis of (a description of the valuation method used to measure the fair value); if the best use differs 

from current use, It is to say why they use it in a way different from the best use). 
 

29) SUBSEQUENT EVENTS  

 

The spread of novel coronavirus (COVID-19) across multiple geographies was confirmed in early 
2020, causing significant macro-economic uncertainty, disruptions to businesses and economic 

activities. The Company considers this outbreak to be a non-adjusting post balance sheet event. At this 

early stage, the Company is in the process of assessing any potential financial impact. The management 
and those charged with governance will continue to monitor the situation and accordingly update all 

stakeholders as soon as more information is available. Changes in circumstances may require enhanced 

disclosures or recognition of adjustments in the condensed interim financial information of the 
Company for the subsequent periods in the year 2020. 

 

30) COMPARATIVE FIGURES 

Comparative figures represent the statement of financial position as of 31 December 2018. 

Fair value  Book value   Jordanian Dinar  

Level 3  Level 2 Level 1   

    192031 December As at  

- 827,407 - 737,363 Investment property 

    As at 31 December 2018 

- 843,980 - 741,988 Investment property 
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KPMG Kawasmy & Partners Co., a registered Jordanian partnership under No. (226),  
is a member firm of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT  

 

To the General Assembly  

Al BILAD SECURITIES AND INVESTMENT COMPANY  

(Public Shareholding Company) 

Amman – Jordan 

Audit Report Over the Consolidated Financial Statements 
 

Opinion 

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Al Bilad Securities and Investment 

Company Public Shareholding Company  - (“the Company”) and its subsidiary (“ the 

Group”), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 
2019, the consolidated statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, 

consolidated changes in shareholders’ equity and consolidated cash flows for the year then 

ended, and notes, comprising significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.  

 
In our opinion the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated 

financial position of the Group as of December 31, 2019, and its financial performance and its 
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting 

Standards”. 
 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for 

the Audit of the consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of 

the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 
consolidated financial statements in accordance with International Ethics Standards Board for 

Accountants Code of Ethics, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 

accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Emphasis of Matter 

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to the notes (2-D) of the consolidated 

financial statements, which highlights the consolidation of Siwar Al Sharq For Trading (a 

Subsidiary) in accordance with exchange of settlement agreement with one of broker 
receivables, as a result the right of ownership transferred from old partners to the benefit of the 

Company against such receivables. 

Key Audit Matters  

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance 
in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current year. These matters were 

addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in 

forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.  The 

description of the key audit matters is presented below: 
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1- Determination of fair value of the Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive 

income  

Description of the key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit 

The Group holds investments in financial assets 

at fair value through other comprehensive 

income amounted to JOD 1,910,599 and JOD 
2,520,927 as of December 31, 2019 and 

December 31, 2018, respectively, some of these 

investments are not quoted in an active market.  
Accordingly, the determination of the fair value 

requires management to make several judgments 

and assessments and to rely on non-listed prices 
inputs. Consequently, management’s fair value 

estimation of these assets was significant to our 

audit. 

 

Audit procedures included evaluating internal 

procedures relating to the determination of 

financial assets at fair value through other 
comprehensive income and examination of their 

efficiency. In addition to evaluate the estimates 

adopted by the Group’s management to 
determine the fair value of non- listed financial 

assets. Moreover, these estimates have been 

compared to the requirements of International 
Financial Reporting Standards and discussed in 

light of available information. 

  

The audit procedures also included evaluating 
the adopted methodology, appropriateness of 

evaluation models, and inputs used to determine 

the fair value of financial assets. They also 
included reviewing the reasonableness of the 

most significant inputs in the evaluation process 

through reviewing investee companies’ 
financial statements.  

 

2- Expected credit losses  

Description of the key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit 

The Group’s has financial assets at amortized 
cost (net) amounted to JOD 3,125,618, and JOD 

3,430,882 as of December 31, 2019 and 

December 31, 2018 respectively. 
The adequacy of the provisions depends on 

management’s estimates. Consequently, this 

matter is significant to our audit. 
 

In addition, the application of IFRS no. (9) has 

affected the management's estimate in 

calculating the provision for the expected credit 
losses on these receivables. 

 

 
 

 

 

 
  

The audit procedures include considering the 
internal control system related to collection of 

the brokerage receivables, the acceptance of 

new customers, and  review of  the cash received 
in the subsequent period until the end of the 

financial year, testing the adequacy of the 

expected credit losses provision recorded on 
Financial assets at amortized cost through 

evaluating the management assumptions 

regarding receivables aging. We also review the 

available external information of due 
receivables risks, and our experience regarding 

the expected credit losses provision in this 

sector. The evaluation also include the 
evaluating of real estate or customers portfolios 

held as collaterals against receivables due for 

more than three months. The audit procedures 

also includes an assessment of the 
reasonableness of the assumptions adopted by 

the management regarding the calculation of the 

expected credit losses provision based on the 
market information and the specific patterns 

selected by management, as well as the 

recalculation of this provision and the 
disclosure of its impact on the consolidated 

financial statements for the current year.  
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Other Information  

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information does not include 
the consolidated financial statements and our auditors’ report on the consolidated financial 

statements. 

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and 

we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to 

read the other information and, in doing so, we consider whether the other information is 

materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in 
the audit. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 

misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We were not provided 

with the annual report of the company or any other information as it relates to this paragraph 

until the date of this report. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated 

Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial 

statements in accordance with IFRS, and for such internal control as management determines is 
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 

concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to 

liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.  

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting 

process.  

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial 

statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 
issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 

assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always 

detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and 
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 

influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial 

statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, 

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The 

risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 

from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, 

or the override of internal control. 
 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 

opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. 
 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by management.  
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Al BILAD SECURITIES AND INVESTMENT COMPANY AND ITS SUBSIDIARY 

(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY) 

AMMAN – JORDAN  
 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION  

    

  Jordanian Dinar   As at December 31, 

 Notes  2019  2018 

Assets      

Current Assets      

Cash and cash equivalents  6  178,524  345,596 
Financial assets at amortized cost 7  3,125,618  3,430,882 
Other debit balances 8  400,474  425,080 
Total-Current Assets   3,704,616  4,201,558 

      

Non- Current Assets      
Financial assets at fair value through other 

comprehensive income 9 

 
1,910,599 

 
2,520,927 

Investment in associate 10  2,245,266  2,026,266 
Property and equipment 11  75,063  112,221 
Investment property 12  737,363  741,988 
Right of use assets  13  166,120  - 
Intangible assets 14  3,541  5,859 
Brokerage license  15  1  1 
Deferred tax assets 16  1,025,098  1,093,098 
Total Non- Current Assets   6,163,051 

 

6,500,360 

Total Assets   9,867,667  10,701,918 

 
  

   
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity      

Liabilities       

Current Liabilities       

Due to banks  17,6  996,009  1,448,224 
Brokerage customer payable  18  179,157  326,494 
Leased liability- short-term  19  44,835  - 
Other credit balances 20  209,984  224,013 
Income tax payable 16  -  33,895 
Total Current liabilities   1,429,985  2,032,626 

      
Non-current liability       

Leased liability- long-term  19  83,072  - 

Total non-current liability    83,072  - 

Total Liabilities    1,513,057  2,032,626 

      
Shareholders’ equity       

Paid-up capital  1  10,000,000  10,000,000 
Statutory reserve 21  516,729  516,729 
Fair value reserve 9  (1,256,872 )  (966,103) 
Accumulated losses    (905,247 )  (881,334) 
Net Shareholders’ Equity   8,354,610  8,669,292 

Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity   9,867,667  918,70110, 
 

* The accompanying notes on pages from (9) to (41) are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 

* The consolidated financial statements were approved by page (9) to (41) by board of directors June 15, 2020 and 

signed by  

 

Chairman of Board of Directors General Manager Financial Manager 
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Al BILAD SECURITIES AND INVESTMENT COMPANY AND ITS SUBSIDIARY  

 (PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY) 

 AMMAN – JORDAN  

 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE 

INCOME 

  

Notes 

 year ended December 31,For the  

               Jordanian Dinar  2019  2018 

      

Revenues      

Brokerage Commissions   201,626  198,405 

Interest revenue customer margin accounts   75,503  92,133 

Dividends revenue distributed by investees     -  63,106 

Bank interests revenue    2,334  3,520 

Investment Management revenue   53  462 

Company share of results from an associate 10  219,000  163,977 

Other revenue 22  11,150  5,670 

Reversed from (provision) of expected credit losses  7  243,000  - 

Total revenue   752,666  527,273 

      

Expenses      

Administrative expenses 23  (431,249 )  (506,205) 
Finance expenses 24  (130,855 )  (135,212) 

Depreciation and amortization 11,12,13,14  (88,297)  (46,245) 

Foreign currency exchange loss   -  (17,359) 

Total expenses   (650,401 )  (705,021) 

      

Income (Loss) for the year before income tax   102,265  (177,748) 

Income tax (Expense) surplus 16  (90,171)  95,940 

Profit (Loss) for the year   12,094  (81,808) 

      
Other consolidated comprehensive income items:      

Gain (loss) on sale of financial assets at fair value 

through other comprehensive income 

  

168,211 

  

(21) 
Net change in the fair value of the financial assets at 

fair value through other comprehensive income 

  (494,987 )   

106,794 

Total comprehensive (loss) income for the year   (314,682 )  24,965 

Basic and diluted earning (losses) per share 25  0.001  (0.008) 

 

The accompanying notes on pages from (9) to (41) are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 

 

 
 

Chairman of Board of Directors General Manager Financial Manager 
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Al BILAD SECURITIES AND INVESTMENT COMPANY AND ITS SUBSIDIARY  

(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY) 

AMMAN – JORDAN  

 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 
           

 

 

Jordanian Dinar 
Paid-up Capital  

Statutory 

Reserve 

 

Fair value 

reserve *  

(Accumulated) 

losses ** 

 

Net Shareholders’ 

Equity 

          

Changes for the year ended December 31, 2019          

Balance at 1 January 2019 10,000,000  516,729  (966,103 )  (881,334)  8,669,292 

Profit for the year -  -  -  12,094  12,094 

Change in fair value of the financial assets through other comprehensive 

income 
-  -  (494,987 )  -  (494,987) 

Gain from selling financial assets -  -  -  168,211  168,211 
Transfer from change in fair value -  -  204,218  (204,218)  - 

Balance at 31 December 2019 10,000,000  516,729  (1,256,872 )  (905,247 )  8,354,610 

          

Changes for the year ended December 31, 2018          

Balance at 1 January 2018 10,000,000  516,729  (1,076,592)  (795,810)  8,644,327 

(Loss) for the year -  -  -  (81,808)  (81,808) 

Change in fair value of the financial assets through other comprehensive 

income 
-  -  106,794  -  106,794 

(Loss) from selling financial assets -  -  -  (21)  (21) 

Transfer from change in fair value -  -  3,695  (3,695)  - 

Balance at 31 December 2018 10,000,000  516,729  (966,103)  (881,334)  8,669,292 

 

* According to the Jordanian Securities Commission instructions the negative value of the fair value reserve amounting to JOD (1,256,872) is prohibited from distribution to the 

Shareholders as of December 31, 2019 (2018: JOD (966,103)). 
 

**   The accumulated losses as at December 31, 2019 include deferred tax assets of JOD 1,025,098, (2018: JOD 1,093,098) prohibited from use or distribution to the shareholders in 

accordance with the instructions of Jordanian Securities Commission.  
  

 

 

The accompanying notes on pages from (9) to (41) are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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Al BILAD SECURITIES AND INVESTMENT COMPANY AND ITS SUBSIDIARY 

(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)  

AMMAN – JORDAN 
 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

   For the year ended December 31, 

Jordanian Dinar sNote  2019  2018 

Cash flows from operating activities:       

Profit (Loss) for the year before income tax   102,265  (177,748) 

      

Adjustments for:        

Finance expenses 24  130,855  135,212 

Depreciation and amortization 11,12,13,14  88,297  46,245 

Company share of results from associate company 10  (219,000 )  (163,977) 

Reversed from (provision) of expected credit losses 7  (243,000)  - 

Loss from selling financial asset through other 
comprehensive Income  

  
(36,007 )  - 

   (176,590 )  (160,268 ) 

Changes in working capital items:      

Financial assets at amortized cost   548,264  333,174 

Other debit balances   24,606  (54,409) 

Brokerage customer payables   (147,337 )  44,372 

Other credit balances   (14,029 )  21,869 

Cash flow from operating activities   234,914  184,738 

      

Finance expense paid   (130,855)  (135,212) 

Income tax paid 16  (56,066)  (26,322) 

Net cash flow from operating activities   47,993  23,204 

      

Cash flows from investing activities      

Payment on purchase of property and equipment 11  (2,674 )  (15,754) 

Payment on purchase of intangible assets 14  -  (2,184) 

Payment on purchase of investment in associate 

company 
  -  (3,445) 

Payment on purchase through other comprehensive 

income 
  319,559  (15,543) 

Net cash flow from (used in) investing activities   316,885  (36,926) 

      

Cash flow from Financing activities       

Leased liability    (79,735 )  - 

Cash flow (used in) financing Activities    (79,735 )  - 

      

Net change in cash and cash equivalents      285,143  (13,722) 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 6  (1,102,628 )  (1,088,906) 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 6  (817,485 )  (1,102,628 ) 

Non-cash item 
     

Investment property against settlement of Accounts 

receivable 

  

-  (159,000) 

Right of Use    207,642  - 

Leased Liability    297,642  - 

   
 

 

 

The accompanying notes on pages from (9) to (41) are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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1) GENERAL 
 

Al Bilad Securities and Investment Company was established as a public shareholding company, on 

22 March 2006 and registered with the Ministry of Industry and Trade of the Hashemite Kingdom of 

Jordan under the number (397), in the book of public shareholding stock companies with a capital of 
10 million Jordanian dinar, and the most important goals of the company is acting as an intermediary 

in Amman stock exchange, according to the Jordan securities commission law and regulations.  

 

On April 16, 2009, the capital has increased from 10 million Jordanian dinar to 11.5 million dinar 

through capitalizing part from retained earnings. On May 5, 2010, the capital increased from 11.5 

million Jordanian dinars to 12 million Jordanian dinars through capitalizing part from retained 
earnings. 

 

On June 18, 2013, the capital has decreased from 12 million Jordanian dinar to 10 million Jordanian 

dinars through amortizing the full-accumulated losses.  
 

The Company shares is listed on the Amman Stock Exchange. 

 
The Company is located in Amman - The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan. 
 

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on June 15, 2020 and 

is subject to general assembly approval. 

 

2) BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

(a) Statement of compliance 

The consolidated financial statement preparation in accordance to International Financial Reporting 

Standards (IFRS).   
   

(b) Basis of measurement 

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for 

financial assets of fair value through other comprehensive income which we measured as fair value. 
 

(c) Functional and presentation currency 

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Jordanian Dinar, which is the group's 

functional currency. 
 

 

(d) Basis of consolidating financial statements 

The consolidated financial statements include the consolidated financial statements for the Company 

and its following subsidiary, after the elimination of transactions and balances between them, the 

Company has the following subsidiary as of December 31, 2019: 

 

The following is the most important information about the subsidiary as of December 31, 2019 & 2018: 

 

 
 

 

Year of 

acquisition 

Country of 

operation Nature of operation 
Ownership 

Percentage Capital Company Name 

20 June 2018 Jordan 

Possession of movable 

and immovable property %100 1,000 

Siwar Al Sharq For Trading 

Company 

As of 31 December, 2019 

Expenses Revenues Liabilities Assets In Jordanian Dinar 
500 - 158,300 159,000 Siwar Al Sharq For Trading Company 

As of 31 December, 2018 

Expenses Revenues Liabilities Assets In Jordanian Dinar 
500 - 158,500 159,000 Siwar Al Sharq For Trading Company 



Al BILAD SECURITIES AND INVESTMENT COMPANY AND ITS SUBSIDIARY 

(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY) 

AMMAN – JORDAN  

 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

10 
 

Siwar Al- Sharq for Trading Company has been consolidated according to a settlement agreement 

for brokerage customers receivables, through which previous owners' shares have been waived to the 

Group against these receivables 

 
The Company accounts for business combinations of a subsidiary in the consolidated statement of 

profit or loss and other comprehensive income starting from the date of the acquisition which is the 

date when control is transferred from the company to the group.  
 

The Group accounts for business combinations using the acquisition method when control is 

transferred to the Group. The consideration transferred in the acquisition is generally measured at 

fair value, as are the identifiable net assets acquired. Any goodwill that arises is tested annually for 
impairment. 
 

Any gain on bargain purchases is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income immediately. Transactions costs are expensed as incurred in the consolidated 

statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income except if related to the issue of debt or 

equity securities.  
 

The consideration transferred does not include amounts related to the settlement of pre-existing 

relationship. Such amounts are generally recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss 

and other comprehensive income. 
  

Any contingent consideration payable is measured at fair value at the acquisition date. If the 

contingent consideration is classified as shareholders’ equity, then it is not re-measured, and 

settlement is accounted for within Shareholder’s equity. Otherwise, subsequent changes in the fair 
value of the contingent consideration are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss 

and other comprehensive income. 
 
 

Non-controlling interests are measured at their proportionate share of the acquire identifiable net 
assets at the acquisition date. 
 

On the loss of control, the Group derecognizes the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, any non-

controlling interests and the other components of equity related to the subsidiary. Any surplus or 
deficit arising on the loss of control is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and 

other comprehensive income. 
 

Balances, transactions and unrealized profits and expenses resulted from transactions within the 
Group are eliminated when preparing these consolidated financial statements. 

 

(e) Use of judgments and estimates  

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, management has made judgements and 
estimates that affect the application of the Company’s accounting policies and the reported amounts 

of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates are 
recognized prospectively. 

• Judgments 

The following are the most significant judgments that have a material effect on the amounts of assets 

and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements: 

- Classification of financial assets: Valuation of the business model under which the asset is to be 
held and determining whether the contractual terms of the SPPI are on the outstanding balance. 

- The development of new criteria to determine whether financial assets have declined significantly 

since initial recognition and determine the methodology of future expectations and methods of 
measuring expected credit loss. 
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• Assumptions and estimation uncertainties  

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties at December 31, 2019 that have 

significant  risk of resulting in a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities 

in the next financial year is included in the following notes: 

- Recognition of deferred tax assets: availability of future taxable profit against which deductible 
temporary differences and tax losses carried forward can be utilised; 

- Impairment test of tangible assets: key assumptions underlying recoverable amounts, and 

periodically reassessment of the economic useful lives of tangible assets based on the general 
condition of these assets and the expectation for their useful economic lives in the future. 

- Impairment test of intangible assets: key assumptions underlying recoverable amounts, including 

the recoverability of development costs; and periodically reassessment of the economic useful lives 

of intangible assets based on the general condition of these assets and the expectation for their useful 
economic lives in the future. 

- Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: key assumptions about the 

likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources; 

- Measurement of ECL allowance for trade receivables and contract assets: key assumptions in 

determining the weighted‑average loss rate; and  

- Impairment test of Investment property: key assumptions underlying recoverable amounts, and 
periodically reassessment of the economic useful lives of Investment property based on the general 

condition of these assets and the expectation for their useful economic lives in the future. 

Measurement of fair values: 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. 

 

A number of the Group’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, 
for both financial and non‑financial assets and liabilities. 
 

The Group has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. 

This includes a valuation team that has overall responsibility for overseeing all significant fair value 
measurements, including Level 3 fair values, and reports directly to the chief financial officer. 
 

The valuation team regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If 

third party information, such as broker quotes or pricing services, is used to measure fair values, then 
the valuation team assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion 

that these valuations meet the requirements of the Standards, including the level in the fair value 

hierarchy in which the valuations should be classified. 

Significant valuation issues are reported to the Group’s Board of Directors.  
 

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses observable market data as far 

as possible. Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the 
inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows. 
 

– Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

– Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or 
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). 

– Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable 

inputs). 

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair 
value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the 

fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement. 
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The Group recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting   

period during which the change has occurred. 

The management’s believe that the accounting estimates and assumptions used are resonable and 

sufficient. 
 
 

3) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

The accounting policies applied by the Group in these consolidated financial statements for the year 

ended December 31, 2019 are the same as those applied by the Group in its consolidated financial 
statements for the year ended December 31, 2018, except for the following new International Financial   

Reporting Standards or amendments that become effective after  January 1,2019:                                                     

- IFRS 16 Leases. 

- IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments. 

- Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation (Amendments to IFRS 9). 

- Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement (Amendments to IAS 19). 

- Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015–2017 Cycle (Amendments to IFRS 3, IFRS 11, IAS 12 and IAS 23). 

         

   The Group anticipates that each of the above standards and amendments will be adopted in the 
consolidated financial statements by its date mentioned above without having any material impact on 

the Group’s consolidated financial statements, except for IFRS 16 Leases. 

 

Changes in Significant Accounting Policies 

- IFRS (16) Leases Contracts 

The Company has applied IFRS (16) using the modified retrospective approach and therefore the 

comparative information has not been restated and continues to be reported under IAS (17) and IFRIC 
(4) The details of accounting policies under IAS (17) and IFRIC (4) are disclosed separately if they are 

different from those under IFRS 16 and the impact of changes is disclosed below.  

At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract 
is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a 

period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control 

the use of an identified asset, the Group uses the definition of a lease contract that mentioned as per the 

international financial reporting standards no (16). 

This policy applies to contracts entered on or after January 1, 2019. 

• As a Lessee  

At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a lease component, the Group allocates the 

consideration in the contract to each lease component based on their relative prices. However, for the 
leases of land and buildings in which it is a lessee, the Group has elected not to separate non-lease 

components and account for the lease and non-lease components as a single lease component. 

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the 

commencement date to the end of the lease term. Unless the lease transfers the ownership of the 
underlying asset to the group, at the end of lease contract, or the exercise price under a purchase option 

that the Company is reasonably certain to exercise, then the asset will be depreciated based on the 

estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets, which are determined on the same basis as those of property 
and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, 

and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.  

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the 
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be 

readily determined, the Group’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Group uses its incremental 

borrowing rate as the discount rate.  
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The Group determines the additional borrowing rate, by obtaining the interest rates from external 

financing resources, and making some adjustments to reflect the terms of the lease contracts, and the 

leased asset.  

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following: 

- fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;  

- Variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as 

at the commencement date;  

- Amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and  

- The exercise price under a purchase option that the Group is reasonably certain to exercise, lease 

payments in an optional renewal period if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise an extension 

option, and penalties for early termination of a lease unless the Group is reasonably certain not to 
terminate early.  

- To classify each lease, the Group makes an overall assessment of whether the lease transfers 

substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset. If this is the 
case, then the lease is a finance lease; if not, then it is an operating lease. As part of this assessment, the 

Company considers certain indicators such as whether the lease is for the major part of the economic 

life of the asset. 

When the Company is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the sub-

lease separately. It assesses the lease classification of a sub-lease with reference to the right-of-use asset 

arising from the head lease, not with reference to the underlying asset. 

Property and equipment include owned and leased assets that do not meet the definition of the right of 
use assets. 

 

Short-Term Leases and Leases of Low-Value Assets 

The Group has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases that 

have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets, The Company recognizes the lease 

payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 
 

• As Lessor  

At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a lease component, the Group allocates the 

consideration in the contract to each lease component based on their relative prices. 

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease inception whether each lease is a finance lease 
or an operating lease. 

To classify each lease, the Group makes an overall assessment of whether the lease transfers 

substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset. If this is the case, 
then the lease is a finance lease; if not, then it is an operating lease. As part of this assessment, the Group 

considers certain indicators such as whether the lease is for the major part of the economic life of the 

asset. 

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the sub-lease 
separately. It assesses the lease classification of a sub-lease with reference to the right-of-use asset 

arising from the head lease, not with reference to the underlying asset. If a head lease is a short-term 

lease to which the Group applies the exemption described above, then it classifies the sub-lease as an 
operating lease.  

The Group applies the impairment requirements, according to the international financial reporting 

standard no (9), on the net investment from rent contract. In addition, on a regular basis, the group revise 
the estimated-guaranteed residual value, that are used in gross investment account in the rent contract.   

The Group recognizes lease payments received under operating leases as income on a straight-line basis 

over the lease term as part of ‘other income’.  
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The accounting policies applicable to the Group as a lessor in the comparative period were not different 

from IFRS 16. However, when the Group was an intermediate lessor the sub-leases were classified with 

reference to the underlying asset. 

There is no rental income from leases contracts in which the group acts as lessor.  
  

Policy applicable before January 1, 2019 

For contracts entered into before 1 January 2019, the Group determined whether the arrangement was 

or contained a lease based on the assessment of whether: 
- Fulfilment of the arrangement was dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets; and 

The arrangement had conveyed a right to use the asset. An arrangement conveyed the right to use the 

asset if one of the following was met: 
- The purchaser had the ability or right to operate the asset while obtaining or controlling more than an 

insignificant amount of the output; 

- The purchaser had the ability or right to control physical access to the asset while obtaining or 

controlling more than an insignificant amount of the output; or 
- Facts and circumstances indicated that it was remote that other parties would take more than an 

insignificant amount of the output, and the price per unit was neither fixed per unit of output nor equal 

to the current market price per unit of output. 

• As a Lessee 

In the comparative period, as a lessee the Group classified leases that transferred substantially all of the 
risks and rewards of ownership as finance leases. When this was the case, the leased assets were 

measured initially at an amount equal to the lower of their fair value and the present value of the 

minimum lease payments. Minimum lease payments were the payments over the lease term that the 
lessee was required to make, excluding any contingent rent. Subsequent to initial recognition, the assets 

were accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy applicable to that asset. 

Assets held under other leases were classified as operating leases and were not recognized in the Group’s 
statement of financial position. Payments made under operating leases were recognized in profit or loss 

on a straight‑line basis over the term of the lease. Lease incentives received were recognized as an 

integral part of the total lease expense, over the term of the lease. 

• As a Lessor  

When the Group acted as a lessor, it determined at lease inception whether each lease was a finance 
lease or an operating lease. 

To classify each lease, the Group made an overall assessment of whether the lease transferred 

substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset. If this was the 

case, then the lease was a finance lease; if not, then it was an operating lease. As part of this assessment, 
the Group considered certain indicators such as whether the lease was for the major part of the economic 

life of the asset. 

 

• As a Lessee  

Right-of-Use Assets 

Jordanian Dinar   

As of December 31, 

2019 

Cost     

Balance at January 1, 2019   207,642 

Balance at December 31   207,642 

Accumulated Depreciation     

Balance at January 1, 2019   - 
Amortization charge for the year     (41,522) 
Balance at December 31, 2019   (41,522) 

Net book value at December 31,   166,120 
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Lease Liabilities 
 

Maturity Analysis – Contractual Undiscounted Cash Flows 

 

As of December 31, 

2019 
   

Jordanian Dinar   

Within a year  49,100 

More than a year  147,300 
Total Undiscounted Lease Liabilities at December 31,  196,400 

 

Maturity Analysis – Contractual Discounted Cash Flows 

As of December 31, 

2019 

Jordanian Dinar  
  

Current  44,835 
Non-Current  83,072 

Lease Liabilities included in the Statement of Financial Position 127,907 
 

Amounts recognized in the statement of profit and loss 
 

Jordanian Dinar  

For the Year 

Ended December 

31, 2019 
   

Interest on Lease Liabilities  14,240 

Amounts recognized in the statement of cash flows 

Jordanian Dinar   

For the year ended 

December 31, 2019 
    

Total cash outflow for leases   (79,735) 

 

As A Lessor  

There is no lease income from lease contracts in which the Group acts as a lessor 

 

Impact on the opening balances 
 

The impact on applying IFRS (16) on the Group’s consolidated financial statements as at January 1, 

2019 is as follows:  
 Estimated impact of adoption of IFRS (16) 

Jordanian Dinar 

As reported at 

December 31, 

2018  

Estimated adjustments  

due to adoption of  

IFRS 16 

Estimated adjustments at 

January 1, 2019 due to 

adoption of IFRS (16) 
     

RoU assets -  207,642 207,642 

Lease liability -  (207,642) (207,642) 

 

Significant accounting policies applied by the Group: 

(a) Financial Instruments: 

- Recognition and initial measurement 

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognized when they are originated. All other 

financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognized when the Group becomes a party to the 

contractual provisions of the instrument . 

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component) or financial 

liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are 

directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a significant financing 

component is initially measured at the transaction price. 
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- Classification and subsequent measurement for financial assets and liabilities:  

Financial Assets: 

According to the international financial reporting standard no(9), On initial recognition, a financial asset 

is classified as measured at: amortised cost; FVOCI – debt investment; FVOCI – equity investment; or 
FVTPL. 

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Group changes its 

business model for managing financial assets, in which case all affected financial assets are reclassified 

on the first day of the first reporting period following the change in the business model. 

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not 

designated as at fair value through the consolidated profit or loss: 

- It’s held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows. 

- Its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and 

interest on the principal amount outstanding. 
A debt investment is measured at fair value through the consolidated other comprehensive income if it 

meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at fair value through the consolidated 

profit or loss: 

- It’s held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows 

and selling financial assets. 

- Its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows (that are solely payments of principal and 
interest on the principal amount outstanding). 

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Group may irrevocably 

elect to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in the consolidated other 

comprehensive income. This election is made on an investment-by-investment basis. 

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortized cost or fair value through the consolidated  

other comprehensive income as described above are measured at fair value through the consolidated 

profit or loss. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Group may 
irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at 

amortized cost or at fair value through the consolidated other comprehensive income as at fair value 

through profit or loss if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would 
otherwise arise. 

 

• Business model assessment 

The Group makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held 

at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided 

to management. The information considered includes: 
 

- The stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. These 

include whether management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income, maintaining a 
interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any related liabilities 

or expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets; 

- How the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Group’s management; 

- The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that 

business model) and how those risks are managed; 

- How managers of the business are compensated – e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value 

of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and 

- The frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales 
and expectations about future sales activity. 

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not 

considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Group’s continuing recognition of the assets. 
 

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair 

value basis are measured at FVTPL. 
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• Financial assets – Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and 

interest 

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial 
recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk 

associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic 

lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin. 
In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Group 

considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset 

contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that 
it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers: 
 

- Contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows; 

- Terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable‑rate features; 

- Prepayment and extension features; and 

- Terms that limit the Group’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non‑recourse features). 
 

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the 

prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal 

amount outstanding, which may include reasonable compensation for early termination of the contract. 
Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at a discount or premium to its contractual par amount, a 

feature that permits or requires prepayment at an amount that substantially represents the contractual 

par amount plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual interest (which may also include reasonable 
compensation for early termination) is treated as consistent with this criterion if the fair value of the 

prepayment feature is insignificant at initial recognition. 

 

Financial assets – Subsequent measurement and gains and losses 

Financial assets at FVTPL These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains 
and losses, including any interest or dividend income, are 

recognised in profit or loss. 

Financial assets at amortized cost These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using 

the effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by 

impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains 
and losses and impairment are recognised in consolidated 

profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised 

in consolidated profit or loss. 

Debt investments at FVOCI These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest 
income calculated using the effective interest method, foreign 

exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in 

profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are recognised in 
COCI. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in 

COCI are reclassified to profit or loss. 

Equity investments at FVOCI 

 

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. 

Dividends are recognised as income in profit or loss unless the 
dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the 

investment. Other net gains and losses are recognised in COCI 

and are never reclassified to consolidated profit or loss. 
 

• Financial liabilities – Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses 

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is 
classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held‑for‑trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as such 

on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, 

including any interest expense, are recognized in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are 
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and 

foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is 

also recognized in profit or loss. 
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Derecognition 

 

Financial assets 

The Group derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial 

asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which 
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which 

the group neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does 

not retain control of the financial asset. 

Financial liabilities 

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, 

or expire. The group also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash 

flows of the modified liability are substantially different, in which case a new financial liability based 
on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. 

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount extinguished and 

the consideration paid (including any non‑cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed) is recognised in 

profit or loss. 
 

- Modifications of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities  

Adjusted Financial Assets 
 

If the terms of a financial asset are modified, then the Group evaluates whether the cash flows of the 

modified asset are substantially different. If the cash flows are substantially different, then the 
contractual rights to cash flows from the original financial asset are deemed to have expired. In this case, 

the original financial asset is derecognized, and a new financial asset is recognized at fair value plus any 

eligible transaction costs. Any fees received as part of the modification are accounted for as follows: 

 
- Fees considered in determining the fair value of the new asset and fees that represent reimbursement of 

eligible transaction costs are included in the initial measurement of the new asset. 

- Other fees are included in profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on derecognition. 

If cash flows are modified when the borrower is in financial difficulties, then the objective of the 

modification is usually to maximize recovery of the original contractual terms rather than to originate a 

new asset with substantially different terms. If the Group plans to modify a financial asset in a way that 
would result in forgiveness of cash flows, then it first considers whether a portion of the asset should be 

written off before the modification takes place (see below for write-off policy). This approach impacts 

the result of the quantitative evaluation and means that the derecognition criteria are not usually met in 

such cases. 
 

Adjusted Financial Liabilities 

The Group derecognizes a financial liability when its terms are modified, and the cash flows of the 

modified liability are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified 
terms is recognized at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability 

derecognized and consideration paid is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. 

(b) Impairment 

-  Financial assets measured at amortised cost; 

- Debt investments measured at FVOCI; and 

- Contract assets. 

 The Group measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except for the following, 

which are measured at 12‑month ECLs: 
 

- Debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and 

- Other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the 

expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition. 
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Loss allowances for due from related parties and contract assets are always measured at an amount equal 

to lifetime ECLs. 

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial 

recognition and when estimating ECLs, the group considers reasonable and supportable information that 
is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative 

information and analysis, based on the Group’s historical experience and informed credit assessment, 

that includes forward‑looking information. 

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than 

90 days past due. 
The Group considers a financial asset to be in default when: 

- The debtor is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by the Group to 

actions such as realising security (if any is held); or 

- The financial asset is more than 90 days past due. 

The Group considers a debt security to have low credit risk when its credit risk rating is equivalent to 

the globally understood definition of ‘investment grade’. 

Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a 

financial instrument. 

12‑month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within the 12 
months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12 

months). 

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which 

the Group is exposed to credit risk. 
 

     Measurement of ECLs 

ECLs are a probability‑weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present 
value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in accordance 

with the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive). 

ECLs are discounted at the effective interest rate of the financial asset. 

Credit-impaired financial assets 

At each reporting date, the group assesses whether financial assets carried at amortized cost and debt 

securities at FVOCI are credit‑impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit‑impaired’ when one or more events 

that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. 

Evidence that a financial asset is credit‑impaired includes the following observable data: 

 

- Significant financial difficulty of the debtor; 

- A breach of contract. 

- The restructuring of a loan or advance by the group on terms that the group would not consider otherwise; 
- It is probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization; or 

- The disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties. 

Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement of financial position 

Loss allowances  for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross carrying 

amount of the assets. 

For debt securities at FVOCI, the loss allowance is charged to profit or loss and is recognized in OCI. 

Write-off 

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the group has no reasonable 

expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. However, financial assets 
that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the group’s 

procedures for recovery of amounts due. 
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Non-financial assets  

At each reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its non‑financial assets (other than 

biological assets, investment property, inventories, contract assets and deferred tax assets) to determine 

whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable 
amount is estimated. Goodwill is tested annually for impairment. 

For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash 

inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs. 

Goodwill arising from a business combination is allocated to CGUs or groups of CGUs that are expected 
to benefit from the synergies of the combination. 

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs 

to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using 
a pre‑tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks 

specific to the asset or CGU. 

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable 
amount. 

Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. They are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount 

of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets in the 

CGU on a pro rata basis. 
 

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. For other assets, an impairment loss is reversed 

only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have 

been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized 

(c) Property and Equipment 

Recognition and measurement 

Items of property and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment losses. Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the 

property and equipment. When parts of an item of property and equipment have different useful lives, 

they are accounted for as separated items of property and equipment. Gains and losses on disposal of an 

item of property and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the 
carrying amount of property and equipment and are recognized net within the consolidated statement of 

profit or loss. 

Subsequent costs 

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated 

with the expenditure will flow to the Group. 

Depreciation 

Items of property and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis in consolidated statement of 
profit or loss over the estimated useful lives of each component.  

The estimated useful lives of property and equipment for the current and previous year are as follows: 

Property and equipment  Depreciation rates 

Furnitures and fixtures  15% 
Decorations  20% 
Machinery and equipment   15% 

Vehicles  15% 
Computers  25% 
Zarqa branch fixed assets  15% - 25% 
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(d) Intangible Assets 

Intangible assets with definite useful lives are amortized over their useful lives and are recognized at 

cost less accumulated amortization less any impairment. Amortization of assets shall be recognized in 

the statement of profit or loss. However, intangible assets with an indefinite useful life should not be 
amortized and it is required to be tested for impairment as at the consolidated financial statement date. 

 
 

 

 

 

(e) Investment property  

Investment property is property held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for both, 

but not for sale in the ordinary course of business, use in the production or supply of goods or services 

or for administrative purposes. Investment properties are recognized initially at cost. Their fair values 
are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements. Investment properties are revalued 

annually by independent real-estate experts based on market values, being the estimated amount for 

which a property could be exchanged on the date of the valuation between a willing buyer and a willing 

seller in an arm’s length transaction after proper marketing wherein the parties had each acted 
knowledgeably and willingly. 
 

Depreciation expense is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other 

comprehensive income on a straight – line basis using a rate of 2%. 

 

(f) Investment in associate 

Associates are those entities in which the Group has significant influence, but not control or joint 

control, over the financial and operating policies.  

Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method. They are recognized initially at 
cost, which includes transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, the financial statements 

include the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the investees 

 
(g) Revenue recognition  

 

Revenue is measured based on the considerations specified in the contract with the customer. Where 

the Group recognizes revenue when it transfers control, at a specific time or over time - a good or 

service to a customer. 
 

Contract (s) with the customer: A contract is defined as an agreement between two or more parties that 

creates enforceable rights and obligations. 
 

Determine performance obligations in the contract. 
 

Transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of revenue that the group expects to receive in 

exchange for transferring services to the customer, except for the consideration that are collected on 

behalf of third parties. 
 

Allocating the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a contract that 

contains more than one performance obligation, the company will allocate the transaction price to each 

performance obligation in an amount that indicates the amount of return that the group expects to 

receive in exchange for fulfilling each performance obligation. 
 

The Group recognizes revenue when the Group meets a customer's performance obligation at a 

specified time or over time. 
 

The group fulfills the performance obligation and recognizes revenue over time, if one of the following 
criteria is met: 

- the group's performance obligation creates and / or improves the assets the customer controls when 

creating or improving the asset; or 

- The performance of the group does not lead to the creation of an asset with an alternative use of the 

group and the group has an enforceable right to pay for the performance completed so far. 

Intangible assets  Amortization Rate 

Computer Programs  25% 
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(h) Fair value measurement 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 

transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the 

most advantageous market to which the group has access at that date. The fair value of a liability 
reflects its non‑performance risk. 
 

A number of the group’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, 

for both financial and non‑financial assets and liabilities when one is available, the group measures 
the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in an active market for that instrument. A market 

is regarded as ‘active’ if transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency and 

volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis. 
 

If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the group uses valuation techniques that maximize 

the use of relevant observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. The chosen 

valuation technique incorporates all of the factors that market participants would consider in pricing 

a transaction. 
    

If an asset or a liability measured at fair value has a bid price and an ask price, then the group measures 

assets and long positions at a bid price and liabilities and short positions at an ask price. 
The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument on initial recognition is normally the 

transaction price – i.e. the fair value of the consideration given or received. If the Group determines 

that the fair value on initial recognition differs from the transaction price and the fair value is 

evidenced neither by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or liability nor based on 
a valuation technique for which any unobservable inputs are judged to be insignificant in relation to 

the measurement, then the financial instrument is initially measured at fair value, adjusted to defer the 

difference between the fair value on initial recognition and the transaction price. 
   Subsequently, that difference is recognized in the consolidated profit or loss on an appropriate basis 

over the life of the instrument but no later than when the valuation is wholly supported by observable 

market data or the transaction is closed out. 
 

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present (legal or contractual) 

obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will 

be required to settle the obligation. 
 

Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a rate that reflects current 

market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. 
 

(i) Provisions 

Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre‑tax rate that reflects 
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The 

unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost. 

Warranties: A provision for warranties is recognized when the underlying products or services are 

sold, based on historical warranty data and a weighting of possible outcomes against their associated 
probabilities. 

Restructuring: A provision for restructuring is recognized when the Company has approved a detailed 

and formal restructuring plan, and the restructuring either has commenced or has been announced 
publicly. Future operating losses are not provided for . 

Site restoration: In accordance with the Company’s published environmental policy and applicable 

legal requirements, a provision for site restoration in respect of contaminated land, and the related 

expense, is recognized when the land is contaminated. 
Onerous contracts: A provision for onerous contracts is measured at the present value of the lower of 

the expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. 

Before a provision is established, the Company recognizes any impairment loss on the assets 
associated with that contract. 
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(j) Finance expenses  

Finance expenses comprise interest expense on borrowings. All borrowing costs that are not directly 

attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are recognized in the 

consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income using the effective interest 
method.  

 

(k)Offsetting 

Financial liabilities are set off against financial assets, and the net amount is shown in the consolidated 

financial position only when the obliging legal rights are available and when settled on net basis or the 

realization of assets or settlement of liabilities is done at the same time. 
 

(l) Earnings per share 

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS 
is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Group by the 

weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined 

by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number 
of ordinary shares outstanding, for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. 

 

(m) Foreign currency transactions 
  

Transactions in foreign currencies during the year are translated at exchange rates at the dates of the 

transactions.  
 

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are translated to 

Jordanian Dinar at the exchange rate at that date.  
 

The foreign currency gain (loss) on monetary items is the difference between amortized cost in Jordanian 
Dinar at the beginning of the year, adjusted for effective interest rate and payments during the year, and 

the amortized cost in foreign currency translated at the exchange rate at the end of the year. 
 

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value 

are retranslated to Jordanian Dinar at the exchange rate at the date that the fair value was determined.  
 

Foreign currency differences arising on retranslation are recognized in the consolidated statement of 

profit or loss and other comprehensive income. 

 

(n) Income tax and National contribution  
  

- Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax are recognized in 

the consolidated statement of profit or loss except, to the extent that, it relates to a business combination, 

or items recognized directly in equity. 
 

- Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using 

tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in 

respect of previous years. 
  

- Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets 

and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. 
 

- Deferred tax is measured at tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they 

reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. The 

amendments over the Amended Income Tax Law No. 38 of 2018 will be reflected in the calculation of 
the deferred taxes measured as of the end of the reporting period.  
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- Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax 

liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable 

entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis 

or their tax assets and liabilities will be realized simultaneously. 
 

- A deferred tax asset is recognized for unused tax losses, tax credits and deductible temporary 

differences, to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which 
they can be utilized.  
 

- Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer 

probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.  
 

- Current tax payable is calculated at the tax rate of 24% in accordance with the amended income tax law 

for 2018, and national contribution rate is 4% as per the amended income tax law. 

 

4) Standards and interpretations not yet adopted 

A number of new standards are effective for annual periods beginning after January 1, 2019 and earlier 

application is permitted; however, the Group has not early adopted the new or amended standards in 

preparing these consolidated financial statements: 
 

The following amended standards and interpretations are not expected to have a significant impact on 
the Group’s consolidated financial statements: 

- Amendments to References to Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards. 

- Definition of a Business (Amendments to IFRS 3). 
- Definition of Material (Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8). 

- IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts. 
 

The Group anticipates that each of the above standards and amendments will be adopted in the 

consolidated financial statements by its date mentioned above without having any material impact on 

the Group’s consolidated financial statements. 
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5) Segment Reporting 
An operating segment is a group of components of the Group affected by risks and returns that distinguish 
it from others and engages in producing products or services known as operating segments or engages in 
producing products or services within specific economic environment that distinguish it from other sectors 
known as geographical segments. 

 

 

A- Operating Segment 
The Group operates its activities in major operating segments, which represents the follows: 

- Brokerage. 

- Investments. 

 

Jordanian Dinar 

 

As of December 31, 2019 
  

As of December 31, 2018 
 Brokerage 

 Investments Total 

 
Brokerage  Investments Total 

Brokerage commission 201,626 -  201,626  198,405 - 198,405 

Interest revenue on customer 

margin accounts 75,503 - 75,503 

 

92,133 - 92,133 

Dividends revenue - - -  - 63,106 63,106 

Bank interests 2,334 - 2,334  3,520 - 3,520 

Investment Management 

revenue 53 - 53 

 

462 - 462 

Company share of results 
associate company - 219,000 219,000 

 

- 163,977 163,977 

Other revenue - 11,150 11,150  5,670 - 5,670 

Reversed from (provision) 
expected credit losses 243,000 - 243,000 

 

- - - 

Total Revenue 522,516 230,150 752,666  300,190 227,083 527,273 
  

   

 

      

Administrative expenses (431,249) - (431,249)  (506,205) - (506,205) 

Finance expenses  (130,855) - (130,855)  (135,212) - (135,212) 

Depreciation and amortization (83,672) (4,625) (88,297)  (41,620) (4,625) (46,245) 

Foreign currency exchange loss - - -  - (17,359) (17,359) 

Total expenses (645,776 ) (4,625 ) (650,401 )  (683,037) (21,984) (705,021) 

    

 

   

Total segment assets 4,974,439 4,893,228 9,867,667  5,412,737 5,289,181 10,701,918 

Total segment liabilities (1,513,057 ) - (1,513,057 )  (2,032,626 ) - (2,032,626) 

 

B- Geographical Segment 

The Group operated its activities inside the Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan. 
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6) Cash and cash equivalents  

 As at December 31, 
Jordanian Dinar 2019  2018 
    

Cash at banks – current accounts* 12,781  15,298 

Cash at banks – customer currents account* 165,463  327,345 
Cash on hand 280  2,953 
    

Total 178,524  345,596 
    

Due to banks (Note 17) (996,009 )  (1,448,224) 

Cash and Cash Equivalents for cash flow purpose  (817,485 )  (1,102,628) 

* These bank account bears an interest of 1% annually for the years 2019 and 2018. 

 
7) Financial assets at amortized cost   

 This item represents brokerage customers receivables, and it is as follow: 

 As at December 31, 
Jordanian Dinar 2019  2018 
    

Brokerage customer receivables   3,777,076  4,005,442 

Finance customer receivables on margin 3,009,042  3,329,360 

Related parties’ receivables note (26-1) 420  - 

 6,786,538  7,334,802 

Less: Expected credit losses provision    

Brokerage customers receivables  (1,932,582)  (2,058,950) 

Margin customers receivables (1,728,338)  (1,844,970) 

 3,125,618  3,430,882 

 
* The movement on provision expected credit loss was as follows:  

 For the year ended December 31, 
Jordanian Dinar 2019  2018 
    

Balance at the beginning of the year 3,903,920  3,903,920 

Additions during the year  200,000  - 
(Reversed) during the year (443,000 )  - 

 3,660,920  3,903,920 

 

The following is brokerage customer receivables aging  
A) The following table describe the aging for brokerage customer receivables: 

 As at December 31, 
Jordanian Dinar 2019  2018 
    

Less than 30 days  901,699  1,275,563   

From 31 to 90 days 977,611  677,791   
From 91 to 180 days  174  10 

More than 180 days 1,897,592  2,052,078   

Balance at the end of year (A) 3,777,076  4,005,442 
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B) The following table describe the age of finance customer receivables on margin including related party 

receivables: 

 As of December 31, 

Jordanian Dinar 2019  2018 
    

Less than 30 days  9,407  7,027   

From 31 to 90 days  13,547  18,700   

From 91 to 180 days 80,267  22,366   

More than 180 days 2,906,241  3,281,267   

Balance at the end of year (B) 3,009,462  3,329,360 

Total (A)+(B) 6,786,538  7,334,802 

 
The impairment losses have been calculated according to the requirements of IFRS no (9), financial 

instruments, in accordance with the following rules:   
 

Under IFRS (9), impairment loss is measured on either of the following bases: 
 

• 12-month ECLs: these are ECLs that result from possible default events within the 12 months 
after the reporting date. 

• Lifetime ECLs: These ECLs result from all possible default events over the expected life of a 

financial instrument 
 

The Group measures impairment allowances equal to expected credit losses within 12 months if these 

assets are classified as Tier 1 and have the following characteristics: 
 

• Debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date. 

• Other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring 

over the expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial 

recognition. 

• the expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial 

recognition. 
The expected impairment of the life of the financial instrument to maturity is calculated in the event 

of a significant increase in credit risk, which requires to transfer the financial instrument from Tier 1 

to Tier 2, or if the financial instrument applies to specific cases with the standard, which requires the 
group to classify the assets directly within the second tier.  

 

The financial instrument is impaired,  when there is an objective evidence of impairment, as a result 
of a loss that have negative impact on the estimated future cash flow, accordingly  the financial 

instrument is transferred to third tier, and the expected credit loss model requires recognition of the 

expected loss over the life of the asset debt instruments are very similar to the requirements of IAS 

(39). 
 

When determining whether the credit risk of financial assets has increased significantly since initial 

recognition and in estimating the expected credit loss, the group relies on reasonable and supportive 
information available and relevant, including quantitative and qualitative information and analysis of 

this information based on the Group's past experience and credit study.  

 

The group considers financial assets to be impaired when: 

- The borrower likely be unable to pay its credit obligations to the group without recourse to the 

procedures for using the collateral held against such obligations (if any). 

- If more than, 90 days have elapsed on maturity of financial assets. 

 

The expected credit loss calculation mechanism depends on the (probability of default), which is 
calculated according to the credit risk and future economic factors, (loss given default), which depends 
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on the value of the existing collateral, the (exposure at default), The expected credit loss is discounted 

at the effective interest rate of the financial asset. 
 

At each financial period, the group evaluates the credit rating of financial assets at amortized cost and 

debt securities at fair value through the cosolidated statement of other comprehensive income. The 

credit rating of financial assets is considered to be impaired when one or more events that have a 
negative impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset occur. 
 

Provisions loss for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the total carrying 

amount of the financial asset. For debt securities at fair value through other comprehensive income, the 

provision for impairment is recognized in the consoldiated statement of  other comprehensive income 

and is not deducted from the carrying amount of the financial asset. The losses of other financial assets 
are presented under 'Financing expenses' in the same manner of disclosure used in accordance with 

IAS (39). Such disclosure is not included in the consolidated  statement of profit or loss and the 

consolidated statement of  other comprehensive income based on material considerations.  
-The brokerage customers receivables and customer margin interest receivables aged for more than 90 

days which are not covered by shares amounted to 755,657 JOD for the year ended December 31, 2019, 

(2018: JOD 755,657) are secured by property amounted to fair value as of 31 December 2019: 
4,962,125 JOD, (2018: JOD 5,386,250) assessed by an independent real estate valuator using input 

assess in the second level, and the company raised an executive case related to pledge on immovable 

property against account receivable amounted 900,000 and the case is still within the executive 

procedures. 
 

- During the year ended December 31, 2018, a receivable settlement agreement was signed at the 

Company's Financial Brokerage Department amounting to 132,502 JD. The partners of Siwar Al Sharq 
Trading Company, registered at the Companies Controller as a limited liability company under No. 

(30101), waived the amount of their shares in the said company in favor of Al-Bilad for Securities and 

Investment Company with a total value of 165,560 JD against the above-mentioned bad debt 

settlement, resulting in a full reduction in the value of the debt and recording the amount due for this 
investment of 30,057 JD under other credit balances. In accordance with the instructions of the 

Securities Commission, the investment property amounted to 159,000 JOD (note 12) must be disposed 

of within two years from the date of acquisition. 
 
 

8) Other debit balances  
  As of December 31, 

Jordanian Dinar   2019  2018 

deposits  ank guaranteesB  116,769  116,769 
Settlement guarantee fund  50,000  50,000 
Prepaid expenses  29,334  30,275 

Accrued revenue  7,945  7,945 

Employees receivable  4,898  8,268 
Securities depository Center receivable   3,688  1,736 
Refundable deposits  3,130  3,130 
Income tax on bank interest    339  7,208 
Other receivables*  184,371  199,749 

  400,474  425,080 

 

*This item includes an amount of 136,186 JD due from Inmaa Development and International 
Investment Company - Public Shareholding Company- as of December 31, 2019 (31 December 2018: 

146,674 JD) guaranteed by a first-class mortgage for the Company in the amount of JD 900,000. 
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9) Financial assets in fair value through other comprehensive income  
 

  As of December 31, 

Jordanian Dinar   2019  2018 

Shares of companies listed on the Amman Stock Exchange     

Portfolio of financial assets*  2,550,893  2,870,452 
Net change in fair value   (729,779)  (519,010) 

  1,821,114  2,351,442 
     

Shares of companies Not listed on the Stock Exchange     
Saraya Aqaba Real Estate Development Company**  616,578  616,578  
Net change in fair value   (527,093)  (447,093) 

  89,485  169,485 

Total   1,910,599  2,520,927 
 

 

* Financial assets include shares of listed companies in Amman Stock Exchange with fair value 
amounted to as of 31 December 2019: 1,251,387 JD (31 December 2018: 1,522,932 JD) at the date of 

the consolidated financial statements are mortgaged to Jordan Commercial Bank for bank facilities 

(Note 17). 
** Financial assets include shares of listed companies in Amman Stock Exchange with fair value 

amounted to as of 31 December 2019: 23,000 JD (2018: 15,000 JD), and are mortgaged against board 

membership.  
 

  ***The fair value of Saraya Aqaba Real Estate Development Company shares are evaluated according to 
the net book value of the Company’s asset since they are not listed in financial market Securities, in 

the opinion of the Group’s management there is no impairment in its value. In addition, the Company 

has a real estate project that is expected to be completed in 2022. The cost recovery depends on the 
completion of its implementation and the realization of cash flows in accordance with the cash flows 

of this project. 
 

 

 
 

 

 

10) Investment in associates’ company 

This item includes the following: 
 

  As of December 31, 

Jordanian Dinar   2019  2018 
     

Fair value to invest in associates’ company   1,862,289  1,858,844  
Additions during the year   -  3,445 

Cost purchase / invest in associates company   1,862,289  1,862,289 
     

The Company's share of net assets of the associate 

(27.656% and 27.59%) 

    

Opening balance   2,026,266  1,858,844 
Additions during the year   -  3,445 

Share of profit during the year  219,000  163,977 

Total   2,245,266  2,026,266 

Company’s profit from investing in associate  219,000  163,977 

 

Some of the shares of the associate company are mortgaged in favor of the Commercial Bank of Jordan, 
with their fair value as of 31 December 2019: 770,006 JD (as of 31 December 2018: 1,298,666 JD).  
 

The Group's share of the interests of the associate was calculated based on the audited financial 

statements for the year ended 31 December 2019. 
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11) Property and equipment  
 

Jordanian Dinar 

 

Furniture and 

Fixture 

 

Decorations 

 

Tools, 

Equipment 

 

Vehicles 

 

Computer 

Equipment 

 Al Zarqa’ 

Branch 

Assets 

 

 

Total 
As at December 31, 2019 

 

             
Cost               

Balance as at January 1, 2019  106,637  74,947  94,708  67,233  118,787  8,000  470,312 
Additions  460  -  -  -  879  1,335  2,674 
Balance as at December 31, 2019  107,097  74,947  94,708  67,233  119,666  9,335  472,986 
  

 
 

 
          

Accumulated Depreciation               

Balance as at January 1, 2019  83,045  63,925  73,408  26,067  111,146  500  358,091 
Depreciation for the year  6,504  11,018  6,464  10,085  3,652  2,109  39,832 
Balance as at December 31, 2019  89,549  74,943  79,872  36,152  114,798  2,609  397,923 

Net book value as at December 31, 2019  17,548  4  14,836  31,081  4,868  6,726  75,063 
  

 
 

 
          

As at December 31, 2018 
 

             
Cost               

Balance as at January 1, 2018  105,921  74,947  93,324  67,233  113,133  -  454,558 
Additions  716  -  1,384  -  5,654  8,000  15,754 

Balance as at December 31, 2018  106,637  74,947  94,708  67,233  118,787  8,000  470,312 
  

 
 

 
          

Accumulated Depreciation               

Balance as at January 1, 2018  76,347  52,056  66,929  15,982  107,852  -  319,166 
Depreciation for the year  6,698  11,869  6,479  10,085  3,294  500  38,925 

Balance as at December 31, 2018  83,045  63,925  73,408  26,067  111,146  500  358,091 

Net book value as at December 31, 2018  23,592  11,022  21,300  41,166  7,641  7,500  112,221 

 

.
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12) Investment property  
Jordanian Dinar   Land Buildings Total 

Cost     

Balance as at January 1, 2019 531,549 231,251 762,800 
Balance as at December 31, 2019 531,549 231,251 762,800 

    
Accumulated Depreciation     

Balance as at January 1, 2019 - 20,812 20,812 
Depreciation for the year  - 4,625 4,625 
Balance as at December 31, 2019 - 25,437 25,437 

Book Value as 31, December, 2019 531,549 205,814 737,363 

Cost     

Balance as at January 1, 2018 372,549 231,251 603,800 
Addition during the year* 159,000 - 159,000 

Balance as at December 31, 2018 531,549 231,251 762,800 

    

Accumulated Depreciation     

Balance as at January 1, 2018 - 16,187 16,187 
Depreciation for the year  - 4,625 4,625 

Balance as at December 31, 2018 - 20,812 20,812 
Book Value as 31, December, 2018 531,549 210,439 741,988 

 
*According to the independent real-estate experts the evaluation of the fair value of investment 

property at the date of consolidated financial statement was as follows: 
 

Level of fair value  Average Fair Value   Jordanian Dinar   

     

Level 2  540,494  Land 

Level 2  286,913  Buildings 
 

* The acquisition described in note (6) resulted to investment property amounted 159,000 as of 
December 31, 2019 & 2018. 

 

13) Right of use    

This item represents:  
  As of December 31, 

Jordanian Dinar   2019  2018 

     
Right of use asset   207,642  - 
Amortization – Right of use assets   (41,522)  - 

  166,120  - 
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14) Intangible assets  
 
Jordanian Dinar  

Computer 

Programs 

   

Cost   

As at 31 December 2019   
Balance at 1 January 2019  105,127 

Balance at 31 December 2019  105,127 

   

Accumulated Amortization   

Balance at 1 January 2019  99,268 

Amortization for the year  2,318 

Balance at 31, December 2019  101,586 

Net Book Value as at 31 December 2019  3,541 

   

As at 31 December 2018   

Balance at 1 January 2018  102,943 

Additions  2,184 

Balance at 31 December 2018  105,127 

   

Accumulated Amortization   

Balance at 1 January 2018  96,573 
Amortization for the year  2,695 

Balance at 31, December 2018  99,268 

Net Book Value as at 31 December 2018  5,859 
 

 

15) Brokerage license 

As of December 31,   

2018  2019  Jordanian Dinar   

     

200,000  200,000  Brokerage license 

(199,999)  (199,999)  Accumulated amortization 

1  1   

 

16) Income tax  

-   Movements on temporary timing differences were as follows: 

Jordanian Dinar 

Balance at 

the beginning 

of the year Additions 

Released 

amounts 

Balance at 

the end of 

the year 

Deferred 

tax assets  
      

As at 31 December 2019      

Expected Credit losses allowance  3,903,920 200,000 (443,000 ) 3,660,920 1,025,098 

 3,903,920 200,000 (443,000) 3,660,920 1,025,098 
      

As at 31 December 2018      

Expected Credit losses allowance  3,903,920 - - 3,903,920 1,093,098 

 3,903,920 - - 3,903,920 1,093,098 
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The movement on deferred tax asset account during the year was as follows: 

  As of December 31, 
Jordanian Dinar  2019  2018 
     

Balance at the beginning of the year   1,093,098  936,941 

Additions during the year    -  156,157 

Released  during the year    (68,000)  - 

Balance at the end of the year  1,025,098  1,093,098 
  

 

-  The movement on income tax provision during the year was as follows: 
  

As of December 31, 
        

Jordanian Dinar  2019  2018 
     

Balance at the beginning of the year   33,895  - 
Income tax for previous years  22,171  60,217 

Income Tax paid   (56,066)  (26,322) 

Balance at the end of the year   -  33,895 
 

- The income tax expense in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, other comprehensive income 

consists of: 
 

   
Jordanian Dinar  2019  2018 
     

Income tax for previous years  (22,171)  (60,217) 
Change in deferred tax assets   (68,000)  156,157 
     

  (90,171)  95,940 
 

- Reconciliation between taxable income and accounting income is as follows: 

   
Jordanian Dinar  2019  2018 
     

Income (loss) for the year before income tax   102,265  (177,748) 

(Less): Income not subject for income tax   (498,007)  (167,693) 
     

  (395,742)  (345,441) 

Income tax rate for the year %28 (2019: %24)  -  - 

 * There is no effectiveness on a tax to the presence of a deferred tax benefit rate. 

 

Tax Status 

- The Income tax status for the group has been settled until 2017. 

- The tax return was submitted for the period 2018, which have been accepted for estimation purposes 
and have not been reviewed as of the date of the consolidated financial statements. 

- The group has not calculated the income tax provision for the year; given the fact that the company 

has operating losses, which has been accepted by the Income and Sales tax department, and the group 

has operating losses during the year.  
 

17) Due to banks  
 

This balance represents the utilized balance of overdraft from the Jordan Commercial Bank with limit 

of 1.1 million JOD. The annual interest rate is 8.75%, and it is guaranteed by some of the Group’s 

own portfolio consolidated (Note 9 and Note 10) amounted to 2,021,393 JD as of December 31, 2019. 
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18) Brokerage customer payable 

 As of December 31, 
Jordanian Dinar 2019  2018 
    

Brokerage customer receivables 126,071  277,469 

Related parties Receivables (note 26-2) 40,668  
41,284 

Investment Management customer receivables 7,205  5,434 

Finance customers on margin receivables 5,213  2,307 
    

 179,157  326,494 

 

19) Leased liability  

 As of December 31, 
Jordanian Dinar 2019  2018 

Leased liability- short-term  44,835  - 

Leased liability- long-term 83,072  - 

 127,907  -  
 

 

20) Other credit balances 

 As of December 31, 
Jordanian Dinar 2019  2018 

    

Accrued expenses 59,823  82,599 

Shareholders deposits 57,956  58,096 
Employee vacations provision  40,895  31,306 

Under writing refundable 36,647  36,647 

Social security’s deposits  1,864  2,214 
Income tax deposits  1,716  1,772 

Other  11,083  11,379 

 209,984  224,013 
 

21) Statutory reserve  

According to the law of the Jordanian companies No. 22 of 1997 "on the public shareholding company 

to deduct 10% of the annual net profits to calculate the statutory reserve after the settlement of the 

accumulated losses, and maintain such a deduction for each year the total does not exceed what deduct 

25% of the subscribed company's capital "this could go on deduction of up to 100% approval of the 
General Assembly of the company. The Group may not distribute profit from its statutory reserve. 

 

 

22) Other revenue  

 For the year ended December 31, 
Jordanian Dinar 2019  2018 
    

Rent   7,908  2,990 
Interest on Settlement Guarantee Fund 2,838  2,236 

Other  259  254 

Opening accounts revenue  145  190 

 11,150  5,670 
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23) Administrative expenses  
 

  For the year ended December 31, 
Jordanian Dinar  2019  2018 

     
Salaries and wages  241,940  279,905 

Company contributions in social securities   15,562  20,817 
Transportation   33,600  33,600 

Fees and license   31,666  29,113 
Legal expenses   25,150  13,400 

Professional fees   16,680  15,164 
Medical insurance   13,022  10,322 

Employee vacation and end of service  9,816  5,086 
Mail, Phone and internet   6,296  6,911 

Car expenses   6,190  3,130 
Al Zarqa’ Branch expenses  

4,940  3,061 

Maintenance   4,179  7,556 
Cleaning and hospitality   3,975  5,471 

Other   3,903  3,837 
Water and electricity   3,192  3,667 

Printings and stationery   2,581  2,146 
Donations   

2,000  2,500 

Board of director expenses   2,203  3,904 
Trading errors   

1,812  581 

Furnished apartment expenses   1,349  2,654 
Rents   900  45,900 

Advertising   293  1,356 
Investor safety fund   -  5,974 

Penalties   -  150 

  431,249  506,205 

 

24) Finance expenses  

 For the year ended December 31, 
Jordanian Dinar 2019  2018 
    

Banks fees 102,560  121,567 

Banks commission  14,055  13,645 

Interest – Finance charges 14,240   - 

 130,855  135,212 

 

25) Basic and diluted profit (losses) per share  

 As of December 31, 
Jordanian Dinar 2019  2018 
    

Profit (loss) for the year (JOD) 12,094  (81,808) 
Weighted average for shares (per share)  10,000,000  10,000,000 
    

 0.001  (0.008) 
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26) Balances and Transaction with related parties 

Transactions with related transactions that are made with associates and key administrators and key 
partners in the company and institutions controlled in whole or in part, or affect mainly on those 

entities related parties represent. Directors have approved the policy and conditions of transactions 

with related parties. 
 

 

26-1) Due from related parties 
 

 

Jordanian Dinar 
Nature of 

transaction 

Nature of 

relationship 

 

As of December 31, 

   2019 2018 

Sharif Al-Rawshdeh Trading Member of the Board 420 - 

   420 - 
 

 

26-2) Due to related parties 
 

 

Jordanian Dinar 
Nature of 

transaction 

Nature of 

relationship 

 

As of December 31, 

   2019 2018 

Sadaf Al Bahar for 
property development 

Company 

Trading 
Deputyof Chairman 

of the Board 
21,592 

 
21,592 

Fahad Thnian  Trading Contributor 16,226 16,226 

Arab Securities Trading - 

Saudi Arabia 

 

Trading 
Former contributor 

2,524 
 

2,524 

Saleh Al-Mdefar  Trading Contributor 200 200 

 

Emran Omar  

 

Trading 

Former member of 

the Board 
101 

 

101 

Abd-Alazez Masha’al  Trading contributor 25 25 

Sharif Al-Rawashdeh  
Trading 

Member of the 

Board 
- 160 

Sameer Al-Rawashdeh   
Trading 

Former member of 
the Board 

- 
 

456 

   40,668 41,284 
 

 

The size to deal with related parties during the year is as follows: 
Jordanian Dinar 

Nature of Transaction 

For the Year ended of 

December 31, 

  2019 2018 

Sharif Al Rawshdeh  Brokerage commission 481 757 

Ahmed Al Ahmed Brokerage commission 470 167 
Samer Al Rawashdeh Brokerage commission 162 2 

Ismail Issa dkeidek  Brokerage commission 58 95 
Issam hashem  Brokerage commission - 467 

Mohammad Rasheed Brokerage commission - 138 
Sadaf Al Bahar for property 

development Company 
Brokerage commission 

- 621 

 

26-3) Key management remuneration  

Salaries and bonuses of senior executive management amounted to 173,250 Jordanian Dinar for the 

year ended 31 December 2019 compared to 211,867 Jordanian Dinar for the year ended 31 December 

2018. 
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27) Contingent Liabilities 

 

Cash insurance against the bank guarantees amounted to 116,769 Jordanian Dinars for the year ended 

December 31, 2018, (2017: JOD 101,319) 
 

28) Financial risk management   
Overview 

The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments. 
 

 

- Credit risk 
- Liquidity risk 

- Market risk  

- Capital management 
 

This note presents information about the Group's exposure to each of the above risks, the Group's 
objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Group's management of 

capital.  

 
Risk management framework 

The management has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of Group's risk 

management framework.  
 

The Group's risk management policies are established to identify and analyses the risks faced by the 
Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits.  

 

 

Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions 

and the Group's activities. The Group, through its training and management standards and 

procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all 
employees understand their roles and obligations. 

 
 

 

The Group Audit Committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Group’s risk 

management policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework 
in relation to the risks faced by the Group.  
 

The Group Audit Committee is assisted in its oversight role by Internal Audit. Internal Audit 

undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results 
of which are reported to the Audit Committee. 

 

The carrying amount of the financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum 

exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was as follows: 
 

 As of December 31, 
Jordanian Dinar 2019  2018 

    

Cash at banks  178,244  342,643 

Financial assets at amortized cost  3,125,618  3,430,882 

Other debit balances 371,140  394,805 

 3,675,002  4,168,330 
 

 

 

 

 As of December, 31 
Jordanian Dinar 2019  2018 

    

Guarantees 750,500  750,500 

 750,500  750,500 
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- Liquidity risk 
 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated 

with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Group’s 

approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient 
liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring 

unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group’s reputation. 
 

 

The Group ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational expenses, 
including the servicing of financial obligations; this excludes the potential impact of extreme 

circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted, such as natural disasters. In addition, the company 

maintains line of credit from its bank for sudden cash requirements. 
 

The following are the contracted maturities of financial liabilities, including estimated interest 

payments: 

 

 

December 31, 2019 
Carrying 

Amount 

Contractual 

Cash Flows 

Less than 

year 

 

More than a 

year  

Jordanian Dinar     

Due to banks 996,009 (996,009) (996,009) - 

Brokerage customer payable  179,157 (179,157) (179,157) - 

Other credit balances  209,984 (209,984) (209,984) - 
Lease liability  127,907 (147,300) (48,835) (83,072) 

 1,513,057 (1,532,450 )  )1,429,985) (83,072) 

 

December 31, 2018 
Carrying 

Amount 

Contractual 

Cash Flows 

Less than 

year 

 

More than a 

year  

Jordanian Dinar     

Due to banks 1,448,224 (1,448,224) (1,448,224) - 

Brokerage customer payable  326,494 (326,494) (326,494) - 

Other credit balances  224,013 (224,013) (224,013) - 

 1,998,731 )1,998,731( )1,998,731( - 

 
- Market risk 

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rate and 

equity prices will affect the Group's profit or the value of its holdings of financial instruments.  
The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within 

acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return. 

 

- Currency Risk 

Most of the Group's financial assets and liabilities are in Jordanian Dinar. Most of the Group's 

transactions in general are in Jordanian dinar accordingly, the Group is not highly exposed to foreign 

currency risk. 
 

- Interest rate risk 

At the reporting date of consolidated financial statements, the interest rate profile of the Group's 
interest-bearing financial instruments was as follows: 

 As at December 31, 
Jordanian Dinar 2019  2018 

Fixed rate instruments:    
Financial liabilities 996,009  1,448,224 

 

The increase in the interest rate by 1% will lead to an increase in financing expenses amounted to 

9,960 JD. The decrease in the interest rate by 1% would lead to a decline in financing expenses 
amounted to 9,960 JD. 
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- Market price risk  

Equity price risk arises from financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income held 

for meeting partially the unfunded portion of the Group’s obligations as well as investments at fair 
value through profit or loss. Management of the Group monitors the mix of debt and equity securities 

in its investment portfolio based on market indices. Material investments within the portfolio are 

managed on an individual basis and all buy and sell decisions are approved by the Risk Management 
Committee. 

 

- Sensitivity analysis for equity price risk 
 

A change of 5% in fair value of the securities at the reporting date would have increased (decreased) 

equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, 

in particular foreign currency rates, remain constant. 
 

 Equity 

December 31, 2019 

5%  

Increase 

5% 

Decrease 

Jordanian Dinar   
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income  95,530 95,530 

 95,530 95,530 

December 31, 2018   

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income  126,046 (126,046) 

 126,046 (126,046 ) 

 

- Capital management 

Group’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain shareholder, creditor and market 
confidence and to sustain future development of the business. Capital consists of ordinary shares, 

non-redeemable preference shares, accumulated losses of the Group. 
 

The management monitors the return on capital, which the management defined as net operation 
income divided by total shareholders’ equity. 

 

The management seeks to maintain a balance between the higher returns that might be possible with 

higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position. 
 

There have been no changes in the Group's approach to capital management during the year neither 

the Group is subject to externally imposed capital requirements. 

 

Debt-to-adjusted Capital Ratio 
 

 As at December 31, 

Jordanian Dinar 2019  2018 
    

Total Debt 1,513,057  2,032,626 

(Less) cash and cash equivalent (178,524)  (345,596) 

Net Debt 1,334,533  1,687,030 
    

Net Shareholders’ equity 8,354,610  8,669,292 

Adjusted capital 8,498,610  8,669,292 

Debt - to- adjusted capital ratio 0.160  0.195 

 

The fair value 

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities are not materially different from their carrying value 

in the statement of financial position. 
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Fair value hierarchy 

 The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method. The 

different levels have been defined as follows: 
 Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 

 Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or 

liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices) 
 Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable 

inputs) 

A. Assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis: 

Total  Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Jordanian Dinar 

    201931 December As at  

1,910,599 - 89,485 1,821,114 

Financial assets measured at fair value 

through other comprehensive income  
     

    As at 31 December 2018 

2,520,927 - 169,485 2,351,442 

Financial assets measured at fair value 

through other comprehensive income  
 

Of the items described above, have been identified the second level of the fair value of financial assets 

and liabilities on the basis (agreed-upon pricing models to reflect the credit risk for the parties that 
deal with the company / price offered for assets similar in an inactive market / interest rates, the rate 

of return and volatility implied credit / inputs and margins related to the market (market-related data). 

 

B. Assets and liabilities that are not measured at fair value: 

With the exception of the table below, the Group's management believes that the book value of 

financial assets and liabilities that appear in the consolidated financial statements approximate their 

fair value as a result of the maturity of the bonds in the short term or re-pricing of interest rates during 
the year: 

 

 

Items described above have been identified at the second level of the fair value of financial assets and 

liabilities on the basis (agreed-upon pricing models to reflect the credit risk for the parties that deal with 
the company / price offered for assets similar in an inactive market / interest rates, the rate of return and 

volatility implied credit / inputs and margins related to the market (market-related data). 

 

 

 

Fair value Book value    Jordanian Dinar  

Level 3 Level 2 Level 1   

    920131 December  

     

- - - 178,524 Cash and cash equivalent  

- - - 25,61813,  Financial assets at amortized cost  

- - - (996,009) Credit banks  

- - - (179,157) Brokerage customer payable  

   (127,907) Leased liability  

Fair value    Book value    Jordanian Dinar  

Level 3 Level 2 Level 1   

    31 December 2018 

     

- - - 345,596 Cash and cash equivalent  

- - - 3,430,882 Financial assets at amortized cost  

- - - (1,448,224 ) Credit banks  
- - - (326,494 ) Brokerage customer payable  
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C. Assets and liabilities of non-financial, which are not measured at fair value, which is disclosed 

at fair value in the financial statements: 

 

The items above clarify the fair value of assets and liabilities of non-financial, which is determined on 

the basis of (a description of the valuation method used to measure the fair value); if the best use differs 

from current use, It is to say why they use it in a way different from the best use). 
 

29) SUBSEQUENT EVENTS  

 

The spread of novel coronavirus (COVID-19) across multiple geographies was confirmed in early 
2020, causing significant macro-economic uncertainty, disruptions to businesses and economic 

activities. The Company considers this outbreak to be a non-adjusting post balance sheet event. At this 

early stage, the Company is in the process of assessing any potential financial impact. The management 
and those charged with governance will continue to monitor the situation and accordingly update all 

stakeholders as soon as more information is available. Changes in circumstances may require enhanced 

disclosures or recognition of adjustments in the condensed interim financial information of the 
Company for the subsequent periods in the year 2020. 

 

30) COMPARATIVE FIGURES 

Comparative figures represent the statement of financial position as of 31 December 2018. 

Fair value  Book value   Jordanian Dinar  

Level 3  Level 2 Level 1   

    192031 December As at  

- 827,407 - 737,363 Investment property 

    As at 31 December 2018 

- 843,980 - 741,988 Investment property 
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